
 BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, August 12, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #04-25, Next Resolution #25-06, Next Agenda Bill #25-036 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll call
3. Agenda Modifications
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations

a. Appoint Nancy Moriarty to a three-year term on the Senior Citizen Advisory Commission

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign
up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting)

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Mayor’s Report Burkett 
2. Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee
3. Planning Commission

D. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approval of February 4, 2025, City Council Study Session Minutes
b. Approval of March 4, 2025, City Council Study Session Minutes
c. Approval of March 25, 2025 City Council Minutes
d. Approval of April 8, 2025, City Council Meeting
e. Approval of April 22, 2025, City Council Meeting
f. Claims & Payroll

E. REGULAR AGENDA

1. ORDINANCE
a. ORD No. ___-25: Amending the 2025-2026 Biennial Budget
b. ORD No. ___-25: Adopting the Comprehensive Plan
c. ORD No. ___-25: Amending the 2025 City Employee Salary Scale

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Adoption of new City of Buckley Logo

3. NEW BUSINESS
a. Client Services Contract with DSHS for Campus Patrol and Security at Rainier State

School
b. Granting of Blueberry Farm Trail Easement

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025 1



F. STAFF REPORTS 
1. 2025-2030 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
2. Development Project Update 

 
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes  
 
H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS & GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

5



 

City Council Study Session – February 4, 2025 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

February 4, 2025 
 
ATTENDEES: Council members Green, Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, Anderson and Bergerson.  
 
Also, in attendance were: Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Parks & Recreation Director 
Snodgrass, Public Services Director Banks, City Engineer Miller (via Zoom) and Deputy City Clerk Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Park Impact Fees: 
Anni Sieger from Sieger Consulting and Framework Consulting gave a presentation regarding park impact 
Fees.  The presentation gave an overview of when the fees were last updated, which was 2016, park 
impact fee update approach, expected population and employment growth, historical parks capital 
expenditures, capital project needs based on parks level-of-service, draft impact fee model results by 
modified per capita, and proposed impact fee rates.   Mayor Burkett asked questions regarding whether 
they thought about indexing by lot size and square footage with the revision for ADUs & DADUs impacting 
park impact fees.   
Council members went around the table and gave their opinions and asked questions.   
 
Cost Index Fee Increases for 2025: 
Public Services Director Banks updated Council that they have got construction cost index percentage for 
GFC’s (general facility charge for water, sewer and storm) and street impact fees up 2.91%.  This will be 
brought before Council at the next Council meeting in the Taxes, Rates and Fees schedule.  
 
City Council Comments: 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith spoke about the communities outpouring and awareness of the outgoing 
Governor’s budget to close Rainier State School that has been brought up on social media.  Mr. Smith also 
wanted to tell Public Works a great job for clearing the streets with the temperatures below freezing.   
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:16 PM. 
 

 

             
City Administrator                                                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

6



 

City Council Study Session – March 4, 2025 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 
March 4, 2025 

 
ATTENDEES: Council members Green, Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, Anderson and Bergerson.  
 
Also, in attendance were: Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Director of 
Parks and Recreation Snodgrass, Police Records Clerk Burkett and Deputy City Clerk Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:03 PM. 
 
Audit Exit Conference: 
SAO auditors Kirk Gadbois, Courtney Amonsen and Jen Rozler were available on Zoom presenting a slide 
show explaining why these results matter and financial audit results for 2022-2023. The report will be 
published on March 6, 2025, and the only changes were policy recommendations, which are already being 
worked on by City Staff.   
 
Doc Tait Pavilion: 
Mike Faulkner, Shayla Miles and Breanna Fokes presented a slideshow regarding the plan review, different 
views of the pavilion, signage and what each panel will include for signage. The Foothills Rails to Trails 
Coalition successfully secured full funding for the Doc Tait Pavilion and has submitted its building permit 
application.   
Also, the Coalition has worked with community partners to develop interpretive panel content that would 
include: 

· Honoring Doc Tait and Foothills Coalition Founders 
· Trail Map & Information 
· History of the Foothills Trail 
· Buckley and White River Plateau History 
· Flora and Fauna on the Trail  
· Places to Explore in Buckley/Nearby Communities on Trail 
· Muckleshoot Tribe 

Staff recommends City Council approve the final design and authorize the Foothills Rails to Trails Coalition 
to construct the pavilion as designed and permitted. 
 
Zoning Text Amendment Changes: 
City Administrator Brunell let the Council know this is the first of many code updates that will be coming 
before the Council due to some state law changes and the comprehensive plan that was adopted.  The 
staff is introducing amendments to the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) code.  This code is to comply with 
HB 1337 that was passed earlier this year.  Right now, we are relying on RCW state law rather than our 
local Municipal Code.   
 
Key Changes Required by HB 1337: 

· Increased ADU Allowance 
· Occupancy Requirements 
· Size Limitations 
· Condominium Conversion 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

7



 

City Council Study Session – March 4, 2025 
 

· Impact Fees Reduction 
· Parking Requirements Adjustments 
· Design and Development Standards 
· Conversion of Existing Structures 
· Public Street Improvements 

 
Policy Considerations for Council Discussion: 

· Density Management 
· Single-Family Home Design Standards 

 
Executive Session: 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith adjourned the City Council Study Session to go into Executive Session at 7:28 PM 
for approximately 10 minutes.   
 
Council returned from Executive Session and reconvened the City Council Study Session at 7:33 PM  
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:34 PM. 
 
 
 

 

             
City Administrator                                                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

8



 

City Council Minutes –March 25, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
March 25, 2025 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Anderson (via Zoom), Arsanto, 
Burbank, Bergerson,  and Green (via Zoom) 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Police Chief Alfano, Public Services 
Director Banks, and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council member Bender.  Council member 
Arsanto seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to 
the agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Carolyn Robertson Harding – Ms. Harding stated that she is there as the President of 
the Chamber od Commerce.  She shared that the Chamber is close to having 100 
business members, this has never happened before.  She also shared that there are a lot 
of bills in the legislature currently that could affect these businesses and shared that 
everyone should be paying attention. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith shared that the Doc Tait groundbreaking was held yesterday and 
even in the pouring down rain, there was a pretty good turnout. 
 
Development Services, Utilities & Transportation Committee: 
Council member Arsansto shared that the Committee met today and discussed the 
following: 

· Permitting software, 
· Stormwater Management Program, 
· Mundy Loss and Hinkleman Road projects, 
· Spruce Street project, 
· Pressure sewer study, 
· Recruitment update, and 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

9



 

City Council Minutes –March 25, 2025 2 
  
 

· New Vac Truck 
 
Citizen Advisory Commission: 
Council member Anderson shared that the Commission met last week and reviewed 
upcoming events, a public art application and received a spring and summer event 
update.  Their next meeting is April 21st 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Ordinance 02-25: Adopting the 2025 Stormwater Management Plan 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve ORD No. 02-25 Adopting a New 2025 City 
of Buckley Phase II NPDES Storm Water Management Program.  Council member 
Burbank seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote motion, motion carried 6/0. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Update – City Administrator Brunell shared information regarding 
the Comprehensive Plan and a letter received from the Department of Commerce. She 
shared the options we have for re-adopting the Comp Plan or amending the Comp Plan.  
 
She also reminded everyone about the Town Hall for Rainier State School at the Fire 
Station. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Bergerson seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:15 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

10



 

City Council Minutes –April 8, 2025 1 
  
 

  
City Council 
April 8, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Anderson, Arsanto, Burbank, 
Bergerson, and Green. 
 
Also present were:  Public Services Director Banks, Finance Director Hines, City Engineer 
Miller, and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council member Bender. Council member 
Smith seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
None. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Planning Commission: Council member Arsanto shared that at the last Commission 
meeting they discussed meeting twice a month, Comp Plan update, ADU Guidelines, and 
an updated project list. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

a. Engineering Services Proposal for Design of WWTP Magnesium Hydroxide 
System Improvements. 

b. Claims and Payroll 
 
Claim check numbers 69167 through 69244 in the amount of $579,888.45 for 
March 11, 2025, through March 24th, 2025. Payroll check numbers 41705 
through 41728 in the amount of $134,059.06 and ACH Payroll in the amount of 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

11



 

City Council Minutes –April 8, 2025 2 
  
 

$480,086.73 for March 25, 2025, through April 7, 2025; Claim check numbers 
69245 through 69296 in the amount of $225,820.37 for March 25, 2025, through 
April 7, 2025 are hereby approved and ordered paid this 8th day of April 2025. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Grant Acceptance for the Buckley/Rainier School Water System Consolidation 
Feasibility Study 
Council member Burbank moved to Approve Grant Acceptance for the Buckley/Rainier 
School Water System Consolidation Feasibility Study. Council member Green 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Engineering Services Proposal for Amendment 1 – Right of Way Phase-Spruce Street 
Improvements Project 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the Engineering Services Proposal for the 
Right-of-Way Phase of the Spruce Street Improvements Project.  Council member 
Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Public Art and Murals Application (Buckley Downtown Association) 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the Public Art Application submitted by 
the Buckley Downtown Association for “People on the Plateau Photo Series: 
Kempinski Drugstore.”  Council member Smith seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Smith shared that some of the street lights in Mountain Circle are out.  
He asked about the Doc Tait Plaza and was wondering if the whole for the foundation is 
being set up for a possible amphitheater.  
 
Council member Burbank asked who is in charge of maintaining the dog park and will we 
be removing the EV chargers from the parking lot behind the Firehouse since they don’t 
work anymore. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:14 PM. 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

12



 

City Council Minutes –April 22, 2025 1 
  
 

  
City Council 

April 22, 2025 
 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, 
Bergerson, and Green. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Police Chief 
Alfano, Fire Chief Skogen, Senior Planner Farnsworth, Police Records Clerk Burkett, and 
City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council members Bender and Anderson. 
Council member Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council 
member Burbank seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Announcements, Appointments, and Presentations: 
 
Lambertus Street Naming 
Mayor Burkett shared some history regarding Keith Lambertus’ contributions to the City 
of Buckley and presented the family with a certificate and replica of the street sign that 
will be placed in a new housing development in Buckley. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Carolyn Robertson Harding – Ms. Harding shared that she was present as the President 
of the Chamber and wanted to let everyone know that the Grand Opening and ribbon 
cutting for Luxe Beauty will be on May 3rd at 4:15 PM. 
 
Jasper Stenstrom- Mr. Stenstrom shared that he is the service rep for IAFF and assisted 
in the negotiations of the new Firefighter contract.  He shared that this is the first 
agreement for this group and that the agreement is being presented tonight as partners 
between IAFF and the City of Buckley. 
 
Taylor Hobi – Ms. Hobi share that she is the President of IAFF Local 3520 and she just 
wanted to reiterate what Jasper shared. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

13



 

City Council Minutes –April 22, 2025 2 
  
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Burkett thanked Council member Smith for attending the Doc 
Tait Pavilion ground breaking.  
 
Planning Commission: Council member Arsanto shared that at the last Commission 
meeting they discussed Comp Plan edits, ADU Code Guidance, and Single Family Design. 
Their next meeting is May 5th. 
 
Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee: Council member Smith shared that the 
Committee met yesterday and reviewed the following: 
 

· Recruitment update -Utility Worker 
· City Administrative Policies 
· City Hall Furniture 
· Skate Park Camera 
· Historical overview of the Fire Department staffing 
· Quarter 1 2025 Financial Dashboard Update 
· 2024 Year-end Financial Report 
· Finance System update. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Smith moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member  
Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of October 22, 2024, City Council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of November 5, 2025, City Council Study Session 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORD No. 03-25: Amending BMC 14.04 Municipal Water Supply System 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Ordinance No. 03-25 Amending Buckley 
Municipal Code 14.04 Municipal Water Supply. Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Upon roll call vote, motion carried 5/0. 
 
Collective Bargaining Agreement – IAFF Local 3520 (2025-2026) 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
Between the City and IAFF Local 3520 for 2025 through 2026. Council member Green 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

14



 

City Council Minutes –April 22, 2025 3 
  
 

Authorization to Purchase Furniture for the New City Hall 
Council member Arsanto moved to Authorize staff to enter into a Contract with the 
Preferred Vendor in an amount not to exceed $50,000 to furnish the new City Hall.  
Council member Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
1st Quarter 2025 Financial Report 
Finance Director Hine shared the first quarter of 2025 Financial Report. She stated she 
was available to answer any questions. 
 
2024 Year End Financial Report 
Finance Directo Hines then shared the 2024 Year-End Financial Report. She again stated 
that she would be happy to answer any questions. 
 
Building/Planning Update 
Senior Planner Farnsworth shared that there had been a slow down on building permits 
but he wanted to give an update on three developments. 
 

· Anderson Subdivision – 8/17 building permits issued, all 17 have been received. 
· Enclave at White River – 2 model home permits issued, 12 received. 
· Blueberry Farms – 2 model home permits issued, 8 received. 

 
City Administrator Update 
City Administrator Brunell shared that City Hall is on schedule and inline with budget.  
The City is launching its new website at the end of May and the next Community 
Newsletter will also go out in May. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Green shared that only 30% of Americans have a Real ID and the new 
laws are about to go into effect.  He shared that he went to Enumclaw’s weekend 
passport event and there were folks lined up down the street and around the corner. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member  Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:48 PM. 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

15



CITY OF BUCKLEY

Payroll and Claims/Treasurer Checks -July 2025

August 12, 2025 Council Meeting

FUND # FUND NAME AMOUNT ITEM

001 General Fund 449,539.47$             Payroll
304,270.70$             Claims/Treasurer Checks

003 GF Cumulative Reserve -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

004 Cemetery -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

007 Police Equip. Maintenance Reserve -$                          Payroll
75,083.34$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

008 Railroad ROW -$                          Payroll
-$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

030 Fire Equipment & EMS Reserve 1,035.36$                 Claims/Treasurer Checks

035 Park Construction -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

101 Street Operations 10,553.52$               Payroll
25,302.82$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

102 Street Capital Improvement 170,228.84$             Claims/Treasurer Checks

103 Transportation Benefit District -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

105 EMS 62,764.72$               Payroll
14,934.81$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

109 Criminal Justice Payroll
Claims/Treasurer Checks

134 Fire Dept Facility Maint & Cap Imp -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

136 Visitor Promotion 1,666.51$                 Claims/Treasurer Checks

202 Fire Station Construction Bond -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

307 Capital Improvement 183,863.94$             Claims/Treasurer Checks

308 Comp Plan Capital Improvements Payroll
104,802.17$             Claims/Treasurer Checks

401 Natural Gas Operations -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

402 Water Sewer Operations 124,382.19$             Payroll
48,655.90$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

403 Solid Waste -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

16



FUND # FUND NAME AMOUNT ITEM

405 Sewer Construction 1,904.90$                 Claims/Treasurer Checks

406 Water Construction 50,627.92$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

407 Storm Drain Operation & Maint 37,291.10$               Payroll
10,403.63$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

408 Stormwater Construction 15,452.19$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

430 Utility Equipment Reserve -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

631 Municipal Court Trust -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

632 Custodial Activities 15,127.03$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

Total Payroll 684,531.00$             

Total Claims & Treasurer Checks 1,023,360.06$          

Date Approved by Council - Finance Director, Sandi Hines

Payroll = July- mid-month draw & end of month
Claims = July- all batches

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. REGULAR AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

18



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

19



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

20



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

21



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

22



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

23



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

24



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

25



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

26



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

27



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

28



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

29



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

30



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

31



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

32



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

33



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

34



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

35



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

36



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

37



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

38



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

39



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

40



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

41



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

42



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

43



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

44



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

45



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

46



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

47



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

48



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

49



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

50



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

51



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

52



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

53



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

54



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

55



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

56



City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

57



2024-2044
Comprehensive
Plan
Update

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

58



Credits

Mayor
Beau Burkett

City Council
Ron Smith
Mackenzie Anderson
Kenny Arsanto
Amanda Burbank
Denice Bergerson
Connie Bender
Brandon Green

Planning Commission
Lorna Anderson
Ashley Ferrero
Mel Garland
David Griffin
Matt McCollum
Mark McPhail
Robert Wohfeil

Staff
Courtney Brunell, City Administrator
Chris Farnsworth, Senior City Planner
Chris Banks, Director of Public Services
Erin Snodgrass, Parks & Recreation Director

Consultants
Framework Cultural Placemaking
Gray & Osborne
Blueline (Housing Action Plan, Appendix B)

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

59



 Introduction� 3

 Planning Policy Framework� 7
8	 Background
8	 State, Regional and County Context

 Vision & Community Layout� 13
14	 Introduction
14	 Community Vision
15	 Vision Statements

 Land Use + Community Design� 19
20	 Introduction
20	 Background
20	 Planning Framework
23	 Future Land Use Map
29	 Goals and Policies
35	 Land Use Goals and the Community 

Vision

 Housing� 41
42	 Introduction
49	 Goals & Policies
54	 Housing Goals and the Community 

Vision

 Economic Development� 59
60	 Introduction
60	 Existing Conditions
67	 Goals and Policies
70	 Economic Development Goals and the 

Community Vision

 Parks & Recreation� 75
76	 Introduction
76	 Buckley Parks Overview
80	 Park Access
82	 Public Engagement
84	 Facilities Inventory
88	 Goals and Policies
90	 Parks & Recreation Goals and the 

Community Vision

 Capital Facilities & Utilities� 95
96	 Introduction
99	 Existing Facilities 
114	 Goals and Policies
122	 Capital Facilities & Utilities Goals and 

the Community Vision

 Transportation� 129
130	 Introduction
132	 Goals & Policies
137	 Transportation Goals and the Com-

munity Vision

 Map Folio & Glossary� 143
144	 Map Folio
152	 Glossary

Buckley 
Comprehensive Plan 
Update 2024-’44

1 | Table of Contents

What’s inside.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

60



2 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

61



3 | Introduction

Introduction

I.
In

tr
o.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

62



4 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Welcome to Buckley’s 2024 Comprehensive 
Plan Update. The comprehensive planning 
process is an opportunity to align Buckley’s 
internal needs and vision for the future with 
what is happening across Washington State 
more broadly. Since Buckley’s last Compre-
hensive Plan Update in 2015, many changes 
have occured in state and regional policies 
that impact how the city plans for the future. 
Simultaneously, the planning process gives the 
City and opportunity to consider what types of 
incentives, funding structures and capital in-
vestments it wants to develop to make the city 
a more liveable and vibrant place for residents. 
Most of the time, the City operates at a day 
to day level of reviewing permits and admin-
istering plans. The Comprehensive Planning 
process is an opportunity to zoom out and view 
the City holistically and to ask some big ques-
tions, like whether the city’s land use pattern is 
supporting the economic development resi-
dents would like to see, or whether the city’s 
zoning and code allow a wide range of  housing 
types to accomodate different types of house-
holds in different stages of life. 
Buckley also experiences many of the housing 
and employment pressures felt in the region 

Welcome To

Buckley in 2044

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

63



5 | Introduction

In
tr

o.

more broadly. As discussed in the Planning 
and Policy Framework found in Chapter 2, the 
comprehensive planning process is governed 
by the Washington State Growth Management 
Act, a piece of legislation that was adopted to 
give the state strategic tools to focus growth 
in employment and housing across the state. 
Initially a key goal of that legislation was to pre-
serve resource land by reducing sprawl. The 
Act does this by focusing growth around major 
transportation corridors and employment 
hubs which additionally reduces infrastructure 
needs and increases service administration 
efficiency and economic vibrancy. 
Since the last plan update, the state legisla-
ture has updated the Growth Management 
Act in several key ways that have implications 
for Buckley’s plan. The biggest change is the 
adoption of HB 1220. a piece of legislation de-
signed to increase the production of affordable 
housing across the state. Historically, the GMA 
triggered the creation of housing growth tar-
gets that cities needed to accomodate through 
their land use planning (for instance, Buck-
ley might need to provide space for 500 new 
units), but there was no mandate to provide 
space for affordable housing. Affordable hous-
ing typically requires higher density allowances 

to develop - single family residential develop-
ment is typically not affordable to those mak-
ing below area median income. To help rectify 
the housing shortage, HB 1220 disaggregates 
the city’s  housing growth target into different 
income brackets so that it must provide space 
for apartments and middle housing types. This 
has large implications for Buckley’s future 
land use designations and the zoning and code 
decisions that stem from it. These changes are 
reflected in the Future Land Use Map found in 
the Land Use Element.
Because of Buckley’s small size and distance 
from a major employment center, the City is 
not subject to several other big housing re-
quirement changes. However, many of the 
goals and policies in the housing and land use 
elements are modified to coordinate with 
state, regional and county goals. 
This plan is the product of many different city 
efforts, including extensive community en-
gagement, that inform the Plan’s vision, some 
significant changes to the Future Land Use 
Map and the city’s economic development 
strategy, and other priorities reflected in the 
Plan. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

64



6 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

65



II.
7 | Introduction

Planning Policy 
Framework

Pl
an

ni
ng

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

66



8 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Planning & Policy Framework

Background
Comprehensive planning is a fundamen-
tal method for calibrating state, regional, 
county, and municipal goals and objectives 
and linking them to strategic policies and 
actions to guide the City over a twen-
ty-year planning period. Comprehensive 
plans are updated every twenty years with 
periodic updates every ten to ensure that 
the city is growing and changing in align-
ment with the Plan. Each planning effort 
includes significant community engage-
ment, as well as coordination and par-
ticipation between city agencies, boards 
and elected officials. Comprehensive 
planning is a rare opportunity for collab-
oration across departments and across 
the community that can result in positive 
and coordinated growth that respects and 
enhances community character.

State, Regional and 
County Context
Washington State Growth 
Management Act (GMA)
Although prepared and approved by the City, 

Office of Financial Man-
agement (OFM) pro-
duces county growth 
projections

Counties and other mem-
ber organizations within 
Puget Sound Regional 
Council collectively decide 
on regional growth target 
within OFM projected pop-
ulation range.

PSRC allocates growth to 
Counties

Pierce County work with 
constituent cities to allo-
cate county job and hous-
ing growth.

Buckley allocates jobs and 
housing within the city 
based on existing land 
capacity (how much land is 
vacant or redevelopable).

Figure PPF-1  Growth Allocation Methodology

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

67



9 | Introduction

Pl
an

ni
ng

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

Buckley is guided by Washington State plan-
ning requirements that are contained in state 
legal codes and the Growth Management 
Act (GMA), which is codified in RCW Chap-
ter 36.70A and in other related and amended 
sections of the Revised Code of Washington 
(RCW). As the name indicates, the Growth 
Management Act was adopted in 1990 to en-
sure strategic growth in the state that pre-
serves resource lands and coordinates density 
in jobs and housing within existing regional 
centers. This is based on the logic that strate-
gic density reduces infrastructure and other 
costs and resource consumption while pre-
serving Washington’s environmental assets.

Planning Purpose
The purpose of the Comprehensive Plan as 
articulated by state legislation, is to create a 
policy framework that guides subsequent plan-
ning efforts within city agencies, development 
regulations and daily actions of the city. It is 
intended to be a central resource linking goals 
and objectives, municipal policies, local stan-
dards, and implementation actions. Important-
ly, State legislation includes a requirement that 
zoning, capital expenditures and development 
regulations conform to the Goals, Policies and 
Actions articulated in the Comprehensive Plan.

Coordinating State, Region, 
County and Local Growth in 
Employment and Housing

In advance of planning efforts, the Office of 
Financial Management (OFM) provides a range 
of population projections for Washington 
Counties so that the Counties can plan appro-
priately to accommodate anticipated growth. 
For large metropolitan regions such as Puget 
Sound, a regional body acts as an intermediary 
for these growth allocations. In Puget Sound, 
Members of Puget Sound Regional Council 
(PSRC) including Snohomish, Kitsap, King and 
Pierce Counties as well as the region’s tribes, 
cities, transit agencies and port districts work 
together to set a regional growth target and 
then allocate growth to the respective coun-
ties. This ensures that large transit and other 
regional infrastructure investments are co-
ordinated with growth in employment and 
housing. Finally, the counties work with their 
constituent cities to allocate jobs and housing, 
and each city allocates growth within its urban 
growth area.

Coordinating State, Region, 
County and Local Planning 
Policies
The GMA triggers comprehensive plans at the 
regional, county and city levels. Countywide 
Planning Policies must be consistent with the 
regional comprehensive plan, and city com-
prehensive plans must be consistent with both 
regional and county plans. For Buckley, this 
means that this Comprehensive Plan must 
conform to state requirements, PSRC’s Vision 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

68



10 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

2050 and Pierce Planning Policies. In the last several years, major amend-
ments to the Growth Management Act, Vision 2050 and Countywide Plan-
ning Policies include provisions to address deficits in affordable housing, 
climate adaptation and mitigation, and racially disparate impact.
For more context on the Growth Management Act, Vision 2050 and other 
upstream regulations that inform the Comprehensive Plan, please  refer to 

the Existing Conditions report in Volume II.

Framework, 2023

BUCKLEY 
VISION

BUCKLEY 
GOALS AND 

POLICIES

PIERCE 
COUNTYWIDE 

PLANNING 
POLICIES

PSRC VISION 
2050

WASHINGTON 
GROWTH 

MANAGEMENT 
ACT

Figure PPF-2  Diagram of Governing Documents influencing the Comprehensive Plan

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

69



11 | Introduction

Pl
an

ni
ng

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

Plan Components
The Buckley Comprehensive Plan follows the framework of Community Vision, 
Land use element which includes the Future Land Use Map, Plan Elements and 
Implementation Action Plan. Each Plan Element includes a series of Goals and 
Policies. Finally, a section on plan implementation includes concrete actions the 
city can take to advance the goals and policies.
For the purposes of this document, the terms "Goal," "Policy", and "Action" 
are defined as follows:
01.	  Goal – Goals are broad statements indicating a general aim or purpose to 

be achieved. A goal is a direction setter, an ideal future end, condition, or 
state related to the public health, safety, or general welfare toward which 
planning and implementation measures are directed.

02.	  Policy – Policies are topic-specific statements designed to address a 
specific objective, providing guidelines for current and future decision-
making to make progress towards achieving that objective. A policy 
indicates a clear commitment of the local legislative body. A policy is 
an extension of a plan’s goals, reflecting topical nuance as well as an 
assessment of conditions.

03.	 Action – Actions are budget-able steps envisioned or undertaken to 
implement plan policies. Actions may include the development of 
more detailed and localized plans, work to implement policies, formal 
agreements, and regulations or other strategies.

All Goals, Policies and Actions are written to achieve compliance with the 
Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A.070(1), PSRC Vision 2050, and Pierce 
County Planning Policies while furthering the vision articulated by community 
members found in the following chapter.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

70



III.
12 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

71



III.
13 | Vision

Vision & Community 
Layout

Vi
si

on
.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

72



14 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Vision & Community Layout

Introduction
The Comprehensive Plan is the City’s 
framework for the future. It is the plan 
that directs the future our residents 
want. This plan identifies strategies to 
make the best possible town that we 
can make. Through this plan we assert 
that our City’s residents aren’t just 
numbers – we are family and friends.

Community Vision
The City is committed to ensuring that 
the components that contribute to 
its quality of life including affordable 
housing, a healthy natural environ-
ment, good schools, efficient govern-
ment, and excellent infrastructure 
are available for all residents and for 
future generations. Buckley residents 
want this city to become a more 
vibrant and attractive place to live, 
work, and play by finding a balance 
between support for economic devel-
opment and population growth while 
retaining and protecting the City’s 
small-town charm and amazing enir-

ronmental assets.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

73



15 | Vision

Vi
si

on
.

Vision Statements
Sustaining and fostering 
town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...
01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 

downtown where people meet each other 
face-to-face, where small businesses can 
thrive, and with housing close at hand 
that support a high quality of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the rural 
quality of life farther from City center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic space 
and park system.

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents with 
high quality roads, utilities, environmental 
amenities and services.

Economic development of 
the Downtown Core and State 
Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...
07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that 

creates a friendly gateway to our city with 
more retail, small businesses and housing 
that is community oriented and provides 
new places for residents and visitors to 
live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recre-
ational activities.
In 2044, Buckley will...
08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through 

for outdoor recreation enthusiasts 
availing themselves of our area’s natural 
beauty through concerted infrastructure 
and facility investment and support for 
recreation-oriented businesses. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

74



16 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

01

08

07

06

05

04

03

02

01

Community Vision & Plan Element 
Connections

Land Use Housing Economic 
Development

Capital Facilities 
& Utilities

Parks & 
Recreation

TransportationVision 
Statement

vibrant, 
compact, 
walkable 

downtown

denser downtown 
and 410 Corridor

unique history 
at the forefront 

affordable 
and accessible 

housing 

safe and inviting

strategic and 
efficient use of 
public dollars

enhanced 410 
Corridor creates  
friendly gateway 

to the city

destination 
for outdoor 
recreation 

enthusiasts 

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

75



17 | Vision

Vi
si

on
.

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

VISION Plan Elements

Land Use Housing
Economic 

Development
Capital Facilities 

& Utilities
Parks & 

Recreation
Transportation

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

76



18 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

77



01
19 | Land Use & Community Design

Land Use + Community 
Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

78



20 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Land Use & Community Design

Introduction
The term “land use” refers not only to the type 
of activities that can occur on a piece of land, 
but also which activities occur alongside oth-
ers. Generally, land use refers to the plan for 
orderly and coordinated land development and 
uses for buildings and land within the city. 

Background
Planning Framework
GMA
Under the Growth Management Act (GMA) 
the land use element designates the general 
distribution and general location and extent 
of all land uses, including housing, commerce, 
industry, recreation, open spaces, public util-
ities, public facilities, and other land uses. The 
land use element includes population densities, 
building intensities, and estimates of future 
population growth. Every jurisdiction planning 
under the GMA needs to address several key 
topics in the goals and policies of the Land Use 
Element including groundwater protection, 
public health, environmental hazard and pol-
lution mitigation, identification of open space 
corridors, and corridors useful for consolidated 
infrastructure (such as co-locating roads and 
utilities). As indicated in the planning policy 
framework, Buckley’s Comprehensive Plan 
must also adhere to policies found in Puget 

Sound Regional Council’s (PSRC) Vision 2050 
and Pierce Countywide Planning Policies.

PSRC
Key themes that must be included from Vision 
2050 include supporting the development of 
compact urban communities and central loca-
tions that support walkability, using land use 
to reduce health disparities, promoting infill 
and counteracting historical policies and land 
use practices that resulted in racially disparate 
impact including racial exclusion and finally 
preserving cultural heritage.

Pierce Countywide Planning 
Policies
For land use, Pierce County’s primary interests 
include supporting public health through land 
use planning, including coordination of housing 
and retail uses, reducing greenhouse gas emis-
sions and the impact of environmental hazards 
produced by climate change such as flooding 
and excessive heat and the production of high 
quality and community oriented places.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

79



21 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

Population and growth Allocation
In 2020, Buckley’s population was 5,114 individuals within 1,854 households (average household 
size was three members). Buckley is anticipated to grow by around 3,121 individuals in the next 
20 years. To accommodate new residents and better support existing residents, Buckley needs to 
add an additional 1,260 housing units and 1,080 jobs. Washington State faces a critical shortage 
of units, which has resulted  in a lack of affordable housing particularly near major growth centers. 
In 2022, the Growth Management Act was amended to require that cities provide zoned capacity 
for affordable housing. Affordable housing typically requires higher density allowances, because 
land value and construction costs are usually too high to provide affordable single family homes. 
For households making 0-50% of area median income and particularly those that cannot live fully 
independently, the most feasible form of housing is low to mid rise apartments. For this reason, 
the future land use map that follows, will allow some higher density housing in certain parts of the 
city. For more information on housing, please see Housing Element.

Figure LU-1  Growth Targets

Existing Population (2020): 
5,114

Population Growth Target 
(2044): 8,235 (+3,121)

Existing Housing Supply 
(2020): 1,957 Units

Housing Growth Target 
(2044): 3,217 (+1,260)

Existing Employment (2020): 
2,241 Jobs

Employment Growth Target 
(2044): 3,321 (+1,080)

Pierce County Buildable Lands Report 2022

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

80



22 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Housing 
Capacity

Jobs Capacity

Growth Target # of jobs/units 1,261 1,080
Growth Capacity # of jobs/units 1,450 1,510

Central Commercial (CC) -5 266
General Commercial (GC) -2 701
Historic Commercial (HC) 0 1

High Density Residential (HDR) 84 0
Light Industrial (LI) -1 101

Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) 247 195
Public (P) 0 177

R-20,000 102 14
R-6,000 383 6
R-8,000 642 49

Pierce County Buildable Lands Report, 2022

Figure LU-3  Buildable Lands Capacity Based on Existing Zoning

Buildable Lands inventory summary based on current zoning
The table below shows the anticipated number of units and jobs that Buckley can accommodate 
with its existing zoning regulations (based on dwelling units/acre and jobs/acre). The numbers 
come from Pierce County’s buildable lands report which models development and redevelopment 
potential for parcels across the city. As the table shows, Buckley needs to allow more density to 
accommodate the number of housing units required by Pierce County (the existing zoning falls 
507 housing units short). The Future Land Use Map and the zoning and development regulations 
that flow from it will allow the densities required to accommodate the housing target.

0-30%
Total

PSH * Non-
PSH

>30-
50%

>50-
80%

>80-
100%

>100-
120% >120%

Estimated Housing 
Supply (2020)

1,957
0 41 145 537 436 305 493

Housing Allocation by 
income bracket

1,261
220 163 234 185 80 72 307

*Permanent Supportive Housing
Pierce County Buildable Lands Report 2022

Figure LU-2  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

81



23 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

Figure LU-3  Buildable Lands Capacity Based on Existing Zoning

Future Land Use Map
The future land use map is divided into a number of different land use designations that develop 
an integrated planning approach. In the past, Buckley has emphasized separating industrial and 
manufacturing uses from the city’s predominantly residential areas using commercial and mixed 
use buffers. 

Strategic Moves:
Distribution of the zones is partly based on city history, city vision, and utility. Some sites within 
the city are zoned because of their histories as an active industrial site that began before zoning 
was implemented.
In this iteration of the Plan, the intent is to regulate form more and land uses less particularly 
along the 410 corridor. We intend to emphasize form because traditional Euclidean zoning often 
produces areas with hard edges that feel incompatible. Many uses that occur in Buckley are fairly 
low intensity particularly in light industrial and commercial areas, but because of lot configuration 
and built form they create unsightly or unfriendly spaces with very little interaction with the street 
or integration with their neighboring environment. By intentionally regulating form, we can pro-
duce better built environments without significantly curtailing the types of businesses and resi-
dential uses that call Buckley home. 

Key areas:
410 Corridor

Historically, zoning and land use regulations along Highway 410 have produced sprawling devel-
opment with significant parking and diffuse uses like self storage and contractor yards that are 
extremely auto oriented and  barely interact with the street. As a gateway to Buckley, these areas 
have a role to play in providing welcoming spaces for visitors and residents alike and in generat-
ing more revenue for the City. New development regulations will focus on creating a “commercial 
flex” zone along the western extent of Highway 410 to allow existing uses, while pushing  the cor-
ridor towards a more interactive and city serving form. 
Historic Commercial

Buckley’s Historic Main Street  is a huge asset to the community as one of the few areas with 
complete sidewalks and access to the interurban trail, many parks, and civic spaces. Because of 
the existing built form, this area is key to producing a more walkable and accessible Buckley, and 
consequently, the area surrounding Historic Main Street allows higher density housing and mixed 
use development. Pairing higher density housing with existing services and high volume utilities 
reduces the costs of administering services in the city. This is part of the rationale of locating 
Buckley’s highest density housing along the eastern extent of the 410 corridor as well. 
Residential Distribution Strategy
In 2024, Buckley has a mixture of residential zones and permits mixed use development in the 
majority of commercial areas in the city except for Historic Commercial. Buckley’s zoning permits 

0-30%
Total

PSH * Non-
PSH

>30-
50%

>50-
80%

>80-
100%

>100-
120% >120%

Estimated Housing 
Supply (2020)

1,957
0 41 145 537 436 305 493

Housing Allocation by 
income bracket

1,261
220 163 234 185 80 72 307

*Permanent Supportive Housing
Pierce County Buildable Lands Report 2022

Figure LU-2  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

82



24 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

a wide range of multi unit dwellings in many residential zones. 
This includes expanded low-density multifamily development 
within the higher-density residential zones of R-6,000 and 
R-8,000 like duplexes, triplexes, and some types of multiplexes. 
Expanding multifamily uses within R-6,000 and R-8,000 zones 
follows the GMA directive to provide a diverse range of housing 
types, but retains Buckley’s small-town character (ability to 
walk from place to place, meet with other residents in safe envi-
rons and be socially aware of other residents - generally produc-
ing a neighborly place to live). In the future land use map these 
areas are denoted as “Neighborhood residential” indicating 
that this part of the city will include primarily detached residen-
tial uses while allowing some middle housing types to increase 
affordability. Changes to the development regulations which are 
modified in conjunction with the Comprehensive Plan are de-
signed to reduce barriers for this type of housing development.
Pockets along 112th Street and Pearl Street are slated for Buckley’s highest density mixed use de-
velopment. This provides the zoned capacity that the city needs in order to accommodate Pierce 
County’s low income housing allocation. This area will allow apartment buildings because house-
holds making 0-50% of area median income typically can only find housing in midrise apartments 
(3-4 stories). Allowing this higher density housing on the Southern edge of the city will reduce 
some of the impact of height on obscuring views of Mount Rainier while balancing access to a main 
transportation corridor, services and amenities for high density housing.
Two land use designations are left in the Future Land Use map: the public (P) zone and the Natu-
ral (N) zone. Public zones include existing public properties, such as city hall, public parks, public 
schools, and public services. The N zone abuts the river and the city’s uplands and corresponds to 
areas regulated by the City’s Shoreline Management Program.  

Figure LU-4  Future Land Use 
Map

Growth 
Target

Corridor 
Mixed Use 
Capacity

Urban High 
Density 

Capacity

Urban Low 
Density 

Capacity
Total 

Capacity

Additional 
Capacity 

over target

Employment 1,080 1288 12 70 1370 +290
Housing 1,261 122 1036 1207 2365 +1104
0-30 PSH 220 0 220 0 220 0

0-30 Non-PSH 163 0 163 0 163 0
30-50% AMI 234 0 234 0 234 0
50-80% AMI 185 0 185 0 185 0

80-100% AMI 80 0 80 300 380 +300
100-120% AMI 72 50 154 407 611 +539

120%+ AMI 307 72 0 500 572 +265
Pierce County Buildable Lands Report, 2022 (for calculations and assumptions see Appendix A)

Figure LU-5  Buildable Lands Capacity Analysis Based on updated FLUM

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

83



25 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

The map is divided 
into land use 
designations within 
commercial, mixed 
use, residential, public 
and open space types. 
The FLUM should not 
be read as a zoning 
map – within each of 
the listed land use 
designations different 
types of zoning can 
occur so long as they 
fit under the umbrella 
of the designation.

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

84



26 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Goal and Policy Themes: 
The goals and policies in this chapter are de-
signed to further the goals and mandates artic-
ulated in the Growth Management Act, Vision 
2050 and the Pierce Planning Policies while 
balancing local needs and desires expressed in 
the Community Vision. One of the important 
functions of the Land Use element is to coordi-
nate The key themes include:
Creation of a friendly, people centered 
city

One of the key goals of both Pierce’s Planning 
Policies, Vision 2050 and the City of Buckley 
is to create a built form that enhances public 
health and happiness by creating walkable and 
amenity rich spaces throughout the city. Be-
cause of Buckley’s size, it makes sense to focus 
those areas in existing hubs, and especially the 
historic city center. However, several neigh-
borhood mixed use areas are defined in the 
future land use map to promote little commu-
nity serving areas around the city. The city also 
intends to establish policies that incentivize 
community serving businesses such as gro-
ceries and pharmacies to establish in Buckley. 
Since the development of the last Comprehen-
sive Plan, Buckley has passed design guidelines 
intended to enhance the city’s built form that 
have a strong fidelity to the city’s history as a 
railroad town. 
Rectifying Racially Disparate Impact

At the state level, an important development 
since the last Comprehensive Plan update is 
a focus on rectifying policies and actions that 
have systematically diminished opportunities 
for people of color in Washington State over 
time. Depending on the place, this might look 
like active displacement, differential access to 
amenities, schools and services, dispropor-
tionate exposure to environmental hazards or, 
in Buckley’s case a large discrepancy in racial 
makeup (92% of Buckley residents identify as 
white (not Hispanic or Latino) as opposed to 

City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025
 

85



27 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

63.7% of Pierce County residents). This type 
of discrepancy is usually indicative of racial 
exclusion. Factors that can contribute to racial 
exclusion include a lack of affordable housing 
(often produced by a heavy preponderance of 
single family zoned areas), and lack of trans-
portation and economic opportunity. Buckley is 
remote, however even compared to neighbor-
ing cities Enumclaw and Bonney Lake, Buckley 
lacks diversity (Enumclaw and Bonney Lake are 
79% and 76% White (not Hispanic or Latino) 
respectively). This plan focuses on what is most 
in Buckley’s control - decreasing barriers to 
affordable housing.
Resource protection, Environmental 
Hazard and Climate Mitigation

The area adjacent to the White River sustains 
healthy populations of fish, mammals, birds, 
insects, reptiles, amphibians and plant life. This 
biodiversity should be protected. It is import-
ant to consider long-term ecosystem health 
and work to maintain adequate habitat and 
ensure the continued viability of a diversity of 
species to ensure the waterfront is an ecolog-
ically thriving resource for future generations. 
The land use element is the only element in 
the Comprehensive Plan that discusses critical 
areas, storm water, and pollution controls. The 
city’s only flood plains are next to the river; the 
steepest slopes are on the north side between 
the residential areas and the river where the 
city’s Shoreline Management Program allows 
no residential or commercial development. 
Preventing development along the White River 
also reduces the potential for residential flood-
ing brought whose risk is intensified by climate 
change.  Buckley is surrounded by unincorpo-
rated land, much of which is forested and sus-
ceptible to wildfire. As the climate warms, cit-
ies like Buckley, located on the wildland urban 
interface, need to take precautions to alleviate 
the risk of wildfire. The Washington State De-
partment of Natural Resources is responsible 

for creating up to date maps of the Wildland 
Urban Interface to assist jurisdictions as they 
complete their land use planning. WADNR was 
in the process of updating the WUI map during 
Plan development, and as such, the map did 
not drive planning efforts (See the Map Folio at 
the end of the Plan for the existing WUI map). 
As a member of the East Pierce Interlocal Co-
alition for Emergency Management, Buckley 
works with other local jurisdiction on hazard 
mitigation including for potential forest fires. 
Pierce County Planning Policies highlight the 
importance of planning for climate resiliency 
and mitigation, and several policies have been 
added to comply with those mandates.
Intergovernmental coordination

Buckley’s success is linked to both its neigh-
bors as well as regional and state governing 
bodies and agencies such as the Department 
of Transportation (WSDOT). Many land use 
decisions need to be made based on an un-
derstanding of what is happening outside the 
city. This is particularly true for coordinating 
development with transportation investment 
(not only highways, but also bike and pedestri-
an trails and pathways) as well as developing 
contiguous habitat corridors and managing 
watersheds. Buckley should communicate and 
work with these other agencies to maximize 
the impact of City investments.
Residential land use

Preserving the beneficial elements of Buckley’s 
historic rural character includes maintaining 
open spaces and view corridors to help encour-
age an outdoor aesthetic and access to nature. 
Encouraging clustering of development allows 
maintenance of open space and helps protect 
sensitive areas, while reducing the cost of pro-
viding utilities and services. Adding density and 
height allowances in certain locations is cru-
cial for ensuring that housing types affordable 
to low income households can be built within 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
86



28 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

the city, a need demonstrated by the Housing Action Plan, and mandated by the 
State of Washington.
Economic Development

Commercial uses in Buckley should enhance the quality of life for residents by 
providing needed services, employment, and tax revenues to finance public 
services. The “mix” of commercial services refers to both physical integration 
(among commercial and residential uses) and composition (type) of commercial 
establishments. Commercial and residential uses should be physically integrated 
with one another along the northeast SR 410 corridor, through adequate motor-
ized and non-motorized transportation connections. Locating denser housing 
and retail near each other provides the customer base for businesses to thrive.
Transportation

Land use and transportation policies address the relationship between the land 
use pattern and a multimodal transportation system. For instance, when jobs, 
shops and services are long distances from residential areas, it translates into ad-
ditional vehicle or transit trips. Allowing residential and nonresidential uses to be 
located in closer proximity to one another make walking or bicycling more fea-
sible and reduces stress on roadways. Coordinating land use and transit invest-
ments is incredibly important for mitigating greenhouse gas emissions as well as 
for improving quality of life by reducing the amount of time people need to spend 
in their cars in gridlock.
Parks Recreation and Open Space

One of the primary goals of Parks Recreation and Open space is to improve well 
being and public health in addition to supporting local habitat. To that end, many 
of the goals and policies below are about integrating parks and open spaces into 
the fabric of the city so that they are both easily accessible and improve access to 
other uses like connecting housing with retail. Buckley’s Foothills Trail is a major 
piece of this puzzle.
Public Facilities and Utilities

The purpose of this goal is to improve quality of life for existing and future devel-
opment by establishing and maintaining level of service standards. The size and 
location of public facilities and utilities influence the pattern of land development; 
therefore, provision must be consistent with the policies described in all sections 
of the Comprehensive Plan. In addition to regular utilities and capital facilities, 
The State Growth Management Act requires local government comprehensive 
plans to include a process for identifying and siting essential public facilities, 
which are public or quasi-public facilities, such as airports, state educational 
facilities, state and local correctional facilities, solid waste handling facilities, 
mental health facilities, and group homes. No local comprehensive plan or devel-
opment regulation may preclude the siting of essential public facilities. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
87



29 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

Goals and Policies
LU 1	 BUCKLEY SHOULD PURSUE LAND USE STRATEGIES THAT CONTRIBUTE 

TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF CITY RESIDENTS
LU 1.1	 Buckley's land use decisions and subsequent housing, capital facilities 

and transportation planning should produce a dense, walkable historic 
town center and 410 corridor with safe and accessible housing, retail 
and open space that can be accessed by a robust bike and pedestrian 
network.

LU 1.2	 The City should prioritize locating affordable housing in areas with 
access to services, amenities, sidewalks and trails and to the extent 
possible, transit.

LU 2	 BUCKLEY SHOULD CONTINUE TO ENHANCE IT'S SMALL TOWN 
AND NEIGHBORLY CHARACTER BY PURSUING LAND USE AND 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS THAT PRESERVE THE HISTORICAL 
HERITAGE OF THE COMMUNITY AND PRIORITIZE A HIGH QUALITY OF 
LIFE.
LU 2.1	 In the historic downtown, balance preservation of historic buildings 

while pursuing design standards that create comfort and accessibility 
using sidewalk design, attention to the interface between the sidewalk 
and first floor retail and protection from the elements including street 
trees and awnings.

LU 2.2	 Buckley should provide infrastructure, amenities and development 
regulations that enhance community life including programs to expand 
urban tree canopy coverage, civic spaces for connection and rest, and 
a vibrant and walkable downtown that feels safe and inviting to visitors 
and residents alike.

LU 2.3	 In the historic downtown and 410 corridor, pursue strategies to create 
high enough density to support grocery stores and other needed 
amenities, alternate transportation options and civic spaces.

LU 2.4	 Strategically expand non motorized access between Downtown, the 410 
corridor and residential areas to reduce the need for cars in day to day 
life.

LU 2.5	 Encourage mixed use development in commercial and mixed use zones 
to ensure that housing is collocated with services and amenities.

LU 2.6	 Development in the city should promote livability by requiring 
developers to provide connections to pedestrian trails and/or sidewalks, 
encouraging development consistent with the city’s history and design 
standards, and by limiting stress factors such as noise, traffic, and 
damage to existing ecology through strategic land use planning and 
development standards.

LU 2.7	 The city should continue to pursue strategies to preserve Buckley's 
historic buildings which contribute to the city's strong community 
identity and character.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
88



30 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

LU 2.8	 The city should formally designate the area between Ryan and Park, and 
between SR 410 and River the city’s center of local importance (CoLI).

LU 3	 CONTINUE TO RECTIFY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN BUCKLEY'S 
DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILE AND PIERCE COUNTY'S BY INCREASING 
AFFORDABILITY AND PURSUING POLICIES THAT WELCOME A 
DIVERSITY OF NEWCOMERS INTO THE CITY.
LU 3.1	 Ensure that all planning efforts include an outreach component that 

targets underserved, minority and low income residents
LU 3.2	 Prior to proposed land use and development regulation changes, 

evaluate whether those changes could adversely impact underserved, 
minority and low income residents. If so, pursue outreach activities 
to mitigate potential impacts and identify alternative solutions where 
possible.

LU 3.3	 Alleviate historic housing inequality (Buckley's diversity in 2024 is 
significantly lower than Pierce County at large with 91% of City residents 
identifying as white not hispanic) by expanding access to affordable 
housing particularly for underserved and minority populations and by 
preserving existing affordable housing within the city.

LU 4	 COORDINATE WITH PIERCE COUNTY, REGIONAL AUTHORITIES, 
NEIGHBORING JURISDICTIONS AND NONPROFITS TO CREATE 
OPPORTUNITIES FOR MUTUAL IMPROVEMENTS.
LU 4.1	 The city councils and planning commissions of Buckley and its 

neighboring jurisdictions should conduct annual meetings to discuss 
growth directions and development on the plateau, to exchange 
information, to review common issues, to establish ad hoc working 
committees for resolution of any issues, and to serve as an education 
tool for the public.

LU 4.2	 The Cities of Buckley and Bonney Lake should establish a joint planning 
area that allows city input in the development review process for areas 
located between the two city jurisdictions.

LU 4.3	 The City should continue working with DSHS to increase the uses on 
leased properties that are part of the Rainier School and plan proactively 
in the event that the school is decommissioned.

LU 4.4	 The City should work with the Pierce County Biodiversity Alliance to help 
develop the stewardship plan for the Lower White River Stewardship 
Plan.

LU 4.5	 The City should work with the Mt. Rainier National Park Commission 
to research infrastructure improvements and media accessibility to 
transform the city into an active Carbon River Corridor, Sunrise, and the 
Chinook Pass gateway destination.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
89



31 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

LU 4.6	 The City should work with private or nonprofit organizations that aid 
low- and moderate-income families.

LU 4.7	 The City should continue working with Pierce County, King County, 
WSDOT, Washington State Park and Recreation Commission and other 
local jurisdictions to complete the Foothills Trail to Enumclaw, South 
Prairie, Wilkeson, Carbonado, and Fairfax.

LU 4.8	 The City to should continue work with neighboring communities 
to identify and implement measures designed to enhance tourism, 
recreational development and economic development through 
exploring and sharing historic knowledge and information about our 
common heritage.

LU 4.9	 The city should continue joint use agreements with the school district 
to maximize the availability of facilities for recreational and other public 
uses.

LU 4.10	 The city should establish or update an annexation policy to address 
immediate and long term plans for growth that creates logical 
boundaries and reasonable service areas on land that can physically 
accommodate development.

LU 5	 PRESERVE, PROTECT AND ENHANCE BUCKLEY'S ENVIRONMENT 
INCLUDING WETLANDS, HABITAT CORRIDORS AND OTHER CRITICAL 
AREAS IN ORDER TO PREVENT FLOODING, EXPAND RECREATION 
OPPORTUNITIES AND SUPPORT LOCAL WILDLIFE.

LU 5.1	 Encourage developers to use low impact development techniques to 
reduce pollution and mitigate other stresses on critical areas.

LU 5.2	 Pursue zoning strategies that focus growth away from critical areas to 
reduce the risk of flooding and other environmental hazards.

LU 5.3	 Preserve, protect and enhance wetlands.
a.	 Prioritize the protection of contiguous wetland corridors to provide 

habitat for local wildlife.
b.	 Some of Buckley’s farmland includes drained or altered wetlands. 

Where appropriate, restore historic wetlands in areas that are no 
longer used for farming.

LU 5.4	 Periodically monitor drainage, flooding, and stormwater runoff within 
Buckley and as needed, address with development regulations that 
reduce pollution and retain water on site or as close to site as feasible.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
90



32 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

LU 5.5	 Identify and develop a program to designate open space corridors 
within Buckley that augment County efforts to support local wildlife 
and reduce flood risk, while providing new opportunities for outdoor 
recreation.

LU 5.6	 Buckley should protect and restore native vegetation and encourage 
management of nonnative and invasive species. Assessment of existing 
urban tree canopy coverage and adopt strategies to expand tree canopy 
coverage that will help to alleviate the impact of summer heat events.

LU 5.7	 Adopt appropriate sections of the wildland urban interface code developed 
by the International Code Council to mitigate wildfire risk. Support city 
residents in wildfire adaptation and preparedness.

LU 6	 BUCKLEY SHOULD PURSUE LAND USE PLANNING THAT CO-LOCATES 
RESOURCE EFFICIENT MULTIFAMILY AND MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT 
WITH AMENITIES TO REDUCE RELIANCE ON CARS AND PER CAPITA 
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS.
LU 6.1	 Buckley should promote infill development near the Historic Commercial 

area and along the 410 corridor to support existing and future business 
development and a more sustainable built environment.

LU 6.2	 To enhance community understanding of Buckley's critical areas, 
Buckley should develop a publically accessible critical areas map that 
includes wildlife protection areas, frequently flooded areas, aquifer 
recharge areas and geologically hazardous areas according to best 
available science and as a supplement to the Critical Areas Ordinance.

HO 6.3	 Provide development regulations and procedures that reduce cost barriers 
for the development of many types of housing to accommodate a wide range 
of accessibility and affordability needs.don

LU 6.4	 Reduce lot size requirements in areas impacted by critical areas and in 
areas close to services and amenities.

LU 6.5	 Develop regulations for planned unit developments that provide more 
flexibility around setbacks and other site development constraints 
especially for infill sites close to existing services.

LU 6.6	 Zoning regulations should provide adequate land and densities to 
accommodate housing targets across all income brackets in accordance 
with allocations from Pierce County.

LU 6.7	 Allow residential-based businesses that are compatible with other 
residential uses.

LU 7	 HAVE A WELL-MAINTAINED, INTERCONNECTED SYSTEM OF MULTI-
FUNCTIONAL PARKS, RECREATIONAL FACILITIES AND OPEN SPACES 
THAT IS ATTRACTIVE, SAFE, AND AVAILABLE TO ALL SEGMENTS OF THE 
CITY’S POPULATION; AND SUPPORTS THE COMMUNITY’S ESTABLISHED 
NEIGHBORHOODS AND SMALL-TOWN ATMOSPHERE.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
91



33 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

LU 7.1	 Coordinate park activities with economic development activities 
to develop a coherent plan that links parks and trails to economic 
development.

LU 7.2	 Connect parks, schools, recreation areas and open spaces using trails 
and an expanded sidewalk network to commercial and high density 
residential areas along highway 410 and Main Street.

LU 7.3	 Identify open space corridors within Buckley that further cross 
jurisdictional habitat and recreation connectivity.

LU 8	 THE CITY SHOULD PROMOTE A DIVERSE SET OF COMMERCIAL USES 
TO INCREASE THE CITY'S TAX BASE, PROVIDE FOR THE BASIC NEEDS 
OF THE COMMUNITY AND ENHANCE THE FRIENDLY AND NEIGHBORLY 
ATMOSPHERE OF THE CITY.
LU 8.1	 Ensure adequate commercial land supply is zoned appropriately to 

support commercial uses.
LU 8.2	 Encourage motorized and non-motorized connections between 

adjoining retail developments to create links to transportation. Also 
encourage links between retail, residential and civic uses. The city 
should consider establishing links through easements, impact fees, and 
development code.

LU 8.3	 Encourage mixed use development where appropriate especially in and 
around Buckley's historic center

LU 8.4	 Plazas and open space should be provided to link trails with commercial 
areas.

LU 9	 COORDINATE AN ORDERLY PROVISION OF PUBLIC FACILITIES WITH 
PUBLIC AND PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES THAT COMPLEMENTS 
THE FISCAL RESOURCES OF THE CITY.
LU 9.1	 Public facilities and utilities should be located to maximize the efficiency 

of services provided , to minimize the cost of services and to minimize 
impacts on the natural environment.

LU 9.2	 Zoning densities should recognize existing utility locations, with higher 
densities closest to existing mains and lowest densities in areas away 
from existing facilities. When new utility services are installed, the city 
should reexamine the zoning to see if a higher density is warranted.

LU 9.3	 To the extent feasible, development approvals should be contingent 
upon facilities already being in place as the development occurs in 
order to efficiently administer utilities. Provisions for development 
application review and the timing of the actual impacts caused by the 
different types of developments should be incorporated into the city's 
concurrency management system as part of the land development 
regulations.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
92



34 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

LU 9.4	 New development should pay for its proportional impact on city 
infrastructure except in instances where the city identifies that the 
development substantially forwards the mission and vision of the city.

LU 9.5	 Impact fees should be calibrated to ensure that new development pays 
its share of costs for new and expanded facilities commensurate with 
its impact on Buckley's existing service distribution. This should direct 
growth towards Buckley's existing infrastructure by decreasing the cost 
of infill and new development in those locations. The Future Land Use 
Map should further this logic by allowing greater density in existing high 
volume locations.

LU 9.6	 The City should carefully consider granting development permits in 
aquifer recharge areas where the wrong types of uses may result in 
compromising water quality or quantity.

LU 9.7	 The City should further development regulations and zoning that 
reduces impermeable surface coverage in aquifer recharge areas and 
encourages groundwater infiltration.

LU 10	MANAGE AND STRATEGICALLY EXPAND UTILITY SERVICES TO ENSURE 
A HIGH LEVEL OF SERVICE THAT SUPPORTS COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 
AND THE CITY'S LAND USE STRATEGY.
LU 10.1	 The City should develop and regularly update a map of future 

infrastructure investments including utility corridors, transportation 
corridors, landfills, sewage treatment facilities, stormwater 
management facilities, recreation facilities, schools and other public 
uses to ensure that investments are sited and coordinated to decrease 
construction and administration costs.

LU 10.2	 Support transportation and infrastructure projects that further 
community objectives including increasing walkability, improving access 
to green spaces and other amenities and lowering barriers for the 
development of affordable housing.

LU 11	DEVELOP TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS THAT ENHANCE THE 
APPEARANCE, QUALITY, AND FUNCTION OF RESIDENTIAL AND 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS, PROVIDE CONNECTIVITY BETWEEN 
ADJACENT DEVELOPMENTS AND ENSURE SAFE AND EASY MULTI-
MODAL ACCESS TO GOODS AND SERVICES.
LU 11.1	 The city should require vehicular and nonmotorized connections 

between adjacent developments through dedications of land and 
easements.

LU 11.2	 The City should encourage walking and bicycling to work, school and on 
errands by providing safe and well marked bike and pedestrian paths.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
93



35 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

Some Connection
Strong Connection

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

GOAL

01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 
downtown where people meet each 
other face-to-face, where small 
businesses can thrive, and with housing 
close at hand that support a high quality 
of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the 
rural quality of life farther from City 
center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic 
space and park system.

VISION STATEMENTS

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents 
with high quality roads, utilities, 
environmental amenities and services.

Sustaining and fostering town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...

Economic development of the Downtown Core and State Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...

07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that creates a friendly gateway to our city with more retail, 
small businesses and housing that is community oriented and provides new places for 
residents and visitors to live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recreational activities
In 2044, Buckley will...

08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through for outdoor recreation enthusiasts availing 
themselves of our area’s natural beauty through concerted infrastructure and facility 
investment and support for recreation-oriented businesses. 

Land Use Goals and 
the Community Vision

Vision Statement

01
The diagrams on the next few pages illustrate 
how the land use goals articulated in this 
chapter connect to the community vision 
statements in Chapter 3. Weak Connection

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
94



36 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Buckley should pursue land use 
strategies that contribute to 
the health and wellbeing of city 
residents.

Buckley should continue to enhance it’s small town 
and neighborly character by pursuing land use and 
development regulations that preserve the historical 
heritage of the community and prioritize a high 
quality of life.

Continue to rectify 
discrepancies between 
Buckley’s demographic 
profile and Pierce County’s by 
increasing affordability and 
pursuing policies that welcome 
a diversity of newcomers into 
the City.

Coordinate with Pierce County, regional authorities, 
neighboring jurisdictions and nonprofits to create 
opportunities for mutual improvements.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 1
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 2
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 3
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 4
01

LU 1

LU 2

LU 3

LU 4

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
95



37 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

Preserve, protect and enhance 
Buckley’s environment 
including wetlands, habitat 
corridors and other critical 
areas in order to prevent 
flooding, expand recreation 
opportunities and support local 
wildlife.

Buckley should pursue land use planning that co-
locates energy efficient multifamily and mixed use 
development with amenities to reduce reliance on 
cars and per capita greenhouse gas emissions.

The city should promote a diverse set of commercial 
uses to increase the city’s tax base, provide for the 
basic needs of the community and enhance the 
friendly and neighborly atmosphere of the city.

LU 5

LU 6

LU 7

LU 8

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 5
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 6
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 7
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 8
01

Have a well-maintained, 
interconnected system 
of multi-functional parks, 
recreational facilities and open 
spaces that is attractive, safe, 
and available to all segments 
of the city’s population; and 
supports the community’s 
established neighborhoods and 
small-town atmosphere.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
96



38 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Coordinate an orderly provision 
of public facilities with public 
and private development 
activities that complements 
the fiscal resources of the city.

Manage and strategically expand utility services 
to ensure a high level of service that supports 
community objectives and the City’s land use 
strategy.

Develop transportation 
systems that enhance the 
appearance, quality, and 
function of residential and 
commercial districts, provide 
connectivity between adjacent 
developments and ensure safe 
and easy multi-modal access to 
goods and services.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 9
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 10
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

LU 11
01

LU 9

LU 10

LU 11

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
97



39 | Land Use & Community Design

La
nd

 U
se

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
98



40 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
99



02
41 | Housing

Housing
H

ou
si

ng
.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
100



42 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Housing

Introduction
Housing is a mandatory comprehensive planning element for Growth Management. The GMA 
indicates that a housing element should be used to ensure the vitality and character of established 
residential neighborhoods, create a policy framework that decreases barriers to the production of 
a wide variety of housing types, and identify sufficient land for all types of housing so that house-
holds at all income levels can call Buckley home.
The future land use map in the Land Use Element in addition to the land use goals and policies, ar-
ticulates a strategy to accommodate Buckley’s share of housing across all income brackets. Pierce 
County’s growth allocation is indicated in the table below.
Buckley should direct this growth in ways that benefit the community as a whole. Working cre-
atively under the parameters of the GMA, Buckley can work to improve its housing stock, future 
housing developments, housing options and neighborhoods in ways that preserve and comple-

ment its historic and small town character.

Strategy
The main issues facing Buckley in terms of housing include the following: [based on the Housing 
Action Plan, which can be found in Appendix B]

01.	 Buckley’s current low-density, single family development trend will not meet the 3,372 units 
needed by 2044. 

02.	 The city’s current annual average rate of production of dwelling units is low and will need to 
be increased to 58 units/year to meet the 2044 growth target.

03.	 Buckley does not have enough affordable units for smaller families. 

Housing Diversity: There is a lack of housing options that reflect the community’s demographics. 
There is also a lack of options for housing other than a traditional single-family home which are 
larger than what smaller households require. Increasingly, there is demand for multi-generational 
housing types
Housing Affordability: Increased housing within Buckley brings a need to promote a range of 
housing options that meet the criteria for affordable housing so that new residents are able to 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
101



43 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

move into the community and current residents are able to remain. Dispersing affordable housing 
throughout the community would ensure a mix of incomes within neighborhoods. Special incen-
tives for low- and moderate-income housing should be used as a means to promote affordable 
housing units by private or nonprofit developers. In the past, the Growth Management Act did not 
disaggregate housing growth targets by income bracket, however, new legislation (HB 1220) now 
requires cities to plan for a wide variety of income levels. Generally speaking, lower income house-
holds cannot afford single family homes in Pierce County, so many cities, including Buckley, need 
to designate new areas that allow apartment buildings and other higher density housing types. 
Department of Commerce guidance indicates that households making between 0-50% area medi-
an income can most feasibly find housing in apartment buildings, while those making between 50-
100% AMI can often find housing in moderate density middle housing which includes townhomes, 
duplexes, triplexes and other multi-unit dwelling types. Those making over 100% median income 
can usually afford single family homes. The future land use map found in the Land Use Element re-
flects changes that accommodate these new housing types. During public engagement efforts for 
the Housing Action Plan (see Appendix B, pg 134), respondents identified a number of regulatory 

barriers that prevent affordable housing production 
in Buckley. In particular, they cited challenges with 
building ADUs due to the development code’s small 
maximum ADU size of 800 square feet, expensive 
permit fees and a requirement for owner occupancy 
either in the principal unit or the ADU. Updates to 
state law since the last periodic update require the 
City to increase the maximum ADU size to at least 
1000 square feet and nullify owner occupancy re-
quirements, helping to alleviate these challenges.
Another challenge is the City’s lack of a ladder fire 
truck, meaning that development is capped at 35 
feet to ensure emergency access. Additionally, in 
2024 the development code allowed a maximum 
density of  22 units/acre in the High Density Resi-
dential zone for senior housing and 20 units per acre 
for multifamily housing (the highest density allowed 
in Buckley). This poses a significant barrier to pro-

viding deeply affordable units which are typically only feasible as low rise and mid rise apartment 
complexes per Commerce guidance. For a further discussion of barriers see  the Housing Action 
Plan, pg 125.

Low Rise Moderate Density
50-100% Area Median Income

Mid Rise High Density
0-50% Area Median Income

Low Density
100%+ Area Median Income

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
102



44 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Housing Needs Table

An inventory and analysis of existing and projected housing needs over the planning period, by 
income band, consistent with the jurisdiction’s share of countywide housing need, as provided by 
Commerce.
Figure H 1.  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)

0-30% AMI
Estimated Housing 
Supply (2020) 1,957 0 41 145 537 436 305 493

Housing Growth 
Target 1,260 220 163 234 185 80 72 307

Total
PSH *

Non-P
SH

>30-5
0%

>50-8
0%

>80-10
0%

>10
0-12

0%

>12
0%

Figure H 2.  Buckley housing growth target for 2044 by income bracket

220 163 234 185 80 72 307

77

Not Included in Growth 
Target

Emergency Housing

Housing Connectivity: Ensuring that neighborhoods are well-connected to amenities and com-
munity services and facilities is another goal in the housing element. This goal rests on the prem-
ise that neighborhoods, which are physically connected and easily accessible by foot, bike and 
automobile, provide for a safer, healthier and more enjoyable environment. This goal is encour-
aged through policies that promote a street grid system (which is generally thought to be more 
conducive for improved accessibility and orientation) and by requiring developers to provide 
connections to other neighborhoods, paths and trails where possible.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
103



45 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

Housing Needs Table

An inventory and analysis of existing and projected housing needs over the planning period, by 
income band, consistent with the jurisdiction’s share of countywide housing need, as provided by 
Commerce.
Figure H 1.  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)

0-30% AMI
Estimated Housing 
Supply (2020) 1,957 0 41 145 537 436 305 493

Housing Growth 
Target 1,260 220 163 234 185 80 72 307

Total
PSH *

Non-P
SH

>30-5
0%

>50-8
0%

>80-10
0%

>10
0-12

0%

>12
0%

Figure H 2.  Buckley housing growth target for 2044 by income bracket

220 163 234 185 80 72 307

77

Not Included in Growth 
Target

Emergency Housing

Housing Connectivity: Ensuring that neighborhoods are well-connected to amenities and com-
munity services and facilities is another goal in the housing element. This goal rests on the prem-
ise that neighborhoods, which are physically connected and easily accessible by foot, bike and 
automobile, provide for a safer, healthier and more enjoyable environment. This goal is encour-
aged through policies that promote a street grid system (which is generally thought to be more 
conducive for improved accessibility and orientation) and by requiring developers to provide 
connections to other neighborhoods, paths and trails where possible.

Racially Disparate Impact

Buckley is committed to meeting the housing needs of members of our community and to 
working with the State of Washington, Puget Sound Regional Council and Pierce County to 
address the opportunity gap that persists for historically marginalized communities through-
out the state. In keeping with this commitment, this plan includes a Racially Disparate Impact 
report, found in Appendix B that follows the Department of Commerce’s methodology to eval-
uate potential displacement risks and other key indicators of racially disparate impact.
Assessing Displacement Risk

The map below, produced by Puget Sound Regional Council, is a composite vulnerability index 
that indicates locations most likely to experience displacement. As it shows, Buckley is at low 
risk for racial displacement. For a more detailed analysis of displacement risk, please see Ap-
pendix B.

Figure H 3.  Displacement risk, Puget Sound

American Community Survey (ACS), U.S. Census Bureau; Consolidated Housing Affordability Strategy (CHAS), U.S. De-
partment of Housing & Urban Development (HUD); Google; County elections data; Puget Sound Regional Council

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
104



46 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Emergency Housing

Guidance from the Department of Commerce indicates that Buckley can fulfill most of its Emer-
gency Housing allocation with existing hotels and motels beds. Buckley’s Econo Lodge located 
on Highway 410 has 40 rooms, and the Buckley Inn has 14 (44 rooms in all). The City has capacity 
for the remaining 33 beds within the Corridor Mixed Use land use designation. The map below 
shows vacant lots within Corridor mixed use that will continue to allow hotels and motels. At 60 
beds/acre these lots have capacity for 874 beds with critical area and market factor deductions.
Buckley’s code does not currently have guidelines to address emergency housing. The code will 
be updated to allow emergency housing in all zones that allow hotels and motels. Standards for 
emergency housing will not be more stringent than those allowed by RCW 35A.21.430 and RCW 
35.21.683. 

Persons in family
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Extremely low 
income (0-30% 
AMI)

$24,350 27,800 31,300 34,750 37,550 41,960 47,340 52,720

Very low income 
(30-50% AMI)

40,550 46,350 52,150 57,900 62,550 67,200 71,800 76,450

Low income (50-
80% AMI)

64,900 74,150 83,400 92,650 100,100 107,500 114,900 122,300

HUD 2024

Area Median Income (AMI)

Area Median Income is based on Pierce County’s median income. The table below shows qualify-
ing incomes for affordable housing for each income bracket by household size. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
105



47 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

Corridor Mixed Use

Housing Density: 12-18 DU/
Acre
This is a new land use desig-
nation that will allow housing 
above retail, but no stand 
alone housing. The mixed use 
corridor designation should 
encourage collocating hous-
ing, service and businesses.

Two Story Mixed Use, Sacramento, CA

Atrium Apartments, Seattle, WA

Mixed Use apartments, Seattle, WA

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
106



48 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Housing Density: 15-40 DU/
acre
Most similar to existing High 
Density Residential Zoning, 
but with additional density 
allowances to ensure Buckley 
has enough zoned capacity to 
support its affordable housing 
allocation.

Urban High Density

Issaquah Highlands, WA

Issaquah Highlands, WA

Condominiums, Boise, Idaho

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
107



49 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

Housing Density: 1-3 Units 
per parcel
State passage of HB 1110 
(Middle Housing) and HB 1337 
(ADUs) allows more density in 
primarily single family neigh-
borhoods. 

 Urban Low Density

Single Family Home, Spokane, WA

Cottages, Buckely, WA

Duplex, Portland, OR

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
108



50 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Goals & Policies
HO 1	 FOSTER EQUITABLE COMMUNITIES BY STRATEGICALLY INCREASING 

DENSITY, IMPROVING ACCESS TO VARIOUS HOUSING TYPES, AND 
CREATING AFFORDABLE HOUSING OPTIONS THROUGH MISSING MIDDLE 
HOUSING AND ADUS.

HO 03.1	Adopt strategic measures to overcome barriers for moderate density 
housing development.

HO 03.2	Encourage balanced urban growth by bridging the gap between single-
family and multifamily housing options while focusing on creating more 
home affordable ownership and rental solutions.

HO 03.3	Adapt zoning codes to allow for ADUs to be accommodated in already 
developed lots.

HO 03.4	Update development regulations to reduce barriers for low density middle 
housing types such as ADUs, Duplexes and Triplexes.

HO 2	 ENSURE A DIVERSE RANGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING OPTIONS CATERING 
TO ALL INCOME LEVELS AND DEMOGRAPHICS ACROSS THE REGION, 
INCLUDING IN UNINCORPORATED PIERCE COUNTY.

HO 03.5	Buckley should encourage affordable housing developments through 
financial incentives to developers in the form of tax reliefs, density bonuses, 
economic inducements, etc.

HO 03.6	Density bonuses should be considered for residential developments that 
meet minimum building standards and incorporate affordability initiatives as 
a specified community goal.

HO 03.7	The City should position itself to work collaboratively with Pierce County, 
PSRC and affordable housing agencies to accommodate affordable housing 
needs which are not met by the private market.

HO 03.8	Affordable housing should be prioritized in areas of Buckley with access to 
amenities, employment and transportation that will minimize household 
costs.

HO 3	 CREATE INCENTIVES TO ENCOURAGE REHABILITATION AND/OR 
REDEVELOPMENT OF EXISTING HOUSING AND HISTORIC STRUCTURES.

HO 03.9	Identify opportunities for repurposing and redeveloping existing parcels 
where building rehabilitation is financially unfeasible, while ensuring 
compliance with historic, archeological, and cultural policies that prevent 
displacement.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
109



51 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

HO 03.10	 Adopt reasonable and innovative techninques to encourage the use of 
underutilized lots for moderate to high density affordable units

HO 03.11	 Buckley should explore options to dedicate or make available 
below market-rate surplus land owned by the City in central locations for 
affordable housing projects.

HO 03.12	 Manufactured housing should not be regulated differently from site-built 
housing and should be encouraged as an affordable housing option in 
Buckley.

HO 4	 EVALUATE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF LOCAL HOUSING POLICIES BY 
MAINTAINING AND PERIODICALLY REVIEWING AN INVENTORY OF 
EXISTING AND PIPELINE HOUSING WITHIN THE CITY OF BUCKLEY AND 
PROJECTED HOUSING NEEDS OVER THE PLANNING PERIOD.

HO 03.13	 Determine the demand for affordable housing across all income levels, 
especially for historically marginalized groups, both present and in the 
future.

HO 03.14	 Periodically evaluate the efficacy of local housing policies and strategies in 
meeting housing objectives and affordability targets.

HO 03.15	 Utilize diverse data sources to evaluate housing demand and report on the 
progress in developing new affordable housing.

HO 5	 ENSURE EQUITABLE AND STRATEGICALLY DISTRIBUTED PROVISION 
OF DIVERSE SPECIAL NEEDS HOUSING OPTIONS THROUGH 
INTERJURISDICTIONAL COOPERATION AND PUBLIC-PRIVATE 
PARTNERSHIPS, IN ALIGNMENT WITH RCW REGULATIONS.

HO 03.16	 Identify opportunities to participate in interjurisdictional 
cooperative efforts and public-private partnerships that identify 
land capacity for special needs housing including, but not limited to, 
government-assisted housing, housing for moderate, low, very low, and 
extremely low-income households, manufactured housing, multifamily 
housing, group homes, foster care facilities, emergency housing, emergency 
shelters, permanent supportive housing.

HO 03.17	 Encourage development of and plan to accommodate for sufficient supply of 
special needs housing opportunities convenient to services.

HO 6	 ENSURE FLEXIBILITY FOR DEVELOPMEMENT STANDARDS AND 
REGULATIONS IN ALIGNMENT WITH THE REGIONAL GROWTH STRATEGIES, 
TO FACILITATE FEASIBILITY IN HOUSING PRODUCTION.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
110



52 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

HO 03.18	 Review and amend development standards to reduce housing development 
barriers, enhance public benefit, and minimize costs

HO 03.19	 Flexibility in development regulations should be provided to allow for 
clustered housing developments. This could be through planned unit 
developments, clustered housing developments, cottage housing, or adding 
flexible lot sizes in the subdivision regulations.

HO 03.20	 Allow emergency housing and emergency shelters in all zones that 
allow hotels and motels, and ensure that requirements for occupancy, 
spacing and intensity are not so stringent as to prevent accommodating 
Buckley’s emergency housing allocation.

HO 7	 PRESERVE BUCKLEY’S EXISTING HOUSING CHARACTER THROUGH 
INTEGRATION OF NEW DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT WITH THE 
CITY’S HISTORIC, SMALL-TOWN CHARACTER WHILE KEEPING UP WITH 
DESIGN BEST PRACTICES TO ENSURE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH FOR THE 
CITY.

HO 03.21	 Incorporate design principles into zoning and design review standards to 
create more liveable and attractive new housing and infill housing.

HO 03.22	 Encourage using green buildings by increasing lot coverage minimums and 
providing economic incentives for increased built density.

HO 03.23	 Ensure building codes permit innovative housing designs, for instance that 
they encourage low impact development practices, siting to maximize 
passive solar exposure, clean energy installation and energy efficiency. 
Encourage existing building retro-fitting where possible by connecting 
residents to state and regional incentive programs.

HO 03.24	 Encourage open space dedication and green building techniques in new 
construction while balancing the need for increased housing density.

HO 03.25	 New development will prioritize connections to existing trails, paths and 
sidewalks to increase community health and walkability.

HO 03.26	 Intense commercial activities, such as gravel extraction, automotive 
wrecking, hazardous materials handling, and other businesses that contain 
environmental risks should not be permitted near housing.

HO 8	 PRIORITIZE THE DEVELOPMENT OF RESIDENTIAL AREAS, INCLUSIVE OF 
A RANGE OF HOUSING PRICES AND DENSITIES, TO MAXIMIZE ACCESS 
TO TRANSIT ROUTES, PEDESTRIAN-FRIENDLY AMENITIES, AND/OR 
DOWNTOWN BUCKLEY AND THE 410 CORRIDOR.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
111



53 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

HO 03.27	 Implement zoning regulations and incentives to promote the development 
and preservation of long-term affordable housing options at appropriate 
densities in Downtown Buckley and the 410 Corridor to maximize the 
benefits of transit, active transportation and other transportation 
investments.

HO 03.28	 Formulate a plan for future residential and commercial developments 
that aim to strike a balance between the growth objectives for both job 
opportunities and housing.

HO 9	 ADDRESS RACIALLY DISPARATE IMPACTS, DISPLACEMENT, AND 
EXCLUSION IN HOUSING BY IDENTIFYING AND RECTIFYING LOCAL 
POLICIES AND REGULATIONS (INCLUDING DISCRIMINATORY ZONING 
PRACTICES, DISINVESTMENT PATTERNS, AND DISPARITIES IN 
INFRASTRUCTURE AVAILABILITY), TO FOSTER EQUITABLE AND INCLUSIVE 
COMMUNITIES.

HO 03.29	 Establish policies and regulations to address and begin to undo racially 
disparate impacts, displacement, and exclusion in housing caused by local 
policies, plans, and actions

HO 03.30	 Prioritize policies and programs aimed at facilitating homeownership for 
low-income, moderate-income, and middle-income families and individuals, 
with particular attention to addressing historic disparities in access to 
homeownership for communities of color.

HO 03.31	 Ensure equitable access to resources, financial assistance, and educational 
initiatives to support and encourage homeownership opportunities across 
diverse demographic groups.

HO 03.32	 Ensure periodic assessment of displacement-prone areas (areas with high 
rates of renter occupied housing) due to market forces and update the 
inventory in order to make accurate data available to potential developers 
when needed.

HO 03.33	 Mitigate impacts of physical, economic, and cultural displacement that 
might be caused due to planning, public or private investments and 
developments, or market pressure.

HO 03.34	 Pursue policies that increase racial and economic diversity in Buckley by 
supporting multicultural programming, affordable housing development 
and live and work development.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
112



54 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

HO 03.35	 Evaluate and adopt techniques such as inclusionary or incentive zoning to 
increase affordability.

HO 03.36	 To advance the provision of affordable and special needs housing, 
participate in interjurisdictional cooperative efforts and public-private 
partnerships with inclusive public platforms that elevate the voices of 
marginalized communities, ensuring their significant representation and 
active involvement in the decision making.

HO 03.37	 Buckley will periodically evaluate its land capacity based on existing zoning 
in conjunction with Pierce County Buildable Lands analysis to ensure that 
the City is providing enough land for a diversity of housing types.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
113



55 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

Some Connection
Strong Connection

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

GOAL

01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 
downtown where people meet each 
other face-to-face, where small 
businesses can thrive, and with housing 
close at hand that support a high quality 
of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the 
rural quality of life farther from City 
center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic 
space and park system.

VISION STATEMENTS

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents 
with high quality roads, utilities, 
environmental amenities and services.

Sustaining and fostering town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...

Economic development of the Downtown Core and State Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...

07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that creates a friendly gateway to our city with more retail, 
small businesses and housing that is community oriented and provides new places for 
residents and visitors to live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recreational activities
In 2044, Buckley will...

08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through for outdoor recreation enthusiasts availing 
themselves of our area’s natural beauty through concerted infrastructure and facility 
investment and support for recreation-oriented businesses. 

Housing Goals and 
the Community Vision

Vision Statement

01
The diagrams on the next few pages illustrate 
how the housing goals articulated in this 
chapter connect to the community vision 
statements in Chapter 3. Weak Connection

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
114



56 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Foster equitable communities 
by strategically increasing 
density, improving access to 
various housing types, and 
creating affordable housing 
options through missing 
middle housing and ADUs.

Ensure a diverse range of affordable housing options 
catering to all income levels and demographics 
across the region, including in unincorporated Pierce 
County.

Create incentives to 
encourage rehabilitation 
and/or redevelopment of 
existing housing and historic 
structures.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 1
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 2
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 3
01

HO 1

HO 2

HO 3

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
115



57 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

Evaluate the effectiveness 
of local housing policies by 
maintaining and periodically 
reviewing an inventory of 
existing and pipeline housing 
within the City of Buckley and 
projected housing needs over 
the planning period.

Ensure equitable and strategically distributed 
provision of diverse special needs housing options 
through interjurisdictional cooperation and public-
private partnerships, in alignment with RCW 
regulations.

Ensure flexibility for 
development standards and 
regulations in alignment with 
the regional growth strategies, 
to facilitate feasibility in 
housing production.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 4
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 5
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 6
01

HO 4

HO 5

HO 6

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
116



58 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Preserve Buckley’s 
existing housing character 
through integration of 
new development and 
redevelopment with the city’s 
historic, small-town character 
while keeping up with design 
best practices to ensure 
sustainable growth for the city.

Prioritize the development of residential areas, 
inclusive of a range of housing prices and densities, 
To maximize access to transit routes, pedestrian-
friendly amenities, and/or Downtown Buckley and 
the 410 Corridor.

Address racially disparate 
impacts, displacement, 
and exclusion in housing by 
identifying and rectifying 
local policies and regulations 
(including discriminatory 
zoning practices, 
disinvestment patterns, and 
disparities in infrastructure 
availability), to foster equitable 
and inclusive communities.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 7
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 8
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

HO 9
01

HO 7

HO 8

HO 9

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
117



59 | Housing

H
ou

si
ng

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
118



60 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
119



03
61 | Economic Development

Economic Development
Ec

on
. D

ev
.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
120



62 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Economic Development

Introduction
The Economic Development Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan is intended to 
support the promotion of enterprise and 
commercial exchange in Buckley and re-
inforce the overall vision and values of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Economic develop-
ment is one of the GMA’s thirteen mandat-
ed planning goals, and increasing employ-
ment capacity is part of Pierce County’s 
growth allocation to the City. Goals and 
policies presented in this element guide 
future City actions that, together with pri-
vate sector actions, can produce a strong 
economy. The framework for this element 
is to retain and strengthen an economy 
that reinforces Buckley’s small town char-
acter and capitalizes on its assets, includ-
ing its history, rural quality, and natural 
resources.
Key issues that the Economic Development 
Element addresses:
01.	 Buckley’s economic plan should 

strengthen the city’s neighborly and small 
town qualities. 

02.	 Buckley’s economic plan should capture 
through traffic frequenting the area for 
outdoor pursuits.

03.	 The City needs to generate more revenue 
to support government functions. The 
City Council and Planning Commission 
want to forward policies that increase 
revenue by incentivizing business 
development that generates sales tax.

Existing Conditions
Buckley’s largest employment sector is Health 
Care and Health Care Assistance, employing 
about 41.1% of the people who work in Buckley 
(not to be confused with the jobs that are held 
by Buckley residents, many of whom commute 
elsewhere for work). Health Care employment 
is followed by Educational services, which 
represents around 25% of Buckley employ-
ment. In 2021, 987 individuals were employed 
in Health care related industries. Retail trade 
accounts for only 6 percent of Buckley jobs, 
and food services and accommodation around 
4%. Surprisingly, only 0.3% Of Buckley workers 
are employed in agriculture (ACS, Longitudinal 
Employer-Household Dynamics, 2023). On the 
other hand, 11.4% of Buckley residents work in 
some facet of manufacturing, 9% in Retail and 
7.3% in Education and Healthcare  (ACS, Longi-
tudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, 2023). 
In 2021, 789 workers commuted from outside 
the city to jobs in Buckley, 81 workers lived and 
worked in Buckley and 1,579 Buckley residents 
commuted to jobs outside of Buckley. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
121



63 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

42.7 %42.7 %

23.0 %

10.9 %10.9 %

5.5 %5.5 %

4.6 %4.6 %

42.7 %42.7 %

23.0 %

10.9 %10.9 %

5.5 %5.5 %

4.6 %4.6 %

Health Care and Social Assistance
Educational Services
Construction
Accommodation and Food Services
Retail Trade
Manufacturing
Public Administration
Other Services
Professional, Technology and Science
Wholesale Trade

Transportation and Warehousing
Arts, Entertainment and Recreation
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing, Hunting
Information
Administrative Support and Waste
Management
Finance and Insurance
Utilities
Real Estate
Management
Mining, Oil and Gas

LODES Version 8.0 2021; US Census Bureau 2020

Figure ED 1.  Buckley Employment by Sector

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
122



64 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Table of employment sectors:
The bar charts to the right compare the percentage of jobs in different industries for 
Buckley, Bonney Lake, Enumclaw and Pierce County. Buckley has far and away the 
most Health Care and Social Assistance jobs on a per capita basis (in part because 
the Rainier School remains a large employer in Buckley). The city is also competitive 
in educational services and construction. However, Buckley significantly underper-
forms in providing retail trade jobs, and accommodations and food services com-
pared to its neighboring cities. 

Figure ED 2.  Worker Inflow and Outflow Buckley, WA

On The Map, US Census Bureau 2021

Buckley

Workers who 
commute to 
Buckley

Live & Work 
in Buckley

Buckley Residents 
who work outside 
the city

2,113 1,991200

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
123



65 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

2.5%2.5%
2.6%2.6%

5%5%
4.7%4.7%

Accommodation and Food Services

0.1%0.1%
2.5%2.5%

1%1%
0.6%0.6%

Administrative Support and Waste Management

0.2%0.2%
0.1%0.1%
0.1%0.1%
0.1%0.1%

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing, Hunting

0.3%0.3%
0.7%0.7%

0.3%0.3%
0.1%0.1%

Arts, Entertainment and Recreation

4.9%4.9%
2.7%2.7%

5.3%5.3%
1.6%1.6%

Construction

10.4%10.4%
2.8%2.8%

4.6%4.6%
0.4%0.4%

Educational Services

0.1%0.1%
1%1%

3.7%3.7%
0.5%0.5%

Finance and Insurance

19.3%19.3%
6.3%6.3%
6.4%6.4%

2.4%2.4%

Health Care and Social Assistance

0.1%0.1%
0.2%0.2%
0.3%0.3%
0.1%0.1%

Information

0%0%
0.1%0.1%
0%0%
0%0%

Management

1.3%1.3%
1.8%1.8%

2.4%2.4%
0.1%0.1%

Manufacturing

0%0%
0%0%
0.1%0.1%
0%0%

Mining, Oil and Gas

1%1%
1%1%
1%1%
1.2%1.2%

Other Services

0.7%0.7%
1.2%1.2%

0.7%0.7%
0.6%0.6%

Professional, Technology and Science

1%1%
1.6%1.6%

2.1%2.1%
1.7%1.7%

Public Administration

0%0%
0.6%0.6%
0.6%0.6%

0.2%0.2%

Real Estate

2.1%2.1%
4.2%4.2%

6.4%6.4%
8.6%8.6%

Retail Trade

0.4%0.4%
2.2%2.2%

0.4%0.4%
0.3%0.3%

Transportation and Warehousing

0.1%0.1%
0.1%0.1%
0%0%
0%0%

Utilities

0.7%0.7%
1.5%1.5%

0.7%0.7%
0.8%0.8%

Wholesale Trade

Buckley, WA

Pierce County, WA

Enumclaw, WA

Bonney Lake, WA

Figure ED 3.  Per Capita Employment by Industry: Buckley and Neighboring Cities

LODES Version 8.0 2021; US Census Bureau 2020

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
124



66 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Economic Strategy:
The map to the right shows Buckley’s distribution of exist-
ing land uses (Pierce County Buildable Lands, 2022, City 
of Buckley, 2024). As shown, a significant amount of land 
along the 410 Corridor that falls within the Corridor Mixed 
Use future land use designation consists of auto related 
retail (auto services, carwashes, and gas stations), and 
non-retail commercial such as contractors yards and mini 
storage. The City seeks to enhance the corridor so that 
businesses are increasingly community oriented and create 
a friendly and welcoming gateway into Buckley.
The challenge facing Buckley is to create an economic 
climate that produces a healthy economy for jobs and 
businesses without compromising the community’s desires 
to maintain its small town lifestyle and protect its natural 
amenities. The City is committed to pursuing actions that 
contribute to a high quality of life for residents and future 
generations including the provision of affordable housing, 
a pristine natural environment, good schools, efficient gov-
ernment and high quality infrastructure. Providing these 
amenities and services can also help the City to attract, 
retain and stimulate growth of local businesses which in 
turn will provide needed revenue to support the mission of 
the City. A strong tax base is essential to the City’s ability 
to deliver necessary public services and maintain infra-
structure to serve the needs of the community. In order to 
establish a sustainable economy, this Comprehensive Plan 
recommends the following actions:
01.	 The City should promote existing businesses and 

concentrate new business development along Main 
Street and the Highway 410 corridor.

02.	 The City should continue to establish recreational 
infrastructure to attract tourism to Buckley. Despite 
its proximity to Mt. Rainier National Park and the 
presence of recreational vehicle services, Buckley 
lacks the services and amenities for national park 
visitors, such as outdoor equipment outlets. Buckley 
is one of a few “Gateway Communities'' in the Carbon 
River Corridor to Mt. Rainier and should attract a 
tourist base. Investment in Buckley’s historic and 

Figure ED 4.  Future Land Use 
Map

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
125



67 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
126



68 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

picturesque Main Street will continue 
to attract visitors. Trail oriented 
development along the Foothills Trail can 
continue to strengthen Buckley’s outdoor 
recreation appeal.

03.	 The City should continue to incentivize 
businesses that contribute to Buckley’s 
quality of life including working to attract 
a grocery and pharmacy that will allow 
residents to access basic goods and 
services without leaving the city. 

04.	 The City should work to improve 
conditions for retail and services that 
contribute sales tax revenue to the city.

The City acknowledges that costs and benefits 
may be associated with economic activity. The 
costs include the direct provision of addition-
al government services and also maintaining 
adequate infrastructure. Fiscal analysis that 
weighs the costs and the benefits of growth 
should be considered when developing regu-
lations and procedures. Economic policies and 
regulations should remain flexible to ensure 
that the city can take advantage of opportuni-
ties and weather economic challenges.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
127



69 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

Goals and Policies
ED 1	 PROMOTE, DEVELOP, AND ENHANCE A STRONG AND SUSTAINABLE 

ECONOMIC CLIMATE.
ED 1.1	 Contribute to the success of existing businesses through local business 

promotions and strategic investment in community infrastructure such as 
sidewalks and street trees in core commercial areas.

ED 1.2	 The city’s regulations should provide the following to enhance sustainable 
economic development:
a.	 Economic disincentives for vacant buildings.
b.	 Overlay district design standards for mixed use areas and the 

Historic Downtown.
c.	 Procedures that are as streamlined and remove barriers to 

commerce while adhering to state requirements.
ED 1.3	 The city should provide a visitor or information center that qualifies for 

a state tourist sign to attract and capture destination and pass-through 
tourist dollars.

ED 1.4	 The city should provide spaces to host relevant community information such 
as events signage and materials for tourists in places like community parks 
and the Community Center.

ED 1.5	 Produce and periodically update tourist materials such as maps and 
brochures that promote local businesses and points of interest.

ED 2	 MAKE BUCKLEY AN ATTRACTIVE AND DISTINCTIVE PLACE FOR 
COMMERCE.
ED 2.1	 Encourage home-based businesses that contribute to neighborhood 

vibrancy.
ED 2.2	 Incentivize the preservation of historic buildings that contribute to 

Buckley's human scale downtown. Encourage infill development that 
complements historic building design.

ED 2.3	 Use wayfinding and signage to direct visitors to Downtown and other 
commercial and mixed use areas and to contribute to the visual identity of 
the city.

ED 2.4	 Partner with the business community to assist in the development and 
maintenance of signs for businesses within the Main Street downtown core.

ED 2.5	 The city should pave, sign, and advertise public parking areas for business 
activities.

ED 2.6	 Develop a distinctive marketing theme and visual identity for the City that 
contributes to the cohesion of civic spaces including parks, streets and 
signage and that references the city's history.

ED 2.7	 Continue to host, support and promote events that attract a regional 
audience.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
128



70 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

ED 3	 GROW THE 410 CORRIDOR INTO A VIBRANT COMMERCIAL HUB THAT 
CONTRIBUTES TO THE CITY'S ECONOMIC VITALITY AND FISCAL 
SUSTAINABILITY.
ED 3.1	 Host business trainers and other experts to support individuals interested in 

building a business in Buckley.
ED 3.2	 Improve the connection between businesses and the corridor by regulating 

built form and site configuration.
ED 3.3	 Encourage a welcoming interface between the Foothills Trail and Businesses 

abutting the Trail to attract trail users into the City.

ED 4	 BUILD OFF OF THE "SMALL-TOWN" ATTRIBUTES THAT MAKE BUCKLEY A 
FRIENDLY AND NEIGHBORLY PLACE TO LIVE AND VISIT.
ED 4.1	 Continue to encourage building designs that improve the pedestrian 

experience of commercial streets including the use of picture windows for 
retail businesses, historic facades, awnings and attractive signage.

ED 4.2	 Improve street design by including street trees and providing pedestrian 
amenities such as benches.

ED 4.3	 Consider the city’s “small-town attributes” in design review for permitting 
development. Site plans should consider vehicle and pedestrian flow, 
pedestrian and/or open space amenities, including vegetation and the 
interface between the business and the street.

ED 4.4	 Uses in the downtown historic district should include only commercial with 
an emphasis on retail, except on the upper floor(s).

ED 4.5	 Downtown buildings that must be upgraded to meet current building codes 
should use the International Existing Building Code, which is designed for 
historic buildings.

ED 5	 RECREATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE THAT SHOWS OFF THE CITY’S NATURAL 
FEATURES SHOULD BE USED TO ENHANCE ITS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.
ED 5.1	 The city should prioritize the enhancement of parks and open spaces 

adjacent to the Foothills Trail and downtown businesses.
ED 5.2	 The city should reduce permit submittal requirements for businesses 

that serve the need of the outdoor enthusiast market, such as bike shops, 
camping stores, sporting goods, and ski shops. Minimal requirements 
should include traffic impacts, drainage, and pedestrian access.

ED 5.3	 The city should pursue grants and partnerships to create and enhance 
natural amenities both in and around Buckley and promote outdoor 
activities, such as trails, and river rafting.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
129



71 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

ED 6	 ENSURE REGULATION BALANCES ECONOMIC GROWTH WITH THE 
QUALITY OF LIFE AND THE ENVIRONMENT.
ED 6.1	 Recognize and consider the economic, social, and environmental impacts of 

proposed legislation during the legislative review process.
ED 6.2	 To the extent possible, permit industrial uses in areas directly abutting 

major roads that minimally interact with residential areas.

ED 7	 EXPAND AND DIVERSIFY FUNDING SOURCES TO ACHIEVE ECONOMIC 
GOALS.
ED 7.1	 Identify potential funding sources for economic development though 

existing federal, state, and non-governmental organizations.
ED 7.2	 Ensure that the funding options pursued are specific to the projects that the 

city intends to develop.

ED 8	 ATTRACT BUSINESSES THAT CONTRIBUTE TO THE FISCAL HEALTH OF THE 
CITY.
ED 8.1	 Decrease permitting and other procedural costs for businesses that will 

contribute substantial sales tax revenue to the City.
ED 8.2	 Decrease permitting and other procedural costs for businesses that will 

provide a needed amenity to the community such as a grocery store and a 
pharmacy.

ED 8.3	 Incentivize business development with high foot traffic rather than more 
passive uses.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
130



72 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Some Connection
Strong Connection

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

GOAL

01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 
downtown where people meet each 
other face-to-face, where small 
businesses can thrive, and with housing 
close at hand that support a high quality 
of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the 
rural quality of life farther from City 
center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic 
space and park system.

VISION STATEMENTS

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents 
with high quality roads, utilities, 
environmental amenities and services.

Sustaining and fostering town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...

Economic development of the Downtown Core and State Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...

07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that creates a friendly gateway to our city with more retail, 
small businesses and housing that is community oriented and provides new places for 
residents and visitors to live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recreational activities
In 2044, Buckley will...

08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through for outdoor recreation enthusiasts availing 
themselves of our area’s natural beauty through concerted infrastructure and facility 
investment and support for recreation-oriented businesses. 

Economic Development Goals 
and the Community Vision

Vision Statement

01

The diagrams on the next few pages illustrate 
how the economic development goals 
articulated in this chapter connect to the 
community vision statements in Chapter 3.

Weak Connection

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
131



73 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

Promote, develop, and enhance 
a strong and sustainable 
economic climate.

Make Buckley an attractive and distinctive place 
for commerce.

Grow the 410 Corridor into 
a vibrant commercial hub 
that contributes to the city’s 
economic vitality and fiscal 
sustainability.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

ED 1
01

02
03

04
0507

ED 2
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

ED 3
01

ED 1

ED 2

ED 3

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
132



74 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Build off of the “small-town” 
attributes that make Buckley a 
friendly and neighborly place 
to live and visit.

Recreational infrastructure that shows off the city’s 
natural features should be used to enhance its 
economic development.

Ensure regulation balances 
economic growth with 
the quality of life and the 
environment.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

ED 4
01

02
03

04
0507

ED 5
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

ED 6
01

ED 4

ED 5

ED 6

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
133



75 | Economic Development

Ec
on

. D
ev

.

Expand and diversify funding 
sources to achieve economic 
goals.

Attract businesses that contribute to the fiscal 
health of the City.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

ED 7
01

02
03

04
0507

ED 8
01

ED 7

ED 8

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
134



04
76 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
135



04
77 | Parks & Recreation

Parks & Recreation
Pa

rk
s 

&
 R

ec
.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
136



78 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Parks & Recreation

Introduction
The parks and recreation system in Buckley 
is a vital network of parks, trails, and indoor 
spaces that provide residents and visitors with 
opportunities to play, exercise, socialize, and 
relax. They are public places where residents 
and visitors mix with each other, learn from 
one another, and exist outside of their homes 
and workplaces. They are places where the City 
communicates its history, celebrates holidays, 
and hosts performers for summer events. 
Parks also perform ecological functions that 
urban areas need such as helping to manage 
stormwater runoff, cleaning the air and water, 
and providing habitat for wildlife.
The Parks Element serves as a guide for grow-
ing Buckley’s park system as it grows in pop-
ulation. It looks at what is in the park system 
now, what people envision for the future, and 
how to get there. The basis for this element is 
the 2024 Parks, Recreation, and Trails Plan, 
which combined public feedback, guidance 
from City Council, and the expertise of park 
staff and consultants into a document that out-
lines a suite of project priorities and long term 
visions for Buckley’s parks and trails.

Buckley Parks 
Overview
The Buckley Parks Department maintains 16.67 
acres of land, 14.8 of which is developed into 
parks. Of these developed parks, 13.4 acres 
are part of Heritage Park, a corridor of indoor 
and outdoor facilities along the Foothill Trails, 
bordering SR-410 and running perpendicular 
to downtown Buckley’s Main Street. There is a 
desire to both amplify the impact of Heritage 
Park and also to develop new park typologies in 
other areas of Buckley.
The name Heritage Park emerged during the 
PROS Planning process, as a way to create a 
recognizable brand that unifies facilities along 
the Foothills Trail into a cohesive park experi-
ence. The skate park, the Veterans Memorial, 
the Foothills Museum Grounds and more will 
all become elements of Heritage Park, which 
is positioned to welcome people to Buckley, 
whether they arrive via the Foothills Trail, SR-
410, or through downtown. The Heritage Park 
brand can be made visible through signage, 
site furniture, and art, creating a place that 
people know, love, and associate with Buckley.
The Foothills Trail is a focal point of Heritage 
Park and is an amenity beloved by Buckley 
residents. Currently the trail extends 20 miles, 
connecting northwest to Puyallup, and soon 
will extend to Enumclaw with the completion of 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
137



79 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

the Foothills Trail Bridge. The development of a 
Buckley Trailhead is currently in process, with 
a parking lot recently installed at the intersec-
tion of SR-410 and Wheeler Ave. The addition 
of a pavilion with interpretive signage will pro-
vide historical information about the trail, the 
first mile of which was in Buckley.
In addition to amplifying Heritage Park, there 
is a goal of developing parks in other parts of 
town, especially north of SR-410. Currently, 
residents in that area have to cross the busy 
road to access any of Buckley’s parks. Adding 
a park in this area will also contribute to better 
park access overall, the goal being to provide 
a Neighborhood Park within ½ mile of every 
household.
While not located north of SR-410, the de-
velopment of Miller Park will be a significant 
addition of 3.4 acres of park space outside of 
the Heritage Park corridor. This project was 
described as a key priority in Buckley’s 2024 
budget, which expressed the goal of fully fund-
ing the park by 2025. As it stands, 75% design 
for the park has been completed and the Parks 
and Recreation department is working with the 
Recreation Conservation Office (RCO) to apply 
for multiple grants to fund construction.

Parks Typologies
Buckley’s parks and recreation system consists 
of parks, trails, and facilities that are owned 
and operated by the City. These facilities are 

broken into categories for the purposes of 
planning and calculating a Level of Service 
Metric that aims to ensure that people’s park 
needs are met. For this plan, Buckley’s parks 
are categorized as Community Parks, Neigh-
borhood Parks, Indoor Facilities, Private Parks, 
and School Facilities.
Neighborhood Parks are meant to serve the 
surrounding neighborhood by offering a mix of 
passive and active amenities that allow people 
of all ages and abilities to use the park for rec-
reation, relaxation, and socializing. These parks 
may include facilities such as a playground, a 
sports facility, open lawn or plaza space, shade 
trees or a structure, plantings, and benches 
and/or picnic tables. Elk Heights is an example 
of a Neighborhood Park in Buckley.
Community Parks are those that serve a larger 
swath of the population. This could be because 
they are larger and have more facilities, be-
cause they offer something that is not available 
elsewhere in the park system, or because they 
are centrally located. Main Street Park, for ex-
ample, is located on downtown’s Main Street, 
right off the Foothills Trail. Mountain View Ave 
Community Garden offers the unique amenity 
of raised beds for gardening.
Parks can serve as both Community and Neigh-
borhood Parks if they meet both criteria. The 
Buckley Youth Center Green, for example, has 
an array of sports courts, a playground, picnic 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
138



Figure PR 1.  Parks map

80 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

shelters, and benches that make it a place that the surrounding 
neighborhood can use for daily recreation. It also has a skate-
park, which is an amenity not offered elsewhere in the City, 
meaning it draws people from the wider community.
Sports fields within the White River School District also 
contribute to recreation in Buckley, hosting sports leagues 
throughout the year. While these acres are not considered in 
the Level of Service metric, the fields and courts are taken into 
consideration when evaluating demand and needs for facilities.
Buckley also has indoor facilities that are publicly owned and 
operated using parks and recreation funding. These include the 
Buckley Youth Activities Center, Buckley Hall, the Senior Cen-
ter, and the Foothills Museum. These facilities provide classes, 
education, and much needed services to several demographics 
in Buckley.
Finally, there are several private parks in Milton that residents 
in some neighborhoods have access to. Mapping these parks 
and quantifying the facilities they offer helps to shape not only 
the assessment of demands and needs for certain amenities, 
but also contributes to our understanding of where there is the 
greatest need for additional parks in Buckley. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
139



81 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
140



Figure PR 2.  Half mile 
walkshed from existing 
community parks

82 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Park Access
The idea behind having a Neighborhood Park within .5 miles of 
each resident is that everyone should be able to walk or roll to 
a park that has playground equipment, sports courts or fields, 
and passive amenities such as benches and shade structures. 
While most transportation in Buckley is done by car, there are 
nondrivers and people with limited access to cars. Even those 
with access to vehicles benefit from being able to easily walk or 
roll to a park, and this aligns with statewide goals for reduced 
vehicle miles traveled.
The access map shows the ½ mile radius around Buckley’s 
Neighborhood Parks, revealing the areas of town that are out-
side of this service range. This calculation was done “as the crow 
flies,” and doesn’t take into account the roadway networks one 
would use, but provides a metric for measuring the Neighbor-
hood Park service range. Given the current spread of housing 
density, 70% of Buckley residents are within this .5 mile range 
of a Neighborhood Park, which is a “B” rating according to RCO 
guidance.
Because SR-410 acts as a barrier to those who want to access 
Buckley’s parks on foot or wheels, the park coverage shown 
north of the busy road does not reflect true park walkability.
Crossing fast-moving traffic, even at a stoplight, can be danger-
ous and is overall less
preferable to walking on local and collector streets. In that 
sense, residents who live north of SR-410 are outside of the ser-
vice range of Buckley’s Neighborhood Parks, and parks in gener-
al. Providing park access to these households is a key goal of this 
plan, and is reflected in the Capital Improvement Project list.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
141



83 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
142



84 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Demands and 
Needs Analysis
The Demands and Needs Analysis for this plan 
draws on the following:
•	 Public Engagement
•	 Facilities Inventory
•	 Guidance from City Council and Parks De-

partment.

Public Engagement
To gather input for the 2024 PROS Plan, the 
Parks Department issued a survey that asked 
participants about their experiences with 
Buckley’s parks and what they wanted to see 
from the parks in the future. This survey was 
available online, distributed on Facebook, and 
accessible via QR codes posted on signs in the 
park and in utility mailers. It was also available 
in paper, distributed at community events 
and to the Buckley Senior Center. Survey data 
was collected from August 8 to September 14, 
2023, and garnered 407 responses, which rep-
resents about 7% of Buckley’s population.
Survey responses were gathered from peo-
ple across Buckley as well as nonresidents, as 
indicated by a question that prompted respon-
dents to identify their neighborhood on a map. 
It was also answered by people from 60+ in age 
to under 18 years old, though 53% of respon-
dents identified as parents of children aged 15 
or younger at home.
A key survey question survey asked partici-
pants to rank their priorities for park invest-
ments given 7 items to choose from. A splash 
park, new/updated playgrounds, and trail 
expansion were chosen as the highest priori-

ties, while a pump track, dog park, community 
garden, and new sports facilities were selected 
as lower priorities. When asked to choose a 
sports/recreation facility for the City to priori-
tize, a pickleball court had the most votes, with 
20.88%, followed by 14.25% of respondents 
who chose a soccer field.
The survey also asked two open-ended ques-
tions, including one that prompted respon-
dents to express what they like about the 
current park and trail system in Buckley. Of 
those who took the survey, 246 wrote in an-
swers to this question and 161 skipped it. 
Themes emerged, such as the appreciation 
for Buckley’s portion of the Foothills Trail. The 
second most common theme was that people 
appreciate how clean and well-mainted the 
parks and trails were. People also appreciate 
the convenience of visiting their parks, how the 
parks feel safe, park events such as Tunes on 
the Trail, and the skate park.
When asked about their hopes and dreams for 
Buckley’s parks and trails, there was a wider 
variety of responses from the 241 people who 
answered. The most common response was, 
broadly, that people want a park where they 
can engage with nature. Currently, the bulk of 
Buckley’s park system is within Heritage Park, 
which abuts the city’s busiest road and down-
town. Moving forward, Buckley residents want 
to see the wealth of nature surrounding the 
city to be incorporated into the park system.
Buckley residents also desire additional trails 
that connect local destinations, allow them to 
interact with nature, and required fewer road-
way crossings. Given the lack of sidewalks in 
several neighborhods, the addition of multi-use 
or natural trails could be a strategy for improv-
ing walkability throughout the City.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
143



85 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

Summary of Public Feedback:
Key needs/desires identified in the survey include:

1.	 Access to nature in parks.
2.	 Splash pad.
3.	 New/updated children’s playgrounds.
4.	 More events and programs.
5.	 More Community Trail and nature trails.

Volume II of this plan contains graphic summaries of the questions 
and responses to this survey.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
144



86 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Pa
rk

De
si

gn
at

io
n

A
cr

es
Be

nc
he

s

Pi
cn

ic
 T

ab
le

s

Sh
ad

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

Ch
ild

re
n’s

 p
la

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t

Ba
sk

et
ba

ll 
co

ur
ts

Ba
se

ba
ll 

fie
ld

So
ft

ba
ll 

fie
ld

Te
e 

ba
ll 

fie
ld

So
cc

er
 fi

el
d

Pi
ck

le
 b

al
l c

ou
rt

s

Ru
nn

in
g 

tra
ck

Sk
at

e 
pa

rk

Bi
ke

 ra
ck

s 
(c

ap
ac

ity
)

Ba
th

ro
om

s 
 (Y

es
/N

o)

Ar
t/

M
on

um
en

ts
 

BB
Q

Buckley Youth 
Center Green

Community & 
Neighborhood 
Park

4 2 4 4 1600 ft2 1.5 2 1 10 Y

Vanderhoof Park Community Park 2.5 5 0 0

River Ave 
Playground

Community & 
Neighborhood 
Park

.93 0 0 3800 ft2 1 3 Y

Elk Heights Park
Neighborhood 
Park

1.1 3 3 0 2700 ft2

Main Street Park Community Park .22 1 1 1 5 1

Veteran’s 
Memorial Green

Community Park .19 3 2 2 1

Mountain View 
Ave Community 
Garden

Community Park 5.1 3 0 2 Y 1

Perkins Parks - 
Spruce and Couls

Private Park .11  2 1100 ft2

Perkins Parks 
- Spruce and 
Jefferson

Private Park .18 2 2 1 970 ft2 .5 2

White River 
School District

School Facility 2 2 1 1

Facilities Inventory
The Facilities Inventory quantifies amenities such as benches, shade structures, playgrounds, and 
sports fields and courts in each of Buckley’s parks and school grounds. 

Figure PR 3.  Facilities Inventory

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
145



87 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

Facility type Size 
(acres)

Adopted LOS 
Standard     

(acres per 1000 
residents)

2044 
Population 

Acres 
needed 

to Meet LOS 
Standard

Acres 
needed     

due to 
Growth*

Community Park 14.52 4
8235

18.42 10.72

Neighborhood Park 1.12 3 24.71 9.16

Facility type % of population     
within .5 mile service range

RCO 
Rating

Neighborhood Park 70% B

Figure PR 4.  Level of Service: Acreage

Figure PR 5.  Level of Service: Access

Level of Service

*Based on anticipated population growth of 2,680 people

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
146



88 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Project Description Type Growth Related? Acres Added 2025-2030 2031-2044 Total

Miller Park
Phase Ib: Construction of sport courts, shade 
structures, playground, and other elements of 

100% design.

Neighborhood + 
Community Park

Yes 4.30 $1,620,000 $1,620,000

Phase II: Design and constuction of additional 
parcel.

Neighborhood + 
Community Park

Yes 2.40 $1,200,000 $1,200,000

Heritage Park Master 
Plan

Design for splash pad, pathway network, and other 
amenities to create a cohesive park experience.

Community Park Yes $50,000 $50,000

Heritage Park Corridor 
Splash Pad

Site selection, design, and construction for a small 
splash pad/spray park.

Community Park Yes $120,000 $120,000

White River Park and Trail Design for trail, shade structures, and benches. Community Park Yes 1.25 $800,000 $800,000

Vanderhoof
Memorial Garden

Design and construction of pathway and gardens 
with plaque displays.

Community Park No $16,600 $16,600

Foothills Trail Musical 
Mile

Installation of musical equipment and 
accompanying signage or other branding elements.

Community Park No $40,000 $40,000

Flum-Adjacent River 
Nature Trail and Park

Phase I: Construction of trail and trailside 
amenities

Neighborhood Park Yes 8.75 $245,000 $245,000

Phase II: Addition of playground and other 
amenities

Neighborhood Park Yes $400,000 $400,000

PSE Parcel Phase I: Purchase of 3rd St. PSE Parcel Neighborhood Park Yes $50,000 $50,000

Phase II: Development into a playground oriented 
for young children

Neighborhood Park Yes .28 $150,000 $150,000

Park and Trail Signage 
Plan

Map locations and design signage for trail and 
parks.

Overall park system 
improvements.

No $16,000 $16,000

Skate Park Renovation Perform major maintenance needed on Skate Park.
Community + 

Neighborhood Park
No $80,000 $80,000

Collins Road Trail Access
Phase I: Public outreach, coordination, and design 

for a soft-surface trail system
Community Park No 10 $120,000 $120,000

Phase II: Construction Community Park No $800,000 $800,000

TOTAL: 26.98 $2,885,000.00 $2,886,000.00 $5,771,000.00

Figure PR 6.  Capital Improvement Projects List

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
147



89 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

Project Description Type Growth Related? Acres Added 2025-2030 2031-2044 Total

Miller Park
Phase Ib: Construction of sport courts, shade 
structures, playground, and other elements of 

100% design.

Neighborhood + 
Community Park

Yes 4.30 $1,620,000 $1,620,000

Phase II: Design and constuction of additional 
parcel.

Neighborhood + 
Community Park

Yes 2.40 $1,200,000 $1,200,000

Heritage Park Master 
Plan

Design for splash pad, pathway network, and other 
amenities to create a cohesive park experience.

Community Park Yes $50,000 $50,000

Heritage Park Corridor 
Splash Pad

Site selection, design, and construction for a small 
splash pad/spray park.

Community Park Yes $120,000 $120,000

White River Park and Trail Design for trail, shade structures, and benches. Community Park Yes 1.25 $800,000 $800,000

Vanderhoof
Memorial Garden

Design and construction of pathway and gardens 
with plaque displays.

Community Park No $16,600 $16,600

Foothills Trail Musical 
Mile

Installation of musical equipment and 
accompanying signage or other branding elements.

Community Park No $40,000 $40,000

Flum-Adjacent River 
Nature Trail and Park

Phase I: Construction of trail and trailside 
amenities

Neighborhood Park Yes 8.75 $245,000 $245,000

Phase II: Addition of playground and other 
amenities

Neighborhood Park Yes $400,000 $400,000

PSE Parcel Phase I: Purchase of 3rd St. PSE Parcel Neighborhood Park Yes $50,000 $50,000

Phase II: Development into a playground oriented 
for young children

Neighborhood Park Yes .28 $150,000 $150,000

Park and Trail Signage 
Plan

Map locations and design signage for trail and 
parks.

Overall park system 
improvements.

No $16,000 $16,000

Skate Park Renovation Perform major maintenance needed on Skate Park.
Community + 

Neighborhood Park
No $80,000 $80,000

Collins Road Trail Access
Phase I: Public outreach, coordination, and design 

for a soft-surface trail system
Community Park No 10 $120,000 $120,000

Phase II: Construction Community Park No $800,000 $800,000

TOTAL: 26.98 $2,885,000.00 $2,886,000.00 $5,771,000.00

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
148



90 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Goals and Policies
PR 1	 THE CITY SHALL STRIVE TO PROVIDE A SYSTEM OF PARKS, TRAILS, 

AND FACILITIES THAT MEET THE NEEDS FOR ACTIVE AND PASSIVE 
RECREATION OF ALL RESIDENTS.
PR 1.1	 The city should strive to provide a Neighborhood Park within 1/2 mile of 

all residents, where they may access it without crossing Highway 410.
PR 1.2	 The City should provide ample opportunities for community input on 

decisions related to parks, trails, facilities, and open space.
PR 1.3	 The City make decisions related to parks, trails, open spaces, and 

facilities based on regional guidance, industry best practices, and 
public feedback. Underserved, at-risk, or otherwise marginalized 
groups should be prioritized in park decisions.

PR 2	 THE CITY SHOULD RECOGNIZE PARKS, TRAILS, AND OPEN SPACE AS 
PART OF A STRATEGY TO ACT AS A GATEWAY TO MOUNT RAINIER, 
OFFERING VISITORS OPPORTUNITIES TO EXPERIENCE LOCAL 
ECOLOGY, HISTORY, AND BUSINESSES.
PR 2.1	 Heritage Park shall be recognized as a Center of Local Importance with 

opportunities for recreation, education, cultural expression, and local 
commerce.

PR 2.2	 Parks and trails should showcase local ecology, including the White 
River.

PR 2.3	 The City should highlight local wildlife, especially local elk populations, 
in the design of parks and trails.

PR 2.4	 Parks and trails should incorporate public art such as murals, 
sculptures, and pavement treatments.

PR 3	 PARKS SHALL BE DESIGNED AND MAINTAINED AS TO BE ACCESSIBLE 
AND INVITING FOR ALL.
PR 3.1	 City parks and trails should be constructed in accordance with the 

city’s Development Guidelines and Public Works Standards, and any 
appropriate state or federal standard not addressed in city code 
to ensure park safety. Design should surpass requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and create spaces that encourage 
active and passive recreation for people of all ages and abilities.

PR 3.2	 Parks and trails shall be maintained to ensure that they remain safe and 
functional for all users.

PR 3.3	 The parks shall provide lighting in such a way that promotes human 
safety and considers ecological impact for local wildlife.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
149



91 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

PR 4	 REGIONAL AND COMMUNITY TRAILS SHOULD BE RECOGNIZED 
AS A VALUABLE RESOURCE FOR RECREATION, MULTI-MODAL 
TRANSPORTATION, ACCESS TO NATURE, AND AS A CONDUIT 
FOR SHOWCASING BUCKLEY’S LOCAL ECOLOGY, HISTORY, AND 
BUSINESSES.
PR 4.1	 The City should strive to maintain a network of Community Trails that 

work with the Foothills Trail to provide connectivity between local 
destinations such as parks, schools, and other activity hubs.

PR 4.2	 The City should develop and maintain a pedestrian trail along the White 
River to provide access to this local, natural resource.

PR 4.3	 Park design and development should consider including cyclist 
amenities such as bike racks, tools, or bottle refilling stations.

PR 4.4	 The City shall strive to provide safe pedestrian crossings to parks.
PR 5	 ECOLOGICAL HEALTH SHOULD BE A CORE FACTOR IN THE PLANNING, 

DESIGN, AND MAINTENANCE OF PARKS, TRAILS, AND OPEN SPACES.
PR 5.1	 The City should preserve lands identified within the Regional Open 

Space Network, incorporating recreational uses where appropriate 
based on ecological conditions and recreational needs.

PR 5.2	 Park designs should consider native plants, rain gardens and 
other alternatives to lawn that provide ecological services such as 
supporting pollinators, providing habitat, and mitigating the impacts of 
stormwater runoff.

PR 5.3	 Low-impact design including rainwater gardens should be installed 
where appropriate.

PR 5.4	 Reduce the use of toxic pesticides, fertilizers, and other products used 
in park maintenance to the extent feasible and identify alternatives that 
minimize risks to human health and the environment.

PR 6	 THE CITY SHALL PURSUE FUNDING STRATEGIES AND PARTNERSHIPS 
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIONS OF PARKS, TRAILS, AND 
FACILITIES TO SERVE THE NEEDS OF BUCKLEY RESIDENTS.
PR 6.1	 The City shall pursue grant funding where possible to help fund 

projects outlined in the PROS plan.
PR 6.2	 The current program of proportionate cost-sharing through a 

mitigation fee for residential developments should be updated at least 
every odd year.

PR 6.3	 The City shall consider options for generating funds through means 
such as program fees or fundraising, provided that it does not create a 
barrier to participation in park programs.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
150



92 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Some Connection
Strong Connection

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

GOAL

01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 
downtown where people meet each 
other face-to-face, where small 
businesses can thrive, and with housing 
close at hand that support a high quality 
of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the 
rural quality of life farther from City 
center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic 
space and park system.

VISION STATEMENTS

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents 
with high quality roads, utilities, 
environmental amenities and services.

Sustaining and fostering town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...

Economic development of the Downtown Core and State Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...

07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that creates a friendly gateway to our city with more retail, 
small businesses and housing that is community oriented and provides new places for 
residents and visitors to live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recreational activities
In 2044, Buckley will...

08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through for outdoor recreation enthusiasts availing 
themselves of our area’s natural beauty through concerted infrastructure and facility 
investment and support for recreation-oriented businesses. 

Parks & Recreation Goals 
and the Community Vision

Vision Statement

01

The diagrams on the next few pages illustrate 
how the parks and recreation goals articulated 
in this chapter connect to the community 
vision statements in Chapter 3.

Weak Connection

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
151



93 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

The city shall strive to provide 
a system of parks, trails, and 
facilities that meet theneeds 
for active and passive 
recreation of all residents.

The City should recognize parks, trails, and open 
space as part of a strategy to act as a gateway to 
Mount Rainier, offering visitors opportunities to 
experience local ecology, history, and businesses.

Parks shall be designed and 
maintained as to be accessible 
and inviting for all.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

PR 1
01

02
03

04
0507

PR 2
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

PR 3
01

PR 1

PR 2

PR 3

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
152



94 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Regional and community 
trails should be recognized 
as a valuable resource for 
recreation, multi-modal 
transportation, access to 
nature, and as a conduit 
for showcasing Buckley’s 
local ecology, history, and 
businesses.

Ecological health should be a core factor in the 
planning, design, and maintenance of parks, trails, 
and open spaces.

The City shall pursue funding 
strategies and partnerships 
for the development and 
operations of parks, trails, and 
facilities to serve the needs of 
Buckley residents.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

PR 4
01

02
03

04
0507

PR 5
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

PR 6
01

PR 4

PR 5

PR 6

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
153



95 | Parks & Recreation

Pa
rk

s 
&

 R
ec

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
154



96 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
155



05
97 | Capital Facilities & Utilities

Capital Facilities & 
Utilities

C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
156



98 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Capital Facilities & Utilities

Introduction
Purpose of the Capital 
Facilities Element
This Capital Facilities Element has been pre-
pared in accordance with Section 36.70A.070 
of the Growth Management Act (GMA) to 
address the need for and the financing of capi-
tal facilities in the City of Buckley and its pro-
posed Urban Growth Area.  The GMA requires 
all Comprehensive Plans to include a Capital 
Facilities Element, which analyzes the need 
for future capital improvements to support 
the development goals stated in the Land Use 
Element, as well as the funding mechanisms 
available for implementation.
The GMA requires cities to have a plan in place 
to ensure that capital facilities are developed 
concurrently with future development and the 
needs of the local population.  This Compre-
hensive Planning effort is a required step of the 
process to assure the City of Buckley is fully 
compliant with GMA goals.
Toward this end, The Capital Facilities Element 
includes the following sections.
01.	 Inventory of existing capital facilities, 

showing location and capacities of all 
facilities

02.	 Forecast of future needs 
03.	 The proposed locations and capacities of 

expanded or new capital facilities

04.	 A financing plan for the proposed capital 
facility improvements anticipated in the 
next ten years

05.	 At least a 6-year plan that will finance 
such facilities within projected funding 
capacities and identifies sources of public 
money for such purposes

06.	 Coordinate land use element, capital 
facilities element, and element plan

This chapter also demonstrates the city’s abili-
ty to provide concurrency in all utilities, roads, 
and capital facilities to support the anticipated 
population growth.  The GMA also contains 
requirements pertaining to the concept of 
concurrency.  Concurrency means that juris-
dictions must be able to demonstrate that all 
utilities, including roads, can be made avail-
able for all new development at the time such 
development is constructed.  Plans for making 
those utilities available when the development 
is built must include a financing plan.  Thus, 
this Capital Facilities Element represents an 
important part of the plans needed to meet 
those requirements.
The Capital Facilities Element also has been de-
veloped in accordance with county wide plan-
ning policies, and has been integrated with all 
other planning elements to ensure consisten-
cy throughout the Comprehensive Plan.  The 
Capital Facilities Element considers the general 
location, proposed location, and capacity of ex-
isting and proposed utilities, including water, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
157



99 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

sewer, surface water drainage, natural gas, and 
other municipal services and facilities, such as 
fire and police protection services.

Proposed Planning Area
The proposed planning area on the following 
page includes White River High School and 
White River Early Learning Center to the south 
of Highway 410, as well as a number of undevel-
oped parcels off of SR 410 and Mundy Loss Rd 
that could be appropriate for larger scale com-
mercial development. As Buckley’s population 
grows, the City has an interest in providing a 
grocery store and other services that residents 
currently drive to Bonney Lake and elsewhere 
to access. There are few undeveloped parcels 
within the City that could accommodate such 
businesses. This area already includes develop-
ment and  infrastructure - potentially making 
it a more viable expansion option in the future 
than other contiguous areas.
The City recognizes that there are currently 
County and State policies and plans in place 
that address the area in question, and that 
do not support expansion. However, as Buck-
ley plans for the future, the City believes it is 
important to express ongoing concerns about 
future growth and commercial land availability.  
Through this plan, the City intends to continue 
working collaboratively with the County and 
State to balance regional policies and conser-
vation objectives with the growing needs of 
our local community. The City looks forward 
to continued dialogue with our partners in the 
future.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
158



100 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
159



101 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Existing Facilities
In 2018, an evaluation was conducted with three primary goals; 
01.	 Conduct a space needs assessment for all City functions for the present, as well as 

projections for space needs at six years and 20 years; 
02.	 Evaluate existing structures for present and future use in light of the results of the space 

needs assessment; and 
03.	 Develop a long-range plan for the Municipal Facilities in light of both the space needs 

assessment and the building evaluations. 
Since that time, the City has awarded a contract to remodel the existing City Hall with an antici-
pated opening date in early 2026. The new City hall will accommodate up to 19 staff members and 
is intended to provide a single location for customers completing business with the City.
To plan for future space needs, the City has evaluated the current number of staff and the antic-
ipated number of staffing levels based on reviewing staffing levels of similarly sized jurisdictions 
(between 8,000-10,000). With this data, the City has created a needs assessment which has been 
integrated into the Capital Improvement Plan.

S-1
Slow Sand Filter Re-Sand Pilot Study to 
test the effectiveness of increasing the 
loading rate.

C 20% DSHS, 80% 
Water Cap. Fund $30,000 

S-2 Re-Sand Slow Sand Filter at the Water 
Treatment Plant. C 20% DSHS, 80% 

Water Cap. Fund $180,000 

S-3

Expand Slow Sand Filter Water Treatment 
Plant-construct additional filter bed area; 
expand filter building, additional inlet and 
under-drain piping, site piping and con-
trols. 

2030 20% DSHS, 80% 
Water Cap. Fund $984,000 

S-4

Hydro-Geologic Study for a New Well- 
complete a hydro-geologic study to obtain 
recommendations of locations that would 
be most likely to support productive wells

2031 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $25,000 

S-5 Drill and Test New Well. 2032 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $184,000 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

Water Systems CIP

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
160



102 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

TR-1

Upgrade System Telemetry. This will allow 
the City to maintain more competitive ser-
vice contracts for maintenance and repairs 
of its telemetry equipment.

C 20% DSHS, 80% 
Water Cap. Fund $180,000 

ST-1 Reservoir Siting Study.  Evaluate potential 
reservoir locations and configurations. 2025 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $25,000 

ST-2 Construct 1.0 MG Reservoir. 2032 70% Loan, 30% 
Water Cap. Fund $2,460,000 

T-1

Segment 6, End of Trenchless to North 
Slope-replace 2,440 LF of Raw Water 
Transmission Main between Segment 5 
and Segment 7 with new 12-inch HDPE 
Raw Water Transmission Main.

2026 70% Loan, 30% 
Water Cap. Fund $1,021,000 

T-2

Segment 8, Creek Crossing Restoration.  
The City installed a cable bridge across 
South Prairie Creek in 2016 to carry a 
segment of the transmission main.  The old 
pipeline and concrete encasement requires 
removal and the disturbed banks along the 
creek require additional restoration.

C Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $61,000 

T-3

Segment 13, Between Replacement Seg-
ments-replace 260 LF of Raw Water Trans-
mission Main between Segment 14 and 
Segment 16 with new 12-inch HDPE Raw 
Water Transmission Main.

2027 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $129,000 

T-4

 Segment 15, End of Cable Bridge to Re-
placement Segment-replace 1,135 LF of 
the Raw Water Transmission Main from the 
north end of the cable bridge to connect 
the south end of the Segment 14 with new 
12-inch HDPE Raw Water Transmission 
Main.

2027 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $480,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
161



103 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

T-5

Annual Transmission Main Leak Detec-
tion-continue an annual leak detection 
program to determine if there are any 
additional sections of the pipeline in need 
repair.

C/O Water Operating 
Fund $140,000 

T-6
Segment 16, Existing Cable Bridge.  Re-
place 200 LF cable bridge across a creek 
gully.

2028 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $250,000 

T-7
Segment 19, Along Cliff Face.  Replace 200 
LF of transmission main, including a new 
cliff anchorage system.

2030 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $198,000 

T-8

Segment 21, Creek Bed to Headworks.  Re-
place 1,000 LF of transmission main in the 
South Prairie Creek streambed near the 
headworks of the transmission main.

2032 70% Loan, 30% 
Water Cap. Fund $503,000 

D-1

Edith from Park to Dundass, Balm from 4th 
to Ewing, Ewing from Dundass to Balm, 
3rd from Main to Masin. Install 1,200 LF of 
8-inch water main.

C Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $354,000 

D-2
Heather between Whitmore and Elk Ridge 
Elementary School.  Install 70 LF of 8-inch 
water main.

C Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $29,000 

D-3
Mason from A to D, B south of Mason, Rain-
ier from Main to Mason.  Install 1,900 LF of 
8-inch water main.

2028 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $627,000 

D-4 A from Park to Main.  Install 850 LF of 
8-inch water main. 2027 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $307,000 

D-5 Division from Ryan to Fire Station.  Install 
360 LF of 8-inch water main. 2029 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $122,000 

D-6
Jefferson from 3rd to Pearl, Pearl from 
Perkings to Ryan, Mill from Pearl to Jeffer-
son. Install 2,080 LF of 8-inch water main.

2029 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $717,000 

D-7
Ryan from Spiketon Road to east side of 
LDS Church. -Install 2,360 LF of 12-inch 
water main.

2030 Water Capital Proj-
ect Fund $791,000 

D-8 Fulton and 4th. Install 450 feet of 8-inch 
water main. 2031 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $260,000 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
162



104 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

D-9 Sheets, south of Ryan.  Install 600 feet of 
8-inch water main. 2032 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $180,000 

D-10 Klink, south of Ryan.  Install 1,400 feet of 
8-inch water main. 2032 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $411,000 

D-11 SR 410, west to Mundy-Loss.  Install 1,100 
feet of 8-inch water main. 2034 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $309,000 

D-12 Hinkleman Extension from SR 410 to 112th. 
Install 700 feet of 8-inch water main. 2034 Water Capital Proj-

ect Fund $194,000 

D-13
Hinkleman Road from Hinkleman Extension 
to Mundy-Loss.  Install 2,200 feet of 8-inch 
water main.

2035 70% Loan, 30% 
Water Cap. Fund $1,371,000 

D-14 McNeely, north of Collins.  Install 2,200 
feet of 8-inch water main. 2036 Developer Exten-

sion $643,000 

D-15 McNeely, south of Collins.  Install 750 feet 
of 8-inch water main. 2036 Developer Exten-

sion $237,000 

D-16 River, north of Dieringer.  Install 450 feet 
of 8-inch water main. 2037 Developer Exten-

sion $148,000 

D-17 Mason from Spruce to McNeely.  Install 
2,000 feet of 8-inch water main. 2037 Developer Exten-

sion $584,000 

D-18 Dieringer from Sorenson to McNeely.  In-
stall 2,200 feet of 8-inch water main. 2038 Developer Exten-

sion $670,000 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

Sewer Systems CIP

G-1
Alley to the East of Edith Street–construct 
450 LF of new 8” PVC from Park Avenue to 
Dundass Street.

C Sewer Capital Proj-
ect Fund $151,000 

G-2 Spiketon Road-construct 500 LF of new 8” 
PVC from Ryan Road to A Street. C Sewer Capital Proj-

ect Fund $180,000 

G-3
Alley between Cascade Street and Edith 
Street-construct 450 LF of new 8” PVC from 
Dundass Avenue to Park Avenue.

C Sewer Capital Proj-
ect Fund $155,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
163



105 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

G-4 Near 550 Balm Street- construct 200 LF of 
new 8” PVC. C Sewer Capital Proj-

ect Fund $101,000 

G-5 Spiketon Road–construct 900 LF of new 8” 
PVC from Ryan Road to 649 Spiketon Road. C Sewer Capital Proj-

ect Fund $284,000 

G-6
Alley between Naches Street and Second 
Street–construct 1,000 LF of new 8” PVC, 
from Park Avenue to Mason Avenue. 

C Sewer Capital Proj-
ect Fund $325,000 

G-7 Sergeant Road: 700LF of 8' PVC, Whitmore 
Way to Collins Road 2028 Sewer Capital Proj-

ect Fund $234,000 

T-1

McNeely Street South, East on Mason to 
State School Property Line, South to Ryan 
Road to Klink Street-construct 4,800 LF of 
new 12” PVC.

2026

50% Developer 
Extension,    50% 
Sewer Cap. Project 
Fund

$2,008,000 

L-1 South Spiketon Road Lift Station - 500 gpm, 
2 pumps with Emergency Generator. C Developer Extension $1,065,000 

F-1 South Spiketon Road-construct 1,300 LF of 
new 6” Ductile Iron Force Main. 2026 Developer Extension $311,000 

L-2 Hinkleman Road Lift Station- 200 gpm, 2 
pumps with Emergency Generator 2027 Developer Extension $369,000 

F-2 Hinkleman Road- construct 3,800 LF of new 
4" Ductile Iron Force Main 2027 Developer Extension $873,000 

L-3 East 112th Street Lift Station- 250 gpm, 2 
pumps with Emergency Generator. 2028 Developer Extension $430,000 

F-3 East 112th Street- construct 2,400 LF of new 
4" Ductile Iron Force Main 2028 Developer Extension $553,00

L-4 West 112th Street Lift Station- 150 gpm, 2 
pumps with Emergency Generator 2030 Developer Extension $307,000 

F-4 West 112th Street- construct 2,300 LF of 
new 4" Ductile Iron Force Main 2030 Developer Extension $529,000 

TP-1 WWTP Non-Potable Water System UpgradesC Sewer Capital Fund $158,000 
TP-2 WWTP Wastewater Reuse Feasibility Study C Sewer Capital Fund $100,000 

TP-3 Decant Facility 2026 Sewer/Stormwater 
Capital $2,000,000 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
164



106 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

CIP 1ACollins Road Extension (36-Inch Parallel 
Storm Drain) 2024 Storm Capital Proj-

ect Fund $809,000 

CIP 1BCollins Road Extension (48-Inch Storm 
Drain) 2024 Storm Capital Proj-

ect Fund $982,000 

CIP 2 Spruce Street 2024 Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $604,000 

SMAP-
01 Main Street (Water Quality Vault) 2024 Storm Capital Proj-

ect Fund $493,000 

SMAP-
02 East Mason Avenue (Water Quality Vault) 2025 Storm Capital Proj-

ect Fund $732,000 

CIP 3A Ryan Road - Phase I (24-Inch Parallel Storm 
Drain) 2027 Storm Capital Proj-

ect Fund $2,595,000 

CIP 3B Ryan Road - Phase I (36-Inch Storm Drain) 2027 Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $2,942,000 

CIP 4 Ryan Road - Phase II 2034 Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $1,480,000 

CIP 5 Ryan Road/Sheets Road Culverts 2034 Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $1,767,000 

CIP 6 Sheets Road 2041+(1)Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $1,572,000 

CIP 7 Mundy Loss Road Culverts 2041+(1)Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $109,000 

CIP 8 McNeely North 2041+(1)Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $284,000 

CIP 9 112th Street East 2041+(1)Storm Capital Proj-
ect Fund $805,000 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

Storm Water Systems CIP

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
165



107 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

Transportation Systems CIP

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

1 East Hinkleman Road 2024 TIB & Local (PCR 32)$800,000 
2 Division Sreet Improvement Project 2024 Local $50,000 
3 Bevlo Street Extension 2024 Local $600,000 
4 Main Street Rehab (FH Trail Crossing) 2024 TIB & Local (PCR 59)$450,000 
5 1A: Roundabout at 112th/SR-165 2024 TIB $1,280,000 
6 1B: Right Hand Turn Lane north of Park Ave. 2024 TIB $1,037,000 
7 1C: SR-410 Corridor Study 2024 SS4A $250,000 
8 Spruce Street 2025 TIB & Local (PCR 72) $750,000 
9 West Hinkleman Road 2025 TIB & Local (PCR 32)$1,200,000 

10 Spiketon Road Pedestrian Improvements 2025 TIB (SP) & Local $1,650,000 
11 Mason Avenue Overlay 2025 TIB (APP) & Local $850,000 
12 2A: Roundabout at Park/SR-410 2026 PSRC, SS4A, Local $4,186,000 
13 2B: Roundabout at Main/SR-410 2026 PSRC, SS4A, Local $4,186,000 

14 2C: Extend Left Hand Turn Pocket SR-410/
SR-165 2026 PSRC, SS4A, Local $320,000 

15 2D: Roundabout at Mundy-Loss/SR-410 2027 PSRC, SS4A, Local $4,186,000 
16 2E: Roundabout at Hinkleman Ext./SR-410 2027 PSRC, SS4A, Local $4,186,000 
17 "A" Street Overlay 2027 TIB & Local (PCR 68)$300,000 
18 Sergeant Sreet Improvement Project 2026 Local (PCR 56.0) $520,000 

19 Pearl Street & Jefferson Ave Intersection 
Improvements 2027 TIB & Local $110,000 

20 Mt. View Ave. Resurfacing 2027 Local (PCR 36) $250,000 
21 Ryan Road (Phase 1 of 3) 2028 TIB & Local $3,900,000 

22 Collins Road Pedestrian Improvements (1 of 
2) 2028 TIB & Local $420,000 

23 Collins Road Pedestrian Improvements (2 of 
2) 2028 TIB & Local $550,000 

24 Mason Avenue Pedestrian Improvements (1 
of 2) 2029 TIB & Local $580,000 

25 Main Street Road Reconstruction 2029 TIB & Local $1,150,000 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
166



108 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

26 Mason Avenue Pedestrian Improvement 
Project 2030 TIB & Local $250,000 

27 Mason Avenue Pedestrian Improvements (2 
of 2) 2030 TIB & Local $267,410 

28 Naches Street (Phase 2 of 3) 2030 Local, (PCR 32) $110,220 
29 Division Street Overlay 2031 TIB & Local $259,380 
30 Dundass Street Overlay 2031 Local (PCR 68.1) $285,890 

31 Jefferson Avenue Overlay 2032 TIB & Local (PCR 
73.6) $844,140 

32 View Place Overlay 2032 Local (PCR 50) $35,750 
33 Whitmore Way Overlay 2032 Local (PCR 32) $226,490 

34 River Avenue & Main Street Intersection 
Improvements 2033 TIB & Local $1,526,800 

35 Pearl Street Overlay 2033 Local (PCR 72) $810,370 
36 Mundy Loss Pedestrian Improvement Project2033 TIB & Local $530,200 
37 Cottage Street Overlay 2034 TIB & Local (PCR 84)$546,150 

38 Cedar and Pearl Street Intersection Im-
provements 2035 TIB & Local $682,330 

39 Ryan Road (Phase 2 of 3) 2035 TIB & Local $2,712,930 
40 Collins Road Trail Project 2036 IAC, TIB & Local $990,660 

41 Mundy Loss & 112th Street East Intersection 
Improvements 2036 TIB & Local $1,701,370 

42 Hinkleman Extension Continuation 2037 TIB & Local $1,375,770 

43 2nd Street Resurfacing 2037 TIB & Local (PCR 
78.8) $99,330 

44 Park Avenue Resurfacing 2038 TIB & Local (PCR 
66.6) $275,330 

45 White River Trail 2038 IAC, TIB & Local $393,140 
46 Ryan Road (Phase 3 of 3) 2039 TIB & Local $1,865,600 
47 Levesque Trail Project 2039 IAC, TIB & Local $880,440 
48 Hinkleman Extension Resurfacing 2040 TIB & Local $260,480 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
167



109 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

024)

49 Naches Street (Phase 3 of 3) 2040 TIB & Local (PCR 
53.6) $229,570 

50 Dieringer Ave 2041 Local (PCR 80.1) $271,810 
51 Olson Ave 2041 Local (PCR 77.0) $168,960 
52 Whitehouse Ave 2042 Local ( PCR 88.8) $246,070 
53 Boyle Street 2042 Local (PCR 81.0) $88,110 
54 Hackmann Street 2043 Local (PCR 81.0) $135,850 
55 Trullinger Street 2043 Local (PCR 81.0) $97,350 
56 Alfano Place 2043 Local (PCR 86.0) $62,480 
57 Norma Street 2043 Local (PCR 70.7) $137,720 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
168



110 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

1 Miller Park Phase I RCO, WWRP
2 Heritage Park Corridor Splash Pad RCO, WWRP
3 Heritage Park Corridor Stage RCO, WWRP
4 White River Park and Trail RCO, WWRP
5 Vanderhoof Memorial Garden RCO, WWRP
6 Foothills Trail Musical Mile WWRP
7 Park North of 410 RCO, WWRP
8 Collins Road Trail Access RCO, WWRP
9 Cemetery Road Dog Park City
10 Miller Park Phase II RCO, WWRP
11 Park and Trail Signage Plan RCO, WWRP
12 Skate Park Renovation $60,000 

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

017)

Parks Projects

Remodel City Hall 2025 Local $3,000,000 
Pro

je
ct 

Num
ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

017)

Public Facility Projects

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
169



111 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

017)

Pro
je

ct 
Num

ber

Pro
je

ct 
Desc

rip
tio

n

Year o
f C

om
ple

tio
n

Fundin
g Sourc

e

Esti
m

ate
d Pro

je
ct 

Cost 
(2

017)

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
170



112 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Anticipated Staffing Needs

Administrator 1 1

Clerk/ Human Resources 2.5 3.5 1 - HR Assistant
As the number of staff grows, there will be 
more need for another person in the HR De-
partment.

None

Finance 4 5 1- accountant/ Finance assistant
distribute duties appropriately for skill levels 
and to move more analytical duties and finan-
cial statement prep

None

Information Technology 1 2 IT systems/server admin to keep up with the growing technology needs one additional office- can accommodate at Fire 
Department

Municipal Court 2.4 3.75 1 court clerk, .35 judicial hours

court clerk to focus primarily on probation 
monitoring and customer service. .35 judicial 
hours to compensate for anticipated increase 
in caseload.

None

Planning & Building 2.5 3.5 1-Civil/Building Inspector
Provide both civil and building inspections for 
the city. May potentially provide some con-
struction management.

None

Parks and Recreation 1 1.5 part time administrative assistant Support growth across department 1 addtional office, 1 open area work space. 

Maintenance/ custodial 2.55 5 1 Parks Maintiaince, 1 facility/custodial 
evening position, .5 parks Maintenance

Increased use of parks and facilities. Increase in 
number of maintianed acers of parks & trails.

New parks maintance shed/grague for staff 
work area and equipment storage. 

Recreation 2.93 4.6 1 Recreation Coordinator, 1 Recreation 
Specialist, .6 recreation assisstant. 

Coordinate and run increased participant num-
bers at youth center and Senior Center

MPC remodled to create ADA accessable re-
strooms, more open recreation space, update 
kitchen, and 1 additional office space.  At the 
youth center remodled for facility update and 
open entry up for accessability and better use 
of space. 

Police 13.87 18 4 additional police officers / 1 full-time 
clerk Antcipated increase in population We will need additional office space.  Expand-

ing the current footprint is a posibility.  

Departm
ent

Curre
nt S

taff 
budgete

d 

in
 2024

Antic
ip

ate
d #

 of s
taff 

needed in
 2044

Additi
onal p

osit
io

ns 

(li
st 

by cu
rre

nt j
ob 

cla
ss

)

Reaso
n fo

r a
dditi

onal 

sta
ff

Fa
cil

ity
 needs/

 up-

gra
des

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
171



113 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Administrator 1 1

Clerk/ Human Resources 2.5 3.5 1 - HR Assistant
As the number of staff grows, there will be 
more need for another person in the HR De-
partment.

None

Finance 4 5 1- accountant/ Finance assistant
distribute duties appropriately for skill levels 
and to move more analytical duties and finan-
cial statement prep

None

Information Technology 1 2 IT systems/server admin to keep up with the growing technology needs one additional office- can accommodate at Fire 
Department

Municipal Court 2.4 3.75 1 court clerk, .35 judicial hours

court clerk to focus primarily on probation 
monitoring and customer service. .35 judicial 
hours to compensate for anticipated increase 
in caseload.

None

Planning & Building 2.5 3.5 1-Civil/Building Inspector
Provide both civil and building inspections for 
the city. May potentially provide some con-
struction management.

None

Parks and Recreation 1 1.5 part time administrative assistant Support growth across department 1 addtional office, 1 open area work space. 

Maintenance/ custodial 2.55 5 1 Parks Maintiaince, 1 facility/custodial 
evening position, .5 parks Maintenance

Increased use of parks and facilities. Increase in 
number of maintianed acers of parks & trails.

New parks maintance shed/grague for staff 
work area and equipment storage. 

Recreation 2.93 4.6 1 Recreation Coordinator, 1 Recreation 
Specialist, .6 recreation assisstant. 

Coordinate and run increased participant num-
bers at youth center and Senior Center

MPC remodled to create ADA accessable re-
strooms, more open recreation space, update 
kitchen, and 1 additional office space.  At the 
youth center remodled for facility update and 
open entry up for accessability and better use 
of space. 

Police 13.87 18 4 additional police officers / 1 full-time 
clerk Antcipated increase in population We will need additional office space.  Expand-

ing the current footprint is a posibility.  

Departm
ent

Curre
nt S

taff 
budgete

d 

in
 2024

Antic
ip

ate
d #

 of s
taff 

needed in
 2044

Additi
onal p

osit
io

ns 

(li
st 

by cu
rre

nt j
ob 

cla
ss

)

Reaso
n fo

r a
dditi

onal 

sta
ff

Fa
cil

ity
 needs/

 up-

gra
des

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
172



114 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Public Works 14.45 19.45

1- Assistant PW Director/Engineer 
1- Stormwater Specialist 
2- Utility Workers 
1- WWTP Operator

Assist PW Director- coordinates the Public 
Works portion of the development and updat-
ing of comprehensive plans including the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, the Six-Year TIP, and 
utility comprehensive plans; supervises as-
signed staff; and acts as Public Works Director. 
Stormwater Specialist- Will perform imple-
mentation of the city's NPDES Stormwater 
Permit. WWTP Operator and Utility Workers- 
With the projected city population and housing 
increase we will need to add additional utility 
staff to support growing utility infastructure 
and other services.

Public Works Office Building- Is currently 1,560 
sq/ft. This building will need a 1,000 sq/ft ad-
dition to accomidate new office, larger break 
room and conference room. Public Works 
Shop- The shop was constructed in 1925 and 
is approximately 4,500 sq/ft. This building will 
need to be expanded and remodeled to acco-
midate for additional utility staff, equipment 
storage, and work stations.

Fire & EMS 6.4 18 (6) FF/EMT, (6) FF/PM, Fulltime Admin 
Assistant 

Call volume will exceed the capacity of a pre-
dominant volunteer staffing model

new roof and replacement of floor covering and 
major appliances 

Total 54.6 85.3

Departm
ent

Curre
nt S

taff 
budgete

d 

in
 2024

Antic
ip

ate
d #

 of s
taff 

needed in
 2044

Additi
onal p

osit
io

ns 

(li
st 

by cu
rre

nt j
ob 

cla
ss

)

Reaso
n fo

r a
dditi

onal 

sta
ff

Fa
cil

ity
 needs/

 up-

gra
des

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
173



115 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Public Works 14.45 19.45

1- Assistant PW Director/Engineer 
1- Stormwater Specialist 
2- Utility Workers 
1- WWTP Operator

Assist PW Director- coordinates the Public 
Works portion of the development and updat-
ing of comprehensive plans including the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, the Six-Year TIP, and 
utility comprehensive plans; supervises as-
signed staff; and acts as Public Works Director. 
Stormwater Specialist- Will perform imple-
mentation of the city's NPDES Stormwater 
Permit. WWTP Operator and Utility Workers- 
With the projected city population and housing 
increase we will need to add additional utility 
staff to support growing utility infastructure 
and other services.

Public Works Office Building- Is currently 1,560 
sq/ft. This building will need a 1,000 sq/ft ad-
dition to accomidate new office, larger break 
room and conference room. Public Works 
Shop- The shop was constructed in 1925 and 
is approximately 4,500 sq/ft. This building will 
need to be expanded and remodeled to acco-
midate for additional utility staff, equipment 
storage, and work stations.

Fire & EMS 6.4 18 (6) FF/EMT, (6) FF/PM, Fulltime Admin 
Assistant 

Call volume will exceed the capacity of a pre-
dominant volunteer staffing model

new roof and replacement of floor covering and 
major appliances 

Total 54.6 85.3

Departm
ent

Curre
nt S

taff 
budgete

d 

in
 2024

Antic
ip

ate
d #

 of s
taff 

needed in
 2044

Additi
onal p

osit
io

ns 

(li
st 

by cu
rre

nt j
ob 

cla
ss

)

Reaso
n fo

r a
dditi

onal 

sta
ff

Fa
cil

ity
 needs/

 up-

gra
des

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
174



116 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
175



117 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Goals and Policies
CF 1	 PROVIDE, MAINTAIN, AND IMPROVE CITY FACILITIES TO ENSURE 

EFFICIENCY, SAFETY, AND PROVISION OF THE BEST POSSIBLE SERVICE TO 
RESIDENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND THE CITY WHILE ENHANCING THE PHYSICAL 
LANDSCAPE AND QUALITY OF LIFE.

CF 1.1	 Provide a City Hall and other city facilities that are safe, functional, conducive 
to the provision of local governance, service provision, and operations, and 
that provide a positive model of the type of development desired in the city.

CF 1.2	 Maintain adequate permanent facilities for police and fire functions, 
providing any additional or expanded facilities as needed.

CF 1.3	 Provide and maintain cultural and civic facilities, such as a senior center, 
youth center, and museum.

CF 1.4	 Address facility and service needs that are consistent with the 
comprehensive plan and city growth targets, updating existing facility plans 
if necessary.

CF 1.5	 Require new development to fund a fair share of costs to provide service, 
utility, parks, and facilities needs generated by that development.

CF 1.6	 Charge impact fees when the City Council determines that new development 
should pay its proportionate share of the capital facilities that it needs. 
Impact fees may spent on the following capital facilities:
a.	 Public streets and roads;
b.	 Publicly owned parks;
c.	 Open space and recreation facilities;
d.	 School facilities; and
e.	 Fire protection facilities.

CF 1.7	 Work with counties, tribes, other cities, and special purpose districts to 
identify and fulfill capital facilities needs that support the Regional Growth 
Strategy.

CF 2	 ENSURE THAT FACILITIES AND SERVICES PROJECTS ARE FINANCIALLY 
FEASIBLE, AND THAT PUBLIC FUNDING FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 
DEVELOPMENT IS ACCOUNTED FOR IN ANNUAL CITY BUDGETS.

CF 2.1	 Establish a unified City CIP consisting of separate CIPs for each service or 
utility that lists planned capital improvements and establishes a priority and 
dedicated funding source for the capital improvements for a six-year period.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
176



118 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

CF 2.2	 Evaluate each service or utility CIP priority and funding sources at least once 
every two years, but not more than twice a year. Any amendment to the CIP 
must analyze the impacts the amendment will have on permits issued by the 
City based on concurrency.

CF 2.3	 Evaluate concurrency for transportation based on only those capital 
improvements identified in the CIP as fully funded within the six-year period.

CF 2.4	 The City shall not provide a capital improvement, nor shall it accept the 
provision of a capital improvement by others, if the City or the provider is 
unable to pay for subsequent annual operating and maintenance costs of the 
improvement.

CF 2.5	 The City CIP shall constitute a separate adopted appendix to this plan.
CF 2.6	 Update the City’s 6-year Capital Improvement Plan at least every two years 

in conjunction with the City’s budget development and approval process. 
If probable funding falls short of existing needs, evaluate whether the land 
use element should be updated to create consistency between the capital 
facilities element, CIP and Land use elements.

CF 2.7	 Coordinate with public school providers for the provision of capital 
improvements.

CF 2.8	 Incorporate the public school CIPs as appendices to the City CIP following 
review for consistency with this plan.

CF 2.9	 Following review and adoption of a District master plan and CIP, coordinate 
with public schools for the collection, if applicable, of school impact fees as 
part of the project review process.

CF 3	 COORDINATE WITH SERVICE PROVIDERS TO ENSURE CITYWIDE UTILITIES 
AND PUBLIC SERVICES ARE RELIABLE, COMPETITIVE, EQUITABLE, AND 
FINANCIALLY SUSTAINABLE.

CF 3.1	 Work with all utility providers in the City of Buckley to integrate planning to 
ensure service delivery in accordance with this plan. 

CF 3.2	 Work with Marion Water District to transition all existing customers within 
the City of Buckley service area to City of Buckley provided service.  

CF 3.3	 Correct deficiencies where deficiencies in service are identified. If the City 
determines that a neighboring purveyor or provider is not responsive to 
service needs, the City shall consider all remedies within its authority to 
ensure the adequate provision of service.

CF 3.4	 Ensure adequate funding and resources for public health and safety 
providers, including fire, emergency medical services, and police.

Call times
CF 3.5	 Coordinate with school districts on facility siting and design to support safe, 

walkable access, including strategies to provide adequate urban capacity for 
new schools.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
177



119 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

CF 4	 ENSURE NEW DEVELOPMENT AND FACILITIES PLANNING INCORPORATES 
EQUITABLE ACCESS TO PARKS, TRAILS, OPEN SPACES, AND RECREATIONAL 
OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL RESIDENTS.

CF 4.1	 Provide City facilities and parks and recreation capital improvements in 
accordance with this plan and the Parks Recreation and Open Space (PROS) 
Plan.

CF 4.2	 Review proposed land use permits and/or development permits or approvals 
for impacts to parks and recreation capacity.

CF 4.3	 The City may consider public, on-site open space and recreational facilities 
provided at the developer's expense that are substantially in excess of those 
required by the City, or that provide a unique attribute to the city, as a full 
or partial substitute for a development's fair share of funding for parks and 
recreation.

CF 4.4	 Coordinate with public schools for jointly funded parks and recreation capital 
improvements and inclusion of jointly funded projects in the parks and 
recreation CIP.

CF 5	 PROTECT AND ENHANCE THE ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
SAFETY WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AND FACILITIES.

CF 5.1	 Promote improved conservation and more efficient use of water, as well as 
the increased use of reclaimed water, to reduce wastewater generation and 
ensure water availability.

CF 5.2	 Promote the use of renewable energy resources to meet the region’s energy 
needs.

CF 5.3	 Reduce the rate of energy consumption through conservation and alternative 
energy forms to extend the life of existing facilities and infrastructure.

CF 5.4	 Consider the potential impacts of climate change on public facilities, 
supporting the necessary investments to move towards low-carbon energy 
sources.

CF 5.5	 Incorporate hazard mitigation measures into existing facilities maintenance, 
upgrading plans when necessary.

CF 6	 TAKE INTO ACCOUNT POTENTIAL ECONOMIC, SOCIAL, AND HEALTH 
IMPACTS WHEN SITING PUBLIC FACILITIES.

CF 6.1	 Locate community facilities and services, including civic places like parks, 
schools, and other public spaces, in centers and near transit.

CF 6.2	 Promote affordable and equitable access of public utilities and services to 
all communities, especially populations that have historically experienced 
marginalization or are underserved.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
178



120 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

UT 1	 FACILITATE THE DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL UTILITIES 
AT THE APPROPRIATE LEVELS OF SERVICE TO ACCOMMODATE GROWTH 
THAT IS ANTICIPATED TO OCCUR IN THE CITY OF BUCKLEY AND ITS 
URBAN GROWTH AREA.
UT 1.1	 The City should plan for and deliver utilities and public facilities in advance 

of new development to the extent feasible.  After occupancy, utility use 
should not cause a reduction  in service levels below City of Buckley 
standards.

UT 1.2	 The location, type, and size of all public facilities shall be determined and/or 
approved by the City. The extension and sizing of system components shall 
be based on the land use plan and proposed development.

UT 1.3	 Facilities shall be designed, constructed, and maintained to reasonably 
minimize their impact on surrounding neighborhoods.

UT 1.4	 Expand public utility service to unserved areas of the Urban Growth Area, 
including extensions into potential annexation areas under conditions 
consistent with the Growth Management Act. Work with service and utility 
providers to expand services to underserved areas.

UT 1.5	 Coordinate with other jurisdictions and governmental entities in the 
planning and implementation of multi-jurisdictional utility facility additions 
and improvements.

UT 1.6	 Coordinate with Pierce County to ensure that public utility facilities sited  
in potential annexation areas are designed and built in accordance with 
the City’s standards to reduce challenges and inefficiencies as they are 
incorporated into the city

UT 2	 FACILITATE THE PROVISION OF UTILITIES THAT ARE ENVIRONMENTALLY 
SENSITIVE, SAFE AND RELIABLE, AESTHETICALLY COMPATIBLE WITH THE 
SURROUNDING LAND USES, AVAILABLE AT A REASONABLE ECONOMIC 
COST, AND CAN BE PROVIDED IN AN EFFICIENT MANNER.
UT 2.1	 Require notification to the City prior to a utility’s maintenance or removal 

of vegetation in City right-of-ways.
UT 2.2	 Require the reasonable screening and/or architecturally compatible 

integration of all new site-specific, above-ground facilities.
UT 2.3	 The City and utility companies shall coordinate the acquisition, use, and 

enhancement of utility corridors for pedestrian, bicycle, and equestrian 
trails and for wildlife corridors and habitat provided such joint use does not 
compromise  prudent utility practice.

UT 2.4	 Facilitate the conversion to cost-effective and environmentally sensitive 
alternative technologies and energy sources.

UT 2.5	 Facilitate and encourage conservation of resources.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
179



121 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

UT 2.6	 The City will encourage utility providers to ensure that all maintenance, 
repair, installation, and replacement activities by utilities are consistent 
with the City’s Critical Areas Ordinances (CAOs).

UT 2.7	 Promote conservation and encourage development of conservation devices 
and programs.

UT 3	 PROCESS PERMITS AND APPROVALS FOR UTILITY FACILITIES IN A 
FAIR AND TIMELY MANNER AND IN ACCORD WITH THE DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS WHICH ENCOURAGE PREDICTABILITY AND CONSISTENCY.
UT 3.1	 Encourage system design practices intended to minimize the number and 

duration of interruptions to customer service.
UT 3.2	 Encourage the utilities to solicit community input on the siting of proposed 

facilities prior to seeking City approval for facilities, which may have a 
significant impact on the community.

UT 3.3	 The City shall promote, when reasonably feasible and appropriate, co-
location of new public and private utility distribution facilities in shared 
trenches/rights of way, and coordination of construction timing to 
minimize construction-related disruptions and reduce the cost of utility 
delivery.

UT 3.4	 The City will provide timely effective notice to utilities to encourage 
coordination of public and private utility trenching activities for new 
construction and maintenance and repair of existing roads.

UT 3.5	 The City shall encourage provision of an efficient, cost-effective, and 
reliable utility service by ensuring land will be made available for the 
location of utility lines, including location within transportation corridors.

UT 3.6	 The City will utilize maps of the existing and proposed utility facility 
corridors to determine consistency of such designations with the elements 
of the comprehensive plan.

UT 3.7	 The City will assure that the comprehensive plan designates areas available 
for the location of utility facilities.

UT 3.8	 Encourage additions to and improvements of facilities that provide 
adequate capacity for future planned growth.

UT 4	 ENSURE RELIABLE AND COST-EFFECTIVE ACCESS TO CITY WATER.

UT 4.1	 Provide reliable water service for domestic use, fire flow, and emergencies.

UT 4.2	 Improve the quality of the water supply to all customers.

UT 4.3	 Encourage private well water users in the planning area to access the City’s 
or other water purveyor systems, provided that the fair share of costs are 
paid by the benefiting parties.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
180



122 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

UT 4.4	 Insure a cost-effective water supply that meets City needs.

UT 4.5	 Continue to participate in and facilitate the development of a regional 
water supply system that effectively balances regional water resources and 
supply needs, while protecting the City’s interests.

UT 4.6	 Develop agreements with other water purveyors in the Urban Growth Area 
to consult with the City before approving additional water hookups.

UT 5	 REDUCE SEWER RELATED ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC HEALTH 
IMPACTS BY PROVIDING A COST-EFFECTIVE AND ACCESSIBLE MUNICIPAL 
SEWER SYSTEM.
UT 5.1	 Ensure a cost-effective sewer system that meets the City’s needs and 

protects the environment.
UT 5.2	 Continue to require sewer connections for all new developments, including 

single-family plats unless otherwise approved by the City.
UT 5.3	 Encourage existing single-family homes with septic systems to connect 

to the sewer system where available. If an existing septic system poses 
a health or environmental problem the homeowner shall be required to 
connect to the sewer system, if practicable.

UT 6	 PROTECT FRESHWATER RESOURCES THROUGH COORDINATED 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES.
UT 6.1	 Coordinate management of the stormwater system with property owners 

to prevent property damage from flooding, protect water quality, maintain 
recharge of aquifers, provide for the safety and enjoyment of citizens, and 
preserve and enhance habitat and sensitive areas.

UT 6.2	 Enforce surface water controls in order to protect surface and groundwater 
quality.

UT 7	 PROMOTE AND SUPPORT THE SAFE DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE AND 
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES CONSISTENT WITH PIERCE COUNTY RULES 
AND REGULATIONS.
UT 7.1	 Cooperate with other private and public agencies in the region to 

manage and control hazardous waste and moderate-risk waste, including 
hazardous household substances.

UT 7.2	 Educate the public in the proper handling and disposal of hazardous 
household waste and on the use of alternative products or practices that 
result in reducing the use and storage of hazardous materials in the home 
and businesses.

UT 7.3	 Hazardous wastes shall be properly disposed of according to procedures 
and standards set by federal, state, or regional agencies.

UT 7.4	 Provide for the safe and convenient disposal of hazardous household waste 
through a conveniently located collection facility or cooperation with 
county facilities.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
181



123 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

UT 7.5	 Replace, as soon as practicable, the City’s old underground fuel storage 
tanks with new tanks that reduce the potential for groundwater 
degradation and meets the Washington Department of Ecology’s 
standards.

UT 7.6	 Promote the recycling of solid waste materials by providing opportunities 
for convenient recycling, waste reduction, and source separation.

UT 7.7	 Materials remaining after effective waste reduction and source separation 
shall be handled in accordance with the Tacoma-Pierce County Solid Waste 
Management Plan.

UT 7.8	 The City shall develop recycling programs, including educational materials 
on recycling, composting, and other waste reduction methods.

UT 7.9	 Encourage and actively participate in a uniform regional approach to solid 
waste management.

UT 7.10	 Utilize the public review process in the selection and approval of any 
disposal facility, considering sensitivity to aesthetics, health effects, and 
environmental conditions.

UT 7.11	 Manage solid waste collection to minimize litter and neighborhood 
disruption.

UT 7.12	 Provide uniform collection service to areas annexed to the City as soon as 
can reasonably be arranged in accordance with service contracts.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
182



124 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Some Connection
Strong Connection

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

GOAL

01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 
downtown where people meet each 
other face-to-face, where small 
businesses can thrive, and with housing 
close at hand that support a high quality 
of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the 
rural quality of life farther from City 
center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic 
space and park system.

VISION STATEMENTS

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents 
with high quality roads, utilities, 
environmental amenities and services.

Sustaining and fostering town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...

Economic development of the Downtown Core and State Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...

07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that creates a friendly gateway to our city with more retail, 
small businesses and housing that is community oriented and provides new places for 
residents and visitors to live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recreational activities
In 2044, Buckley will...

08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through for outdoor recreation enthusiasts availing 
themselves of our area’s natural beauty through concerted infrastructure and facility 
investment and support for recreation-oriented businesses. 

Capital Facilities & Utilities Goals 
and the Community Vision

Vision Statement

01

The diagrams on the next few pages illustrate 
how the capital facilities and utilities goals 
articulated in this chapter connect to the 
community vision statements in Chapter 3.

Weak Connection

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
183



125 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Provide, maintain, and improve 
City facilities to ensure 
efficiency, safety, and provision 
of the best possible service 
to residents, employees, and 
the City while enhancing the 
physical landscape and quality 
of life.

Ensure that facilities and services projects are 
financially feasible, and that public funding for 
infrastructure development is accounted for in 
annual city budgets.

Coordinate with service 
providers to ensure citywide 
utilities and public services are 
reliable, competitive, equitable, 
and financially sustainable.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

CF 1
01

02
03

04
0507

CF 2
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

CF 3
01

CF 1

CF 2

CF 3

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
184



126 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Ensure new development and 
facilities planning incorporates 
equitable access to parks, 
trails, open spaces, and 
recreational opportunities for 
all residents.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

CF 4
01CF 4

Protect and enhance the environment and public 
health and safety when providing services and 
facilities.

Take into account potential 
economic, social, and health 
impacts when siting public 
facilities.

02
03

04
0507

CF 5
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

CF 6
01

CF 5

CF 6

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
185



127 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Facilitate the development 
and maintenance of all utilities 
at the appropriate levels of 
service to accommodate 
growth that is anticipated to 
occur in the City of Buckley and 
its Urban Growth Area.

Facilitate the provision of utilities that are 
environmentally sensitive, safe and reliable, 
aesthetically compatible with the surrounding land 
uses, available at a reasonable economic cost, and 
can be provided in an efficient manner.

Process permits and approvals 
for utility facilities in a fair 
and timely manner and in 
accord with the development 
regulations which encourage 
predictability and consistency.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

UT 1
01

02
03

04
0507

UT 2
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

UT 3
01

UT 1

UT 2

UT 3

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
186



128 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Ensure reliable and cost-
effective access to city water.

Reduce sewer related environmental and public 
health impacts by providing a cost-effective and 
accessible municipal sewer system.

Protect freshwater resources 
through coordinated 
stormwater management 
strategies.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

UT 4
01

02
03

04
0507

UT 5
01

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

UT 6
01

UT 4

UT 5

UT 6

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
187



129 | Capital Facilities & Utilities C
ap

 F
ac

. &
 U

t.

Promote and support the 
safe disposal of solid waste 
and hazardous substances 
consistent with Pierce County 
rules and regulations.

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

UT 7
01UT 7

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
188



06
130 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
189



06
131 | Transportation

Transportation
Tr

an
sp

.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
190



132 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Transportation

Introduction
This Comprehensive Plan Transportation 
Element establishes goals, policies, and imple-
mentation strategies to guide future decisions 
affecting the City of Buckley’s transportation 
systems including pedestrian, bicycle, transit 
and vehicular facilities. This element is intend-
ed to reinforce Buckley’s overall vision of being 
a safe and friendly historic small town that is an 
attractive place to live, work, and play. Along 
with other elements in the Comprehensive 
Plan Transportation Element works to preserve 
Buckley’s small town character, efficient pro-
vision of services, support diverse housing op-
portunities, protect the natural environment, 
foster a strong economic base, ensure safe 
access to goods and services and develop high 
quality public spaces that foster community in-
teraction. The focus of the transportation ele-
ment is on ensuring safe and convenient access 
to goods and services through an efficient and 
environmentally sensitive multimodal trans-
portation system. Pedestrian, bicycle, transit 
and vehicular facilities are all considered when 
answering the following questions:
01.	 What are the strengths and weaknesses 

of Buckley’s current transportation 
system?

02.	 What is Buckley’s projected 
transportation needs in the future?

03.	 What is Buckley’s overall strategy for 
meeting its future transportation needs?

04.	 What are Buckley’s goals, policies for 
improving its transportation system?

05.	 What specific actions can Buckley begin 
to take to implement its vision?

Planning Process
This Transportation Element update was pre-
pared in the following series of steps:
01.	 In February of 2019, WSDOT issued the 

SR 410 – 234th Avenue E to Garrett 
Street Congestion Study. The Study 
included the entirety of the SR 410 
corridor within the Buckley city limits. 
The 2019 WSDOT Study included land use 
assumptions, level of service and travel 
demand forecasts for year 2040, and 
identification of transportation projects 
to meet future demands and to improve 
safety and human health.

02.	 In July of 2022, the City adopted 
Ordinance No. 11-22 amending the 
Transportation Element with new Traffic 
Impact Fees to help fund 17 projects 
totaling $20.4 Million. The Land Use 
Element assumes residential units 
within the city will grow by 2.1% annually 
between 2020 and 2044. During that 
same time period, employment within the 
city is expected to grow by 1.7% annually.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
191



133 | Transportation

Tr
an

sp
.

03.	 In June of 2025, the current PSRC 
Soundcast Traffic Model travel demand 
forecasts were reviewed. The PSRC 
information includes travel demand 
forecasts for year 2050 to reflect the 
regional growth targets, including the 
applicable segment of SR-410. The 2025 
PSRC annual percentage increases were 
compared to the 2019 WSDOT study 
annual percentage increases to normalize 
the projections for year 2044, as follows:

Location 
on SR 410

Traffic 
Period

Annual % 
per 2019 
WSDOT

Annual % 
per 2025 
PSRC

White River 
Bridge

AM Peak 
Hour

1.08% 0.37%

White River 
Bridge

PM Peak 
Hour

0.84% 0.55%

West of 
Buckley

AM Peak 
Hour

1.84% 0.16%

West of 
Buckley

PM Peak 
Hour

1.35% 0.36%

04.	 It was determined that traffic growth 
anticipated along SR 410 in the 2019 
WSDOT study is generally consistent with 
the land use growth anticipated in the 
Land Use Element, meaning that both 
traffic forecasts would result in the same 
long-term City project list. The 2019 
WSDOT study was based on the 2010 and 
2035 PSRC models that were available 
at the time of the analysis. Based on 
reviewing recent 2025 traffic counts, SR 
410 corridor is composed of about 40 to 
50% regional (non-City) trips that are not 
expected to increase significantly based 

on PSRC findings. The remaining City-
related trips on the SR 410 corridor would 
grow at a relatively higher rate similar to 
the Land Use Element growth. Most of 
the City’s longer trips along SR 410 would 
be oriented to Pierce County, reflecting 
the higher growth to the west of Buckley 
in the 2019 WSDOT Study. City-related 
growth trips oriented to the north would 
be more limited due to bridge capacity 
constraints. It is anticipated that vehicle-
related LOS concerns would be limited to 
state highway facilities. MMLOS concerns 
related to active transportation do lead 
to numerous projects on and off the state 
highways. These anticipated long-range 
projects are needed to address new 
developments anticipated in the Land Use 
Element.      

05.	 To address the road and highway traffic 
and safety LOS deficiencies, the City has 
established a prioritized Transportation 
Improvement Plan (TIP) list. The projects 
on the SR-410 corridor are substantially 
carried forward from the 2019 WSDOT 
Study, with additional projects within 
the City for arterials, collectors and 
lower road classifications. The TIP 
projects include detailed cost estimates, 
anticipated year of completion, and 
anticipated funding source. Funding 
sources are typically transportation 
grant programs at Federal, State and 
County level. City includes budgeting 
of percentage matches associated with 
successful grant funding applications.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
192



134 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

06.	 Pedestrian LOS in Buckley is established 
at “D.” The City completed a Crosswalk 
Inventory (tables and map) for each City 
intersection for current conditions. The 
City completed a Pedestrian Inventory 
(tables and map) for each sidewalk 
segment. The City also established 
pedestrian LOS in its Draft Sidewalk and 
ADA Transition Plan. The LOS ratings use 
an equation that incorporates vehicle 
volumes, pedestrian use and type, vehicle 
speeds, shoulder widths, and roadway 
widths.

07.	 Bicycle LOS in Buckley is established 
at “D.” The City completed a Bicycle 
Inventory (tables and map) for each City 
street for current conditions. The City 
PROS plan also identifies existing bicycle 
facilities and planned bicycle and shared-
use path projects to connect multimodal 
users with City parks, recreation, and 
open spaces. The LOS ratings use an 
equation that incorporates vehicle 
volumes, bicycle use and type, vehicle 
speeds, roadway widths, and safety 
determinations.

08.	 The City has established a prioritized 
Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) 
list to address LOS deficiencies for all City 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities, including 
crosswalks, sidewalks, road-integrated 
bicycle lanes, and separated bicycle trails. 
The TIP addresses the City multimodal 
LOS deficiencies on a citywide basis. 
The TIP projects include detailed cost 
estimates, anticipated year of completion, 
and anticipated funding source. Funding 
sources are typically transportation 
grant programs at Federal, State and 
County level. City includes budgeting 
of percentage matches associated with 
successful grant funding applications.

Please see the Capital Facilities element for Transpor-
tation Improvement Project list, and Appendix E for 
multimodal transportation inventory.

Existing Conditions
Buckley’s historic neighborhoods are laid out 
in a traditional street grid pattern on approxi-
mately 320 feet by 550 feet street-blocks with 
alleys running down their middle. This street 
pattern provides strong pedestrian and vehic-
ular connectivity within the community facil-
itating convenient access to goods and ser-
vices. The alleys also enhance street aesthetics 
by providing alternative corridors for garbage 
pickup and utilities.
Some of Buckley’s more recent subdivisions 
are laid out in a loop and lollipop street pat-
tern. This pattern discourages through traffic 
and increases out of direction travel. It conse-
quently does not provide strong pedestrian or 
vehicular connectivity resulting in long cir-
cuitous routes to cover otherwise short dis-
tances. This street pattern developed after the 
advent of the automobile when accessibility by 
foot was thought to be no longer crucial. How-
ever, as a result of this pattern people’s trans-
portation choices become severely limited. 
Children and the elderly were especially affect-
ed by the lack of safe and convenient pedestri-
an and bicycle access to activities, goods and 
services. It was also less recognized how au-
tomobile dependence could affect our health. 
Our country’s obesity epidemic not to mention 
environmental and safety concerns over the 
burning of fossil fuels have all been tied to our 
nation’s heavy reliance upon the automobile. 
With the growing awareness of the adverse 
health, environmental and social impacts of 
automobile dependence, communities around 
the country are working to create more walk 
able and pedestrian friendly neighborhoods to 
loosen dependence upon the automobile by in-
creasing transportation choices. As residential 
development continues to occur within Buck-
ley, street patterns will continue to have strong 
effects upon accessibility and neighborhood 
character. Finding ways to ensure safe and 
convenient multi-modal access and preserve 
Buckley’s small town character is the primary 
goal of this Transportation Element.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
193



135 | Transportation

Tr
an

sp
.

Goals & Policies
TR 1	 ENSURE ALL TRANSPORTATION MODES ARE DESIGNED FOR SAFETY.

TR 1.1	 Buckley’s trails, sidewalks, bike paths, and roadways should provide safe 
and protected access to amenities, services, and schools and other civic 
institutions. 

TR 1.2	 Right-of-way improvements shall be done to the latest accepted design 
standards. If the design standards cannot be met, a deviation shall be 
prepared by the designer and shall be reviewed for possible approval by the 
City Engineer.

TR 1.3	 Provide needed roadway striping and signing to maintain safe traffic 
operation service levels that are consistent with the most recent Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).

TR 1.4	 The City should ensure adequate visibility for automobiles, bicyclists and 
pedestrians by enforcing landscape and fence height standards.

TR 1.5	 A code enforcement officer should be responsible for enforcing the 
vegetation height and breadth over sidewalks as well as beside roads to 
enhance accessibility and visibility

TR 1.6	 The City should work with the Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) to make State Route (SR) 410 safer for pedestrians

TR 1.7	 The City should prepare a Local Road Safety Plan and Comprehensive 
Safety Action Plan to evaluate crash data, identify areas of emphasis and 
countermeasures and identify projects and strategies using the Safe System 
Approach to enhance safety for all transportation modes.

TR 1.8	 The City should prepare a Sidewalk and ADA Transition Plan to inventory 
and evaluate existing pedestrian facilities and to develop a list of prioritized 
projects and funding sources to transition the City’s pedestrian facilities to 
full ADA compliance.

TR 2	 ENHANCE THE APPEARANCE, QUALITY, FUNCTION AND ACCESSIBILITY OF 
THE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM.

TR 2.1	 Public art should be provided on public rights-of-way by new development to 
enhance the City’s sense of place

TR 2.2	 All new transportation facilities shall meet current ADA guidelines. All 
existing facilities shall be inventoried for ADA compliance and prioritized for 
enhancement where necessary.

TR 2.3	 Street patterns should be planned as grid systems to increase transit 
network resilience. Use of a grid system provides infrastructure redundancy; 
in the event of an emergency, a grid system can provide multiple routes to 
safety.   Streets without through traffic including dead ends or long block and 
; clustered development, such as planned unit developments, should provide 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
194



136 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

a trail system through the property and connect with adjacent rights-of-way 
or developed trails where possible.

TR 2.4	 Future streets and their classifications should follow a regular distribution 
pattern that anticipates potential land uses and provides for orderly 
development.

TR 2.5	 Alleys should be encouraged in new development  to eliminate the need for 
placing overhead wires, garages, and garbage cans in front of residences.

TR 2.6	 The sizes and capacities of transportation facilities should be appropriately 
matched to the surrounding land uses.

TR 2.7	 The City should consider the costs and benefits of both construction and 
maintenance when setting guidelines for street dimensions and rights-of-
way.

TR 2.8	 Sidewalks should be designed to eliminate sheet flow and ponding on the 
walkway surface.

TR 2.9	 Crosswalks should be paved differently to ensure visibility.
TR 2.10	 Sidewalks that are likely to serve as parking areas or driveways should be 

designed as driveways to prevent the sidewalk from crumbling through use.
TR 2.11	 Sidewalks should have standard curbs (not rolled curbs).
TR 2.12	 Sidewalks should be sloped toward the street for drainage.
TR 2.13	 Pavement materials and landscaping should be used to create visual 

connections between trails and other transportation infrastructure

TR 3	 IMPROVE THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF CITY RESIDENTS BY PROVIDING 
MULTIPLE WAYS TO GET FROM ONE PART OF THE CITY TO ANOTHER PART 
OF THE CITY USING A VARIETY OF TRANSPORTATION MODES.

TR 3.1	 Sidewalks should be an inventoried part of the City’s trail system, and should 
create contiguous and thoughtful pedestrian access to Downtown, schools, 
parks and other important city amenities and service locations

TR 3.2	 Require that proposed dead-end streets and  cul-de-sacs contain pedestrian 
links to the next street. Where possible, support the development of new 
pedestrian links at existing dead ends and cul-de-sacs.

TR 3.3	 Developers should provide bike and pedestrian connections to adjoining 
properties.

TR 3.4	 All new development should provide pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure, 
such as sidewalks, crosswalks, and bike paths.

TR 4	 SUPPORT CITY GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REDUCTION 

TR 4.1	 Increase non-motorized trips within the City of Buckley and decrease vehicle 
miles traveled by providing alternatives to driving alone

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
195



137 | Transportation

Tr
an

sp
.

TR 4.2	 The City of Buckley should implement transportation demand management 
measures that provide incentives for walking, biking, and public 
transportation and disincentives for automobile use.

TR 4.3	 Non-motorized links across SR 410 should be by signalized crosswalks or a 
pedestrian route that is grade separated.

TR 4.4	 The City should ensure safe and secure access to non-motorized amenities.
TR 4.5	 Crosswalk safety at major intersections should be enhanced through the 

addition of visual cues, such as paving and painting treatments, lighting, and/
or signage. Where crossing distances are long, i.e., across SR 410, raised 
medians should be constructed to serve as places of refuge for pedestrians.

TR 4.6	 Future transit areas should include covered transit shelters.
TR 4.7	 Provide information about Northwest ecology along bicycling and walking 

routes as well as the Foothills Trail to increase local ecological literacy
TR 4.8	 The City should work with outside cycling and walking groups, such as Feet 

First or Cascade Cycling Group, to provide outreach and education regarding 
the different modes of transportation to schools and other public facilities.

TR 4.9	 The City should create a continuous bicycle route system linked to the 
Foothills Trail and other City facilities not only as a way to reduce vehicle 
miles traveled but to enhance the city’s appeal as an ecotourism destination

TR 4.10	 All new commercial and office developments and facilities shall include 
bicycle parking. Park-and-ride areas and areas for future transit facilities 
should include covered bicycle parking.

TR 4.11	  The City should provide plug-in charging stations for electric vehicles.
TR 4.12	 Ensure all federal and state air quality standards are met and reduce 

emissions of air toxics and greenhouse gases.

TR 5	 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED WITH 
REDUCED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS.

TR 5.1	 All transportation improvements should minimize impervious footprints and 
use current stormwater techniques as required in Title 14 of the Buckley 
Municipal Code.

TR 5.2	 The City shall pursue low-impact street and parking lot design, construction, 
and maintenance techniques to minimize impervious surface, water 
pollution, and water runoff.

TR 5.3	 New roads and trails should be designed in such a way that they will not 
affect wetlands, natural preserves, parks and recreation areas, significant 
historical and cultural resources, and areas identified as critical wildlife 
habitat.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
196



138 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

TR 6	 THE CITY SHOULD FINANCE IMPROVEMENTS THAT MAXIMIZE BENEFITS 
FOR CITY RESIDENTS, AND PARTICULARLY RESIDENTS WITH LIMITED 
MOBILITY 

TR 6.1	 The City should develop a list of transportation capital improvement 
projects, including roadway improvements, roadway maintenance, roadway 
preservation and non-motorized improvements to be accomplished within 
the next 6 years and next 20 years and updated annually. The list should 
include an updated project cost, adjusted for inflation. The list should include 
the planned funding sources for each project, including as applicable SS4A, 
WSDOT, PSRC, TIB, City Local funds and developer.

TR 6.2	 The City should use both traditional and innovative methods for financing 
roadway improvements such as public/private partnerships, and impact fees.

TR 6.3	 The City should explore funding tools such as road improvement districts 
(RIDs), local improvement districts (LIDs), and other local funding 
mechanisms to finance projects that provide a primary local benefit.

TR 6.4	 WSDOT, Pierce County, and the City of Buckley should work together 
to share transportation resources and reduce overlap in transportation 
expenditures.

TR 6.5	 The City should require maintenance agreements for private roads that are 
executed by the responsible landowners.

TR 6.6	 The City should continue to compete for funds for transportation 
improvements and identify more funding opportunities to reduce the risk of 
underfunding the transportation system

TR 7	 THE CITY SHOULD ENSURE DEVELOPERS PAY FOR IMPACTS TO THE 
ROADWAY SYSTEM, AS REQUIRED BY CONCURRENCY.

TR 7.1	 Each development is responsible for paying to offset the development’s 
impact on the transportation system related to the development’s 
generation of trips, unless the City decides that waiving or reducing impact 
fees for particular developments will make a substantive impact to fulfill 
other goals of the City such as encouraging community serving businesses to 
locate in Buckley. 

TR 7.2	 A consistent level of service (LOS) should be provided across multiple 
transportation modes, including motorized vehicles, walking and biking.

TR 7.3	 Transportation improvements needed to support new development shall 
be in place at the time of development to maintain transportation LOS 
standards.

TR 7.4	 New commercial developments must provide roadway improvements as 
required by the future street map and the Development Guidelines and 
Public Works Standards .

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
197



139 | Transportation

Tr
an

sp
.

TR 7.5	 A concurrency management system should be developed.
TR 7.6	 Alternatives for demand management should be explored.

TR 8	 THE CITY SHOULD MINIMIZE FUTURE MAINTENANCE COSTS BY 
USING TECHNOLOGIES AND TECHNIQUES THAT INCREASE PAVEMENT 
LONGEVITY.

TR 8.1	 Design and construct improvements in a manner that likely will require 
the least amount of maintenance.

TR 8.2	 Create and periodically update an inventory that logs deficiencies and 
ongoing repairs of   existing sidewalks and roadways.

TR 8.3	 The City should budget for annual roadway paving improvements, such 
as potholes.

TR 9	 ENSURE TRANSPORTATION CONSTRUCTION NEEDS ARE MET DURING 
AND AFTER CONSTRUCTION.

TR 9.1	 Additional rights-of-way may be required for additional roads and 
pedestrian ways, as shown on adopted plans of the City.

TR 9.2	 Public notice of traffic impacts that will occur during construction 
activities should be provided 2 weeks in advance of the traffic impact.

TR 9.3	 Each transportation mode’s right-of-way needs should be addressed 
when roads are constructed or upgraded with the appropriate traffic 
control measure as outlined by the Buckley City Development Guidelines 
and Public Works Standards and MUTCD.

TR 9.4	 Temporary erosion and sediment control measures shall be used in 
accordance with an approved stormwater pollution prevention plan. 
Final approval of the permit should depend on permanent stormwater 
detention and pollution prevention measures being in place.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
198



140 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Some Connection
Strong Connection

02
03

04
05

06
07

08

GOAL

01.	 Have a vibrant, compact and walkable 
downtown where people meet each 
other face-to-face, where small 
businesses can thrive, and with housing 
close at hand that support a high quality 
of life.

02.	 Have a denser Downtown and 410 
Corridor that improves service 
administration while supporting the 
rural quality of life farther from City 
center.

03.	 Foreground the city’s unique history 
through retention of historic buildings, 
thoughtful community design, civic 
space and park system.

VISION STATEMENTS

04.	 Have affordable and accessible housing 
that allows the city’s aging population 
to stay in the place they call home, 
while welcoming newcomers into the 
community.

05.	 Be a safe and inviting place to visit and 
reside.

06.	 Use public dollars strategically and 
efficiently to provide city residents 
with high quality roads, utilities, 
environmental amenities and services.

Sustaining and fostering town identity and character
In 2044, Buckley will...

Economic development of the Downtown Core and State Highway 410
In 2044, Buckley will...

07.	 Have an enhanced 410 Corridor that creates a friendly gateway to our city with more retail, 
small businesses and housing that is community oriented and provides new places for 
residents and visitors to live, work and be together.

Promotion of outdoor recreational activities
In 2044, Buckley will...

08.	 Be a destination and not a pass through for outdoor recreation enthusiasts availing 
themselves of our area’s natural beauty through concerted infrastructure and facility 
investment and support for recreation-oriented businesses. 

Transportation Goals and the 
Community Vision

Vision Statement

01

The diagrams on the next few pages illustrate 
how the transportation goals articulated in 
this chapter connect to the community vision 
statements in Chapter 3.

Weak Connection

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
199



141 | Transportation

Tr
an

sp
.

Ensure all transportation 
modes are designed for safety.

Enhance the appearance, quality, function and 
accessibility of the transportation system.

Improve the health and 
wellbeing of city residents by 
providing multiple ways to get 
from one part of the City to 
another part of the City using 
a variety of transportation 
modes.

TR 1
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 2
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 3
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 1

TR 2

TR 3

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
200



142 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Support city greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction 

Transportation improvements should be constructed 
with reduced environmental impacts.

The City should finance 
improvements that maximize 
benefits for city residents, and 
particularly residents with 
limited mobility 

TR 4

TR 5

TR 6

TR 4
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 5
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 6
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
201



143 | Transportation

Tr
an

sp
.

The City should ensure 
developers pay for impacts 
to the roadway system, as 
required by concurrency.

The City should minimize future maintenance costs 
by using technologies and techniques that increase 
pavement longevity.

Ensure transportation 
construction needs are met 
during and after construction.

TR 7

TR 8

TR 9

TR 7
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 8
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

TR 9
01

02

07

03

04
05

06

08

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
202



144 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
203



A.
145 | Map Folio & Glossary

Map Folio & Glossary

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
204



Map Folio

146 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
205



147 | Map Folio & Glossary

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
206



Pierce County Buildable Lands Report 
2022, National Wetland Inventory, Frame-
work 2024.

148 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
207



149 | Map Folio & Glossary

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
208



USGS Woodland Landcover, National Wet-
land Inventory, Pierce County, Framework 
2024.

150 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
209



151 | Map Folio & Glossary

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
210



WA DNR 2019, Framework 2024

152 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
211



153 | Map Folio & Glossary

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
212



154 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Glossary Term Definition

Active Transpor-
tation

Refers to any form of human-powered transportation—walking, cycling, 
using a wheelchair, in-line skating or skateboarding.

Accessory Dwell-
ing

“Accessory unit” means a second dwelling unit either in or added to 
an existing single-family detached dwelling, or in a separate accessory 
structure on the same lot as the main dwelling, for use as a complete, 
independent living facility with provision within the accessory apartment 
for cooking, eating, sanitation and sleeping. Such a dwelling is an acces-
sory use to the main dwelling. Accessory units are also commonly known 
as “mother-in-law” units or “carriage houses.”

Area Median In-
come (AMI)

As opposed to the average income, AMI is the median of an income 
range in an area; half of the households make more than this, and half 
make less. Using a median rather than an average reduces the influence 
of small numbers of outliers, e.g. a few people making significantly more 
or less money than the general population.  

Best Manage-
ment Practices

These are defined by the Washington State Department of Ecology as 
physical, structural and/or managerial practices that, when used singly, 
or in combination, prevent or reduce pollution of water. The types of 
BMPs include source control, runoff treatment and stream -bank erosion 
control.

Character Community character is sum of all the attributes and assets that make a 
community unique, and that establish a sense of place for its residents. 
Factors that contribute to community character include parking and 
transportation, building design, natural features, other similar features.

City Pertains to the entirety of the city, emphasizing the population and ac-
tivities within the city's geographical boundaries.

Climate Adapta-
tion / Mitigation

Climate adaptation refers to the process of adjusting infrastructure, 
policy, processes, and other systems to the new stresses and changing 
conditions induced by climate change. Mitigation refers to adjustments 
in our systems made with the intent to limit or avoid further emisions.

Clustering A development design technique that concentrates buildings or lots in 
specific areas on a site to allow remaining land to be used for recreation, 
common open space, or the preservation of historically or environmen-
tally sensitive areas features.

Glossary

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
213



155 | Map Folio & Glossary

Community Refers to the full group of residents, workers, civil servants, and oth-
ers who contribute to the city. Community is characterized by shared 
spaces, resources, and common goals that promote the well-being and 
development of the group. The Plan aims to create a supportive and 
collaborative community where everyone feels valued and included, and 
where everyone has access to opportunities and services that foster 
their participation and growth.

Compatible Land use compatibility means that uses can coexist in proximity to each 
other without resulting in undue negative impacts on either use. For 
example, an automobile assembly plant would be unlikely to be com-
patible with residential uses. Residential uses at varying densities, how-
ever, could be compatible with each other as could some residential 
and commercial uses. The standard for what is and is not compatible 
is determined by a number of factors, including the type of uses, the 
community’s historic development pattern and expectations and local 
development and design standards.

Comprehensive 
Plan

A detailed document guiding the future actions of a community, cover-
ing land use, development, and infrastructure. The GMA establishes the 
comprehensive plan as the centerpiece of local long-range planning, 
which contains a vision, goals, policies, and strategies that are intended 
to guide day-to-day decisions by elected officials and local government 
staff. Each Washington city and county must periodically review and, 
if needed, revise its comprehensive plan and development regulations 
every 10 years.

Concurrency Concurrency is a land use planning and implementation tool, introduced 
in the Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA), which is de-
signed to ensure that necessary public facilities and services to support 
new development are available and adequate (based on adopted Level of 
Service standards) at the time of development.

Congestion Congestion results when traffic demand approaches or exceeds the 
available capacity of the system. While this is a simple concept, it is not 
constant. Traffic demands vary significantly depending on the season of 
the year, the day of the week and even the time of day. Also, the capacity, 
often mistaken as constant, can change because of weather, work zones, 
traffic incidents, or other non- recurring events.

Connectivity The state or extent of being connected or interconnected for all modes 
of transportation.

Cottage Housing Detached bungalow scale houses clustered around a common open 
space and/or private spaces aggregated together in a commons ar-
rangement.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
214



156 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Critical Areas Include the following areas and ecosystems: (a) Wetlands; (b) areas with 
a critical recharging effect on aquifers used for potable water; (c) fish 
and wildlife habitat conservation areas; (d) frequently flooded areas; and 
(e) geologically hazardous areas (RCW 36.70A.030(5)).

Density Averag-
ing

Density averaging, also known as lot size averaging, allows the size of 
individual lots within a development to vary from the zoned maximum 
density, provided that the average density in the development as a whole 
meets that maximum.

Erosion Hazard 
Areas

Erosion hazard areas means those areas in the City underlain by soils 
that are subject to severe erosion when disturbed. Such soils include, 
but are not limited to, those classified as having a severe or very severe 
erosion hazard according to the USDA Soil Conservation Service, the 
1973 King County Soils Survey or any subsequent revisions or addition 
by or to these sources.

Fair Housing

Fair Housing is the ability for all people to choose where they live without 
discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, family status, 
or disability—these are the “protected classes” under state and fed-
eral law. (Some places also protect age, sexual orientation, or having a 
Section 8 voucher). Cities may not make zoning or land use decisions or 
implement policies that exclude or otherwise discriminate against pro-
tected persons, including individuals with disabilities.

Floodplain Floodplain means the total area subject to inundation by the base flood, 
i.e., a flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in 
any given year, often referred to as the 100- year flood.

Functional Plans “Functional plans” are detailed plans for facilities and services and action 
plans for other governmental activities such as parks, surface water, 
streets, etc. Functional plans should be consistent with the Comprehen-
sive Plan.

Geologically Haz-
ardous Areas

Areas that because of their susceptibility to erosion, sliding, earthquake, 
or other geological events, are not suited to the siting of commercial, 
residential, or industrial development consistent with public health or 
safety concerns (RCW 36.70A.030(9)).

Growth Manage-
ment Act (GMA)

"The “Growth Management Act” (GMA) is the legislative act enacted by 
the Washington State legislature in 1990 and codified in RCW 36.70A.  It 
requires certain counties and cities in the State to perform detailed and 
coordinated planning efforts to deal with rapid population growth and 
concerns with suburban sprawl, environmental protection, quality of life 
and related issues. “

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
215



157 | Map Folio & Glossary

Goal A general statement expressing a desired result consistent with the 
vision and towards which policies and objectives aim.

Habitat Area

An ecological or environmental area that is inhabited by a particular 
species of animal or plant. A place where a living thing lives is its habi-
tat. It is a place where it can find food, shelter, protection and mates for 
reproduction.

HB 1110

This bill was adopted into law in 2023 by the Washington State Legis-
lature. The goal of the bill is to allow middle housing development in resi-
dential areas across the state, by right. In short, smaller cities (25,000 
- 75,000 people) are required to allow up to two or four units units on all 
lots zoned as primarily residential, depending on proximity to transit and 
affordability; and larger citys (at least 75,000 people) are required to al-
low up to four or six units on all residential lots, depending on proximity 
to transit and the affordability of the units. 

HB 1220 This bill was adopted in 2021 by the Washington State Legislature. The 
bill mandates that cities plan for adaquate housing for all incomes when 
updating their comprehensive plans and other regulatory frameworks, 
and that cities strive to identify and undo disciminatory policies that 
have or could lead to displacement. Cities must designate sufficient land 
capacity for the required number of housing units at each income level, 
as determined by the Department of Commerse, rather than generic, 
unspecified units, as was previousely required.

Human Scale Human scale means that the size of the building relates to the approxi-
mate dimensions of the human body.

Infill Urban infill is defined as new development that is sited on vacant or 
undeveloped land within an existing community, and that is enclosed by 
other types of development. The term “urban infill” itself implies that 
existing land is mostly built-out and what is being built is in effect “filling 
in” the gaps. The term most commonly refers to building single-family 
homes in existing neighborhoods but may also be used to describe new 
development in commercial, office or mixed-use areas.

Intersection 
Transportation 
Level of Service

Level of Service (LOS) measures average peak hour delay for vehicles at 
key intersections. LOS is expressed qualitatively using letters A through 
F, with A representing very good operations and F representing undesir-
able operations.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
216



158 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Landslide Hazard 
Areas

Areas potentially subject to risk of mass movement due to a combina-
tion of geologic, topographic and hydrologic factors. These areas are 
typically susceptible to landslides because of a combination of factors 
including: bedrock, soil, slope gradient, slope aspect, geologic structure, 
groundwater, or other factors.

Local Govern-
ment Operations 
(LGO)

Refers to facilities, staff, and programs under the direct control of the 
municipal government. While often synonymous with actions taken by 
the City, specific references like "City Staff" or "City Facilities" might still 
be used where appropriate.

Location Efficient 
Housing

Location-efficient housing refers to homes that have easy or inexpensive 
access to workplaces, schools, shopping and other necessary destina-
tions. Housing locations are efficient to the most people when the ways 
to these destinations are easily walkable, don’t require the resident to 
own an automobile and can be reached in 20 minutes or less.

Low Impact De-
velopment

"Design concepts including a variety of strategies and techniques to 
address the negative impacts associated with stormwater runoff, such 
as, but not limited to
Reduce the street width and road network within a development.
Replace impervious roadways, driveways and sidewalks with more pervi-
ous materials where feasible.
Reduce lot size and setbacks/frontage requirements through cluster 
designs.
Increase retention of forested open space and better protect critical 
areas.
Direct stormwater runoff to vegetated bioretention areas where shallow 
storage is used to promote infiltration and evaporation.
Eliminate conventional pipe and catch basins to increase time of concen-
tration by promoting sheet and shallow concentrated flow.
Enhance soil conditions on site by preservation of existing topsoil struc-
ture, soil amendments and protection from compaction during con-
struction.
Reuse of runoff for non-potable application onsite."

Manufactured 
Home

A type of prefabricated housing that is largely assembled in factories 
and then transported to sites of use. Manufactured homes are built as 
dwelling units of at least 320 square feet in size with a permanent chas-
sis to assure the initial and continued transportability of the home. The 
requirement to have a wheeled chassis permanently attached differenti-
ates “manufactured housing” from other types of prefabricated homes, 
such as modular homes.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
217



159 | Map Folio & Glossary

May When “may” is used in a policy, such language indicates the City has the 
option to take steps to accomplish the purpose of the policy.

Middle Housing

"...a range of house-scale buildings with multiple units—compatible in 
scale and form with detached single-family homes—located in a walk-
able neighborhood." - Opticos Design. This typically includes multiplex-
es, townhomes, cottage housing, and small apartment buildings of three 
to five floors. 

Multifamily 
Dwelling; Dwell-
ing, Attached

A one-family dwelling attached to one or more one-family dwellings by 
common roofs, walls, or floors.

Flat A residential building containing two (2) or more dwelling units which 
are attached at one or more common roofs, walls, or floors. Typically, the 
unit’s habitable area is provided on a single level. Unit entrances may or 
may not be provided from a common corridor.

Townhouse A one-family, ground-related dwelling attached to one or more such 
units in which each unit has its own exterior, ground-level access to the 
outside, no unit is located over another unit and each unit is separated 
from any other unit by one or more vertical common walls. Typically the 
units are multi-story.

Natural Area Natural areas are characterized as undeveloped landscapes containing 
vegetation, slopes, streams, lakes, pollinator habitat and other features 
that have developed through natural growth and evolution rather than 
planned development or construction.

Objective A statement establishing a measurable target or specific task to be ac-
complished for the purpose of achieving a goal’s desired result.

Passive Recre-
ation

Outdoor recreational activities, such as nature observation, hiking and 
canoeing or kayaking, that require a minimum of facilities or develop-
ment and that have minimal environmental impact on the recreational 
site.

Policy A statement giving guidance to decision makers for the purpose of 
achieving a goal’s desired result.

Priority Species Those species considered to be priorities for conservation and manage-
ment and identified in the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Priority Habitat and Species (PHS) List.

Salmonid A fish of the salmon family.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
218



160 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Sensitive Lake Sensitive lakes are those lakes particularly prone to eutrophication from 
increased phosphorus loading, which can occur due to a combination of 
water quality characteristics and watershed land development. Eutro-
phication of a lake can result in increased vegetation and algae growth, 
depletion of oxygen in bottom waters, decreased visibility in the water 
and some impairment of recreational use. Taken to the extreme, hyper-
eutrophic lakes are characterized by high algal productivity and intense 
algae blooms, fish kills due to oxygen depletion and frequent impairment 
of recreational uses. Land development and use contributes to increased 
phosphorus loadings to downstream water resources in several ways. 
Erosion of disturbed areas on construction sites can result in sediment 
transport to surface waters, which can cause algal blooms. Over-appli-
cation of fertilizers and the discharge of detergents containing phos-
phates to the storm drainage system can also increase watershed load-
ing of phosphorus.

Shall When “shall” is used in a policy, such language requires that the City 
take steps to accomplish the purpose of the policy.

Should When “should” is used in a policy, such language indicates the City has 
the option to take steps to accomplish the purpose of the policy.

Single Family 
Dwelling

A building containing one dwelling unit which is not attached to any 
other dwelling by any means except fences, has a permanent foundation 
and is surrounded by open space or yards.

Special Needs 
Housing

Special needs housing in this plan includes homes suitable for and occu-
pied by people with one or more self-help limitations, such as physical or 
mental disability, long-term illness, or alcohol or drug issues. The hous-
ing may or may not incorporate supportive services, and may be perma-
nent or transitional. Examples include adult family homes, assisted living 
facilities and group homes for people with developmental disabilities.

Stormwater

Water from rainfall and snow that runs off surfaces such as rooftops, 
paved streets, highways, and parking lots and flows into surface wa-
ter including drainage facilities, rivers, streams, lakes, or Puget Sound. 
Stormwater can also come from hard grassy surfaces like lawns, play 
fields, and from graveled roads.

Surface Water Water found above the land, including oceans, estuaries, lakes, rivers, 
streams, and ponds.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
219



161 | Map Folio & Glossary

Sustainable Com-
munity

In a sustainable community, resource consumption is balanced by re-
sources assimilated by the ecosystem. The sustainability of a commu-
nity is determined by the availability of resources and by the ability of 
natural systems to process its wastes. A community is unsustainable if 
it consumes resources faster than they can be renewed, produces more 
wastes than natural systems can process or relies upon distant sources 
for its basic needs.

Transfer of De-
velopment Rights

Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) means the transfer of the right to 
develop or build from sending sites to receiving sites. The sending site is 
the parcel of land from which development rights will be transferred. Af-
ter transferring the development rights from the sending parcel, future 
development is limited. Receiving sites are sites to which development 
rights are transferred. Typically, these are parcels of land in urban areas 
where the existing services and infrastructure can accommodate addi-
tional growth. Development rights that are “sent” off of a sending site 
are placed on a receiving site.

Transit Oriented 
Development

Transit-oriented development (TOD) describes a mix of housing, office, 
retail and amenities integrated into a walkable neighborhood and an-
chored by high quality public transit.

Total Maximum 
Daily Load

A Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) is a regulatory term in the U.S. 
Clean Water Act, describing a value of the maximum amount of a pol-
lutant that a body of water can receive while still meeting water quality 
standards

Universal Design Universal Design refers to a broad spectrum of ideas meant to produce 
products, buildings, or other built environments that are usable to the 
greatest extent possible by everyone, regardless of their age, ability, or 
status in life. Wheelchair ramps, essential for people in wheelchairs but 
also used by all, are a common example. There are also cabinets with 
pull-out shelves, kitchen counters at several heights to accommodate 
different tasks and postures and low-floor buses that “kneel” (bring 
their front end to ground level, rather than on-board lifts).

Vision A description of the community as desired. It serves as the keystone 
upon which goals, policies and objectives are based.

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
220



162 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

VISION 2050

VISION 2050 is the region’s plan to provide an exceptional quality of life, 
opportunity for all, connected communities, a spectacular natural envi-
ronment, and an innovative, thriving economy. Developed by the Puget 
Sound Regional Council, VISION 2050’s multicounty planning policies, 
actions, and regional growth strategy guide how and where the Puget 
Sound grows through 2050. The plan informs updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan and Regional Economic Strategy. VISION 2050 also 
sets the stage for updates to countywide planning policies and local 
comprehensive plans done by cities and counties.

Volume to Ca-
pacity (V/C)

The rate of comparison of roadway demand (vehicle volumes) with road-
way supply (carrying capacity).

Wetland or Wet-
lands

Areas that are inundated or saturated by surface water or ground water 
at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal 
circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted 
for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, 
marshes, bogs and similar areas. Wetlands do not include those artificial 
wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland sites, including, but not 
limited to, irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, 
detention facilities, wastewater treatment facilities, farm ponds and 
landscape amenities, or those wetlands created after July 1, 1990, that 
were unintentionally created as a result of the construction of a road, 
street, or highway. Wetlands may include those artificial wetlands inten-
tionally created from nonwetland areas created to mitigate conversion 
of wetlands (RCW  36.70A.030(20)).

Park system “Park system” means the combined facilities and properties in the city 
that are dedicated to park, open space and recreational purposes. 

Parking, off-
street 

“Off-street parking” means any space, specifically allotted to the parking 
of motor vehicles not located in a dedicated right-of-way, a travel lane, 
a service drive, nor any easement for public ingress or egress so as to 
block access.  

Permitted use “Permitted use” means any land use authorized in a specific zone and 
subject to the limitations of the regulation of such zone.  

Planned unit de-
velopment 

“Planned Unit Development” (PUD) means a zoning mechanism which 
allows for flexibility in the grouping, placement, size and use of struc-
tures on a fairly large tract of land. A PUD is developed as a single entity, 
using a public process which incorporates design review. 

Planting strip A “planting strip” is a continuous or intermittent strip of land located 
between the curb and the sidewalk, so that visual separation between 
pedestrians and vehicles is provided.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
221



163 | Map Folio & Glossary

Plat “Plat” means a map or representation of a subdivision showing the 
division of a tract or parcel of land into lots, blocks, streets and alleys or 
other divisions and dedications. 

Policy A “policy” is a definite course or method of action, which guides and 
determines present and future decision-making. 

Preservation “Preservation” means to keep in perfect or unaltered condition; main-
tain unchanged or intact. 

Principal arterial   “Principle arterials” primarily function  to expedite through traffic  
between major traffic generators.  Traffic generators include central  
business districts, regional shopping centers, cities, freeways and  lower 
arterial systems.    

Priority species   “Priority species” are species that require protective measures for  their 
perpetuation due to their population status, sensitivity to habitat  alter-
ation, and/or recreational, commercial, or tribal importance.  Priority 
species include State Endangered, Threatened, Sensitive, and  Candi-
date species; animal aggregations considered vulnerable; and  those 
species of recreational, commercial, or tribal importance that  are vul-
nerable.    

Public benefit 
features 

“Public benefit features” mean amenities, uses, and other features of 
benefit to the public, which are provided by a developer and which 
sometimes qualify for an increases in density. Examples include public 
open space, pedestrian improvements, housing, and provision of human 
services. 

Public services “Public services” include fire protection and suppression, law enforce-
ment, public health, education, recreation, environmental protection, 
and other governmental services. 

Resource lands “Resource lands” are lands primarily devoted to the commercial produc-
tion of agricultural, timber, or mineral products.  

Restoration 

“Restoration” means a human activity that returns a wetland or former 
wetland from a disturbed or altered condition with lesser acreage or 
functions to a previous condition with greater wetland acreage or func-
tions.  

Right-of-way 

“Right-of-way” means the land held by the public for road and utility 
purposes. It usually refers to the land required for the traffic lanes plus 
the shoulders and drainage structures on both sides of highways, road-
ways, bikeways and alleys.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
222



164 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

Riparian corri-
dors 

“Riparian corridors” include land located on the banks of rivers and 
streams that supports riparian vegetation and wildlife and performs 
important watershed functions. 

Row house “Row house” means one of a row of identical houses situated side by side 
and sharing common walls  

Rural “Rural” means sparsely settled or agricultural land. 

Screening “Screening” means effectively obscuring the view of unsightly uses from 
the public right-of-way or private lots.  

Shall, will, must When a goal, objective or policy states that the City “shall” or “will” do 
something, such language requires that the City take measurable steps 
to accomplish the purpose of the original policy.   

Should, may, 
encourage 

When a goal, objective or policy states that the City “should”, “may”, 
or “encourage” to do something, such language requires that the City 
make an effort to accomplish the purpose of the original policy.  

Through lot “Through lot” means a lot other than a corner lot with frontage on more 
than one street. Through lots abutting two streets may be referred to as 
double frontage lots. 

Townhouse   “Townhouse” means a type of attached multifamily dwelling in a  row of 
at least three in which each unit has its own front and rear  access to the 
outside, no unit is located over another unit, and each  unit is separated 
from any other unit by one or more vertical  common fire-resistant walls.    

Transit-oriented  
development   

“Transit oriented development” means moderate to higher density  
development, located within an easy walk of a major transit stop,  gener-
ally with a mix of residential, employment, and shopping  opportunities 
designed for pedestrians without excluding the auto.   

Urban design “Urban design” is architecture at the city scale; it considers the way 
buildings, streets, and the spaces between them relate to one another 
with the goal of creating vibrant, welcoming urban environments. 

Urban forest “Urban forest” refers to land in urban areas that is managed for its pro-
duction or for preservation of its forest characteristic. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
223



165 | Map Folio & Glossary

Urban growth 

“Urban growth” refers to growth that makes intensive use of land for 
the location of buildings, structures, and impermeable surfaces to such a 
degree as to be incompatible with the primary use of land for the pro-
duction of food, other agricultural products, or fiber, or the extraction of 
mineral resources, rural uses, rural development, and natural resource 
lands designated pursuant to RCW 36.70A.170. 

Urban growth 
area 

“Urban growth areas” (UGAs) are those areas designated by a county 
in which urban growth is directed.  “Urban growth should be located 
first in areas already characterized by urban growth that have adequate 
existing public facility and service capacities to serve such development, 
second in areas already characterized by urban growth that will be 
served adequately by a combination of both existing public facilities and 
services and any additional needed public facilities and services that are 
provided by either public or private sources, and third in the remaining 
portions of the urban growth areas.”  RCW 36.70A.110 

Way-finding “Way-finding” means a coordinated system of off-premises directional 
signs incorporating general public information.  

Wildlife habitat 

“Wildlife habitat” means the specific areas or environments in which a 
particular type of plant or animal lives. An organism’s primary and sec-
ondary habitat provides all the basic requirements for life of the organ-
ism. 

Wildlife (habitat) 
corridor 

“Wildlife (habitat) corridor” means the linear wildlife habitat area that 
allows for free movement of species through a geographic area. 

Zero lot line “Zero lot line” means the positioning of a structure on a lot so that one 
side rests directly on the lot’s boundary line.  

Zoning map “Zoning map” means the map which illustrates the boundary lines of the 
particular zones within the City.  

Zoning ordinance   The “zoning ordinance” is that body of law which regulates the  struc-
ture and use of buildings.  Within each zone different  development 
standards are applied to protect the health, safety and  welfare of the 
community.     

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
224



Figures
Figure PPF-1  Growth Allocation Methodology� 8
Figure PPF-2  Diagram of Governing Documents influencing the Comprehensive Plan� 10
Figure LU-1  Growth Targets� 21
Figure LU-2  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)� 22
Figure LU-3  Buildable Lands Capacity Based on Existing Zoning� 22
Figure LU-5  Buildable Lands Capacity Analysis Based on updated FLUM� 24
Figure LU-4  Future Land Use Map� 24
Figure H 1.  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)� 44
Figure H 2.  Buckley housing growth target for 2044 by income bracket� 44
Figure ED 1.  Buckley Employment by Sector� 61
Figure ED 2.  Worker Inflow and Outflow Buckley, WA� 62
Figure ED 3.  Per Capita Employment by Industry: Buckley and Neighboring Cities� 63
Figure ED 4.  Future Land Use Map� 64
Figure PR 1.  Parks map� 78
Figure PR 2.  Half mile walkshed from existing community parks� 80
Figure PR 3.  Facilities Inventory� 84
Figure PR 4.  Level of Service: Acreage� 85
Figure PR 5.  Level of Service: Access� 85
Figure PR 6.  Capital Improvement Projects List� 86

166 | Buckley Comprehensive Plan 2044

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
225



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
226



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
227



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
228



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
229



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
230



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
231



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
232



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
233



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
234



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
235



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
236



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
237



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
238



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
239



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
240



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
241



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
242



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
243



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
244



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
245



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
246



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
247



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
248



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
249



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
250



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
251



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
252



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
253



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
254



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
255



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
256



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
257



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
258



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
259



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
260



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
261



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
262



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
263



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F. STAFF REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
264



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
265



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
266



 
City Council Agenda Packet - 8/12/2025

 
267


	City Council Agenda - 08.12.2025
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Study Session Minutes 02-04-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Study Session Minutes 03-04-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 03-25-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 04-08-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 04-22-2025 (Draft)
	Claims and Payroll
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Regular Agenda Item 1 (Ordinance Amending the 25-26 Biennal Budget Mid-Year Adjustments)
	Regular Agenda Item 2 (Adopting Comp Plan)
	Regular Agenda Item 2 (Adopting Comp Plan - Does not include full plan)
	25_0806_BuckleyCompPlan_Clean
	Figure PPF-1  Growth Allocation Methodology
	Figure PPF-2  Diagram of Governing Documents influencing the Comprehensive Plan
	Figure LU-1  Growth Targets
	Figure LU-2  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)
	Figure LU-3  Buildable Lands Capacity Based on Existing Zoning
	Figure LU-5  Buildable Lands Capacity Analysis Based on updated FLUM
	Figure LU-4  Future Land Use Map
	Figure H 1.  Permanent Housing Needs by Income Level (% of Area Median Income)
	Figure H 2.  Buckley housing growth target for 2044 by income bracket
	Figure ED 1.  Buckley Employment by Sector
	Figure ED 2.  Worker Inflow and Outflow Buckley, WA
	Figure ED 3.  Per Capita Employment by Industry: Buckley and Neighboring Cities
	Figure ED 4.  Future Land Use Map
	Figure PR 1.  Parks map
	Figure PR 2.  Half mile walkshed from existing community parks
	Figure PR 3.  Facilities Inventory
	Figure PR 4.  Level of Service: Acreage
	Figure PR 5.  Level of Service: Access
	Figure PR 6.  Capital Improvement Projects List
	Introduction
	Planning Policy Framework
	Background
	State, Regional and County Context

	Vision & Community Layout
	Introduction
	Community Vision
	Vision Statements

	Land Use + Community Design
	Introduction
	Background
	Planning Framework
	Future Land Use Map
	Goals and Policies
	Land Use Goals and the Community Vision

	Housing
	Introduction
	Goals & Policies
	Housing Goals and the Community Vision

	Economic Development
	Introduction
	Existing Conditions
	Goals and Policies
	Economic Development Goals and the Community Vision

	Parks & Recreation
	Introduction
	Buckley Parks Overview
	Park Access
	Public Engagement
	Facilities Inventory
	Goals and Policies
	Parks & Recreation Goals and the Community Vision

	Capital Facilities & Utilities
	Introduction
	Existing Facilities 
	Goals and Policies
	Capital Facilities & Utilities Goals and the Community Vision

	Transportation
	Introduction
	Goals & Policies
	Transportation Goals and the Community Vision

	Map Folio & Glossary
	Map Folio
	Glossary



	Regular Agenda Item 3 (Amending City Employee Salary Scale - PT FF)
	Regular Agenda Item 4 (Adopting new logo)
	Regular Agenda Item 5 (DSHS Contract for Police at Rainier State School)
	Regular Agenda Item 6 (Granting Blueberrry Farm Trail Easement)
	F. STAFF REPORTS
	Staff Report- Hazard Mitigation Plan
	Staff Report - Development Project Update



